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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 20-F contains forwaroking statements. A forwaiddoking statement is a projection about a futurengor resul
and whether the statement comes true is subjengty risks and uncertainties. These statemergs ofin be identified by the use of terms such asy;'l
"will," "expect," "believe," "anticipate,” "estimaf' "approximate" or "continue," or the negativerétof. The actual results or activities of the @amy will
likely differ from projected results or activitie$ the Company as described in this Annual Repod, such differences could be material.

Forwardiooking statements involve known and unknown rigkscertainties and other factors that may causactheal results and performanct
the Company to be different from any future resydesformance and achievements expressed or imipjiedese statements. In other words, our perfoce
might be quite different from what the forward-lawd statements imply. You should review carefallyinformation included in this Annual Report.

You should rely only on the forwaldeoking statements that reflect management's viswfathe date of this Annual Report. We undertag
obligation to publicly revise or update these famvlboking statements to reflect subsequent eventsroumstances. You should also carefully reviee
risk factors described in other documents we fiterf time to time with the Securities and Exchangen@ission (the "SEC"). The Private Securities Ra
Act of 1995 contains a safe harbor for forwéodking statements on which the Company relies aking such disclosures. In connection with theéd
harbor," we are hereby identifying important fasttitat could cause actual results to differ mdtgrieom those contained in any forwaloeking statemen
made by us or on our behalf. Factors that mighseauch a difference include, but are not limitedhose discussed in the section entitled "Rs&térs
under Item 3. - Key Information.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CURRENCY PRESENTATION

We prepare our consolidated financial statementcgordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America
publish our financial statements in United State#idbs.

REFERENCES

In this Annual Report, "China" refers to all paofsthe People's Republic of China other than thecig Administrative Region of Hong Kong. 1
terms "Bonso," "we," "our," "us," "The Group" arftet"Company" refer to Bonso Electronics Internatidnc. and, where the context so requires or sstg
our direct and indirect subsidiaries. Referenodslollars,” "U.S. Dollars" or "US$" are to Unit&tates Dollars, "HK$" are to Hong Kong Dollars, t&sl' ol
"euro" are to the European Monetary Union's Cuiyeand "RMB" are to Chinese Renminbi.




PART I

Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management ad Advisors
Not Applicable to Bonso.

Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
Not Applicable to Bonso.

Item 3. Key Information
A. Selected Financial Data.

The selected consolidated financial data as of M&dg 2013 and 2014 and for each of the threelfisms ended March 31, 2014 are derived
the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements antdswhich appear elsewhere in this Annual Report.

The Financial Statements are prepared in accordaitieggenerally accepted accounting principleshia t/nited States of America and express:
United States Dollars. The selected consolidatexhtial data set forth below as of March 31, 20,1 and 2012, and for each of the two fiscal y&athe
period ended March 31, 2011, have been derived éonaudited consolidated financial statementsdinainot included in this Annual Report. The sele
consolidated financial data is qualified in theitieety by reference to, and should be read inwuctjon with, the Consolidated Financial Statemearte
related notes included in the F pages of this AhReport and Item 5. — "Operating and FinancialiBevand Prospects"” included in this Annual Report.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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Statement of Operations Data

(in 000's US$ except for shares and per share data)

Year Ended March 3:

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

2010 2011® 2012® 2013® 2014
$ $ $ $ $

Net sales 28,54 28,381 26,68: 30,38¢ 31,30¢
Cost of sales (23,699 (24,76() (22,787) (25,267) (28,637)
Gross profil 4,85( 3,627 3,90¢ 5,12 2,67¢
Selling expense (375) (249 (267) (26¢) (389
Salaries and related co: (2,539 (2,716 (2,526 (2,627) (2,987
Research and development expenses (580) (339 (312 (396 (366)
Administration and general expen: (2,01)) (1,959 (2,492 (2,402 (2,964
Gain from liquidation of subsidiai - - 1,44¢ - -
Other income 62C 184 11¢ 165 72¢
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - 15E 14 2 3,59¢
(Loss) / profit from operatior (35 (1,299 (117) (409%) 29t
Interest incomt 10z 6 7 7 64
Interest expens (69) (56) (87) (68) (136€)
Foreign exchange lo: (522) (130 (7093 (2617) (444)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets - 41 = = =
Loss before income tax (529 (1,43)) (900 (725) (2213)
Income tax expense (9) - (2) (29) -
Loss from continuing operations (532 (1,437 (902) (754) (221)
Loss from discontinued operatiof¥s (12€) (12€) - - -
Net loss (65€) (1,560 (902) (754) (22))
Net loss per shai®

- Continuing operation $ (0.1 $ 0.27) $ 0.17) % 019 $ (0.04

- Discontinued operatior $ 0.09 $ 0.02 $ 0.000 $ 0.000 $ (0.00)

- Total $ (0.19) $ 029 $ 0.179) $ 019 $ (0.0
Weighted average shar 5,246,90. 5,246,90: 5,246,90: 5,246,90: 5,246,90:
Diluted weighted average shal 5,246,90. 5,246,90: 5,246,90: 5,246,90: 5,246,90:

(1) The diluted net loss per share was the santleealbasic net loss per share as all potentiahargishares, including the stock options, are-anti
dilutive and therefore excluded from the computatié diluted net loss per share.

(2) Loss from discontinued operations represdrggésults of Korona Haushaltswaren GmbH & Co. KKbfona"), a former subsidiary, which v
liquidated in February 2012.

(3) Certain accounts in the statement of operatfonthe fiscal years of March 31, 2011, 2012 28413 have been reclassified to conform witt
presentation of the fiscal year ended March 314201




Balance Sheet Data

(in 000's US$ except for shares and per share data)

March 31,
2010®@ 2011@ 2012@ 2013@ 2014
$ $ $ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents, and fixed depo:

maturing over three montl 8,08t 5,407 3,01¢ 2,15¢ 1,165
Working capital of continuing operatio 10,27: 7,657 2,48¢ (160 (3,769
Total assets of continuing operatic 23,48¢ 21,807 23,16¢ 27,12¢ 32,14(
Total assets of discontinued operati® 20C 5 - - -
Total asset 23,68¢ 21,81: 23,16¢ 27,12 32,14(
Current liabilities of continuing operatiol 6,78¢ 6,28t 9,29: 13,94: 18,64¢
Nor-current financial liabilities at fair vall - - - - 20¢
Income tax liabilities, nc-current portior 2,59 2,59 2,59 2,59 2,59t
Total liabilities of continuing operatior 9,40: 8,89¢ 11,89( 16,53’ 21,51¢
Total liabilities of discontinued operatio® 1,09¢ 1,08¢ - - -
Common stocl 17 17 17 17 17
Shareholders' equi 13,18¢ 11,827 11,27¢ 10,58¢ 10,622

Dividends declared per she - - = - -

(1) Total assets and liabilities of discontinugei@tions represent total assets and liabilitiesaybna, a former subsidiary, which was liquidaie
February 2012.

(2) Certain accounts in the balance sheet of M&dgH010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 have been reclabsifieonform with the presentation of tha
March 31, 2014.




Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following riskegether with all other information included inghinnual Report. The realization of any of
risks described below could have a material adveffeet on our business, results of operationsfanute prospects.

Political, Legal, Economic and Other Uncertaintieof Operations in China and Hong Kong

We Could Face Increased Currency Risks If Chinasidet Maintain The Stability Of The Hong Kong Dolta the Chinese RenminbiThe Honi
Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar have bieerd at approximately 7.80 Hong Kong Dollars t6@U.S. Dollar since 1983. The market exchangg
has not deviated materially from the level of HK¥Yto US$1.00 since the peg was first establishedvever, in May 2005, the Hong Kong Mone!
Authority broadened the trading band from the odgirate of HK$7.80 per U.S. dollar to a rate ranf§éiK$7.75 to HK$7.85 per U.S. dollar. The Hi
Kong government has stated its intention to maintaé link at that rate. From 1994 until July 208% Chinese Renminbi had remained stable agie
U.S. Dollar at approximately 8.28 to 1.00 U.S. Rnoll On July 21, 2005, the Chinese currency regia altered to link the RMB to a "basket of curieag
which includes the U.S. Dollar, Euro, Japanese ath Korean WonUnder the rules, the RMB is allowed to move 0.3%aothaily basis against the L
Dollar. The People's Bank of China, on May 21200idened the RMB trading band from 0.3% daily mment against the U.S. Dollar to 0.5%ollowing
the removal of the U.S. Dollar peg, the RMB appatsi more than 20% against the U.S. Dollar ovefdhewing three years. Since July 2008, howeVies
RMB has traded within a narrow range against the. Dollar. As a consequence, the RMB has fluctuaignificantly since July 2008 against other fr
traded currencies, in tandem with the U.S. Dolam. June 20, 2010, the People's Bank of China ("PB@@nounced that the government of the Pec
Republic of China ("PRC") would further reform tR8B exchange rate regime and increase the flewilili the exchange rate. It is difficult to prediaiw
this new policy may impact the RMB exchange rae. of July 15, 2014, the RMB was valued at 6.17 pe3. Dollar.Any significant revaluation of ti
RMB may materially and adversely affect our casiwé, revenues, earnings and financial positionthedvalue of our common shares and any divic
payable to our common shareholders in U.S. Dollarsaddition, the Chinese government continueset®ive significant international pressure to fui
liberalize its currency policy and as a result rwasher change its currency polichhe Chinese government in the past has expressaddntion in the Bas
Law of the PRC to maintain the stability of the lgokong currency after the sovereignty of Hong Karas transferred to China in July 1997. Howe
there can be no assurance that the Hong Kong Dwilaremain pegged against the U.S. Dollar or tifegt Chinese Renminbi will not be allowed to fluatk
more than 0.5% on a daily basis. If the curremthexige rate mechanism is changed, we shall faceaised currency risks, which could have a ma
adverse effect upon the Company.

We Face Significant Risks If The Chinese Govern@kanges Its Policies, Laws, Regulations, Or Taucatre Or Its Current Interpretations Of
Laws, Rules And Regulations Relating To Our Openatin China.Our facility in Shenzhen and our new manufactuffiagjlity in Xinxing are located i
China. As a result, our operations and assetsuliect to significant political, economic, legaldaother uncertainties. Changes in policies byGhaes
government resulting in changes in laws or reguatior the interpretation of laws or regulatioranfiscatory taxation, changes in employment resbns
restrictions on imports and sources of supply, impaties, corruption, currency revaluation or g@ropriation of private enterprise could mateyialhc
adversely affect us. Over the past several yehesChinese government has pursued economic rebolivies, including the encouragement of pri
economic activity and greater economic decentridia If the Chinese government does not contifmupursue its present policies that encourage dgo
investment and operations in China, or if thesécyes are either not successful or are signifigaattered, then our business operations in Chingdchbe
adversely affected. We could even be subjectéarigk of nationalization, which could result irettotal loss of investment in that country. Folilegvthe
Chinese government's policy of privatizing manyestavned enterprises, the Chinese government hasgttdrto augment its revenues through increase
collection. Continued efforts to increase tax rawes could result in increased taxation expenseg lrecurred by us. Economic development may ivétdic
as well by the imposition of austerity measuresrded to reduce inflation, the inadequate developrokinfrastructure and the potential unavaildpitf
adequate power and water supplies, transportatidrcammunications. If for any reason we were mneglito move our manufacturing operations outsit
China, our profitability would be substantially iaiped, our competitiveness and market position ddé¢ materially jeopardized and we might hav
discontinue our operations.




Continuing Economic Weakness May Adversely Affagt Earnings, Liquidity And Financial PositionThe Company's business has t
challenging recently as a consequence of adverdewide economic conditions. In particular, théees been an erosion of global consumer confidence
concerns over declining asset values, price ingtglgeopolitical issues, the availability and to$ credit, rising unemployment and the stabiityd solvenc
of financial institutions, financial markets, busgses and sovereign nations. These concerns siginleal economic growth and resulted in recessio
many countries, including in the U.S., Europe aedain countries in Asia. The global economic wessthas negatively impacted our operating resinks
2008. Overall, the economic outlook is uncertaimagsult of concerns about the general global @ogn the decreased rate of growth in China an
European Union. Recessionary conditions may retlirmegative economic conditions return, a numblematerial adverse effects on our business «
occur and could have a negative impact upon ouwdtsesf operations. Further, slower overall growfithe Chinese economy may have a material ac
effect upon the Company and its results of opematioAlso, the Company's Shenzhen factory is leasgdto a third party whose main busines
manufacturing of printing and packaging materialb¢ sold domestically. Negative economic cond#im China would affect the results of operatiof
this tenant, which may not be able to pay future te the Company in full or in time according ke lease agreement.

The Economy Of China Has Been Experiencing SigmifiGrowth, Leading To Some Inflation and Increakabor CostsThe economy in China h
grown significantly over the past 20 years, whiels hesulted in inflation and an increase in theaye cost of labor, especially in the coastal sitighina’
consumer price index, the broadest measure oftimflarose 2.42% in June 2014 from the level ineJ@2013. Although slowing down recently, Chi
overall economy and the average wage in the PR@xrected to continue to grow. Continuing inflatenmd material increases in the cost of labor imé
could diminish our competitive advantage. If trevgrnment tries to control inflation, it may hawe adverse effect on the business climate and groi
private enterprise in the PRC. An economic slowdomay reduce our revenues. If inflation is allowegroceed unchecked, our costs would likely iase
and there can be no assurance that we would becainierease our prices to an extent that wouldetfthe increase in our expenses.

Changes To PRC Tax Laws And Heightened Efforts lBya@ Tax Authorities To Increase Revenues Areegirpg To Subject Us To Greater Ta
Under PRC law before 2008, we were afforded a rarmbtax concessions by, and tax refunds fromn&hkitax authorities on a substantial portion &
operations in China by reinvesting all or part lo¢ tprofits attributable to our PRC manufacturingrapions. However, on March 16, 2007, the Chi
government enacted a unified enterprise incomelaax or "EIT," which became effective on January2008. Prior to the EIT, as a foreign inve:
enterprise, or "FIE," located in Shenzhen of theCPBur PRC subsidiaries enjoyed a national incaameaate of 15% and were exempted from the 3%
income tax. The preferential tax treatment to albsgdiaries in the PRC of qualifying for tax refgnals a result of reinvesting their profits earmegreviou:
years in the PRC also expired on January 1, 2Q08ler the EIT, apart from those qualified as higth enterprises, most domestic enterprises ansl \ilk
be subject to a single PRC enterprise income t@xab25%. We base our tax position upon the gratied nature and conduct of our business and apt
understanding of the tax laws of the various adstiative regions and countries in which we havetassr conduct activities. However, our tax positig
subject to review and possible challenge by taxuathorities and to possible changes in law, whicty mave retroactive effect. We cannot determil
advance the extent to which some jurisdictions reayire us to pay taxes or make payments in lidebas.
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We Face Risks By Operating In China, Because Tlmee€é Legal System Relating To Foreign InvestmedtFreign Operations Such As Bon
Is Evolving And The Application Of Chinese Lawb/igertain. The legal system of China relating to foreign inwe@nts is continually evolving, and th
can be no certainty as to the application of itgsland regulations in particular instances. Then€e legal system is a civil law system based ntien
statutes. Unlike common law systems, it is a sgste which decided legal cases have little prectdewmalue. In 1979, the Chinese government bdg
promulgate a comprehensive system of laws and aggos governing economic matters in general. ¢laion over the past 30 years has significi
enhanced the protections afforded to various foofm$oreign investment in China. Enforcement ofsgixig laws or agreements may be sporadic
implementation and interpretation of laws incorgist The Chinese judiciary is relatively inexpaded in enforcing the laws that exist, leading tughe
than usual degree of uncertainty as to the outcofrany litigation. Even where adequate law exist€hina, it may not be possible to obtain swift
equitable enforcement of that law. Further, vagidisputes may be subject to the exercise of ceraide discretion by agencies of the Chinese govent
and forces and factors unrelated to the legal mefita particular matter or dispute may influerfoeirt determination. Continued uncertainty relatioghe
laws in China and the application of the laws cchdgte a material adverse effect upon us and ouatpes in China.

Controversies Affecting China's Trade With The &bhiStates Could Harm Our Results Of Operations &prBss Our Stock Price While Chin
has been granted permanent most favored natioa status in the United States through its entry the World Trade Organization, controversies bet
the United States and China may arise that thre¢htestatus quo involving trade between the Untes and China. These controversies could raky
and adversely affect our business by, among ottiegs, causing our products in the United Statdsettbme more expensive, resulting in a reducticthé
demand for our products by customers in the Urftiedes, which would have a material adverse etffipoh us and our results of operations. Furthéitiqad
or trade friction between the United States anch@hivhether or not actually affecting our businessild also materially and adversely affect thevailerg
market price of our common shares.

If Our Factories Were Destroyed Or Significantlyaged As A Result of Fire, Flood Or Some Other fdhtDisaster, We Would Be Advers
Affected. All of our products are manufactured at our macturing facilities located in Xinxing, Guangdon@hina. Firefighting and disaster relief
assistance in China may not be as developed ag#te countries. We currently maintain propertydge insurance aggregating approximately $33 m
covering our stock in trade, goods and merchanéliseiture and equipment and buildings. We domatntain business interruption insurance. Invesan
cautioned that material damage to, or the losswf factories due to fire, severe weather, floodther act of God or cause, even if insured, chalde
material adverse effect on our financial conditi@sults of operations, business and prospects.

Our Results Could Be Harmed If We Have To Compth Wéw Environmental RegulationsOur operations create some environmentally dee
waste that may increase in the future dependinghemature of our manufacturing operations. Theega issue of the disposal of hazardous wast
received increasing attention from China's natiamal local governments and foreign governmentsagedcies and has been subject to increasing riagul
Our business and operating results could be miyeand adversely affected if we were to increagpeaditures to comply with any new environme
regulations affecting our operations.
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Enforcement Of The Labor Contract Law, Minimum Wheigeeases And Future Changes In The Labor LawGHima May Result In The Contint
Increase In Labor CostOn June 29, 2007, the Standing Committee of théoNat People's Congress of China enacted the L&@batract Law, whic
became effective on January 1, 2008. The Labor r@ont_aw introduces specific provisions related fiteed-term employment contracts, péirte
employment, probation, consultation with labor imend employee assemblies, employment without #tienrcontract, dismissal of employees, sevel
and collective bargaining, which together represatitanced enforcement of labor laws and regulatidosording to the Labor Contract Law, an emplog
obliged to sign an unlimiteterm labor contract with any employee who has wirf@ the employer for 10 consecutive years. Furtifean employe
requests or agrees to renew a fitedn labor contract that has already been entertedtwice consecutively, the resulting contract trhesve an unlimite
term, with certain exceptions. The employer musb glay severance to an employee in nearly allnosgwhere a labor contract, including a contratit ar
unlimited term, is terminated or expires. In adiuitithe government has continued to introduce uaritew laborelated regulations after the Labor Coni
Law. Among other things, new annual leave requirgsmeandate that annual leave ranging from 5 tdals is available to nearly all employees and &
require that the employer compensate an employearip annual leave days the employee is unablak® in the amount of three times his daily sa
subject to certain exceptions. In addition, asitierpretation and implementation of these newlagpns are still evolving, we cannot assure yat bu
employment practices do not, or will not, violate f_abor Contract Law and other labetated regulations. Between the fiscal years eidadth 31, 201
and 2014, we experienced an increase in the cdabof caused by the increase in the minimum hawatlg. In accordance with the new minimum wag
by the local authorities, we increased the minimuage for our labor in Shenzhen from RMB 1,100 (mpraximately $162) per month to RMB 1,320
approximately $206) per month beginning April 1120 The minimum wage was increased to RMB 1,500afproximately $238) per month beginr
February 1, 2012. The minimum wage in Shenzhenimasased to RMB 1,600 (or approximately $254) penth beginning March 1, 2013, and late
RMB 1,808 (or approximately $293) per month begigrirebruary 1, 2014. We believe that increased lebsts in China will have a significant effectam
total production costs and results of operations #wat we will not be able to continue to increase production at our manufacturing facilities vaith
substantially increasing our ng@meduction salaries and related costs. If we abjest to severe penalties or incur significarbiliies in connection with tt
enforcement of the Labor Contract Law, disputemeestigations, our business and results of opsratmay be adversely affected. We started hiriogkers
to work in our Xinxing factory during the fiscal geended March 31, 2013. The minimum wage at Xigxvas RMB 1,010 (or approximately $1
beginning May 1, 2013. Any future changes in tHmtaaws in the PRC could result in our having &y increased labor costs. There can be no as€
that the labor laws will not change, which may haveaterial adverse effect upon our business ancesults of operations.

If We Were To Lose Our Existing Banking Facilit&ssThose Facilities Were Substantially Decreased €8s Favorable Terms Were Imposed L
Us, The Company Could Be Materially And Adverséigcéed. We maintain a banking facility with Hang Seng Bausikited, which is subject to renewal
an annual basisWe use this banking facility to fund our workingpéal requirements. The credit markets in Hong ¢&@md throughout the world he
tightened and experienced extraordinary volatdityl uncertainty. We have had discussions withraéweé our banks and believe that the availabitifyour
banking facility will continue on terms that arecaptable to us. However, as a result of changéwircapital or other legal requirements applicatldanc
Seng Bank Limitedbr if our financial position and operations werediteriorate further, our costs of borrowing coincrease or the terms of our bank
facility could be changed so as to impact our tiifyi If we are unable to obtain needed capitatesms acceptable to us, our business, financiadition,
results of operations and cash flows could be risdteadversely affected.

Risk Factors Relating to Our Business

We Depend Upon Our Largest Customers For A SigmifidPortion Of Our Sales Revenue, And We CannoC&wain That Sales To The
Customers Will Continue. If Sales To These Cust®mibe Not Continue, Then Our Sales Will Decline Aut Business Will Be Negatively Impactaile
have relied upon three customers for a signifigamtion of our sales. During the fiscal years ehtitarch 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014,these three cust
accounted for approximately 81%, 83% and 87% odssalespectively. During the fiscal year endeddiiaBl, 2014, 45% of our sales were to a s
customer (52% during the fiscal year ended March2B1.3). We do not enter into lomgrm contracts with our customers but manufactasetl upo
purchase orders and therefore cannot be certainséi@s to these customers will continue. The t@isany of our largest customers would likely ha
material negative impact on our sales revenue anthasiness.
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Defects In Our Products Could Impair Our Ability Bell Our Products Or Could Result In LitigationdA®ther Significant CostsDetection of an
significant defects in our products may resulaimong other things, delay in timetoarket, loss of market acceptance and sales gbrogdlucts, diversion
development resources, injury to our reputatiorinoreased warranty costs. Because our productsamplex, they may contain defects that canns
detected prior to shipment. These defects coutchh@ur reputation, which could result in signifitasosts to us and could impair our ability to smli
products. The costs we may incur in correcting pnogluct defects may be substantial and could deereur profit margins.

Since certain of our products are used in apptioatithat are integral to our customers' businessess, defects or other performance prob
could result in financial or other damages to austoemers, which would likely result in adverse effeupon our business with these customers. Hves
involved in any product liability litigation, eveifi it were unsuccessful, it would be tineensuming and costly to defend. Further, our pcodiability
insurance may not be adequate to cover claims.

Our Sales Through Retail Merchants Result In SeaggnSusceptibility To A Downturn In The RetaildBomy And Sales Variances Resulting F
Retail Promotional ProgramsMany of our other customers sell to retail merchamccordingly, these portions of our customerebae susceptible tc
further downturn in the retail economy. A greatamber of our sales of scales products occur betwee months of July and October in preparatiothe
Christmas holiday. Throughout the remainder of ytkar, our products do not appear to be subjesigwificant seasonal variation. However, pasts
patterns may not be indicative of future perforneanc

Our Customers Are Dependent On Shipping CompandesDeelivery Of Our Products, And Interruptions Taiging Could Materially An
Adversely Affect Our Business And Operating RestTypically, we sell our products either F.O.B. HoKgng, or Yantian (Shenzhen) or Nan
(Guangzhou), and our customers are responsiblthéotransportation of products from Hong Kong, @n¥an (Shenzhen) or Nansha (Guangzhou) to
final destinations. Our customers rely on a varadtcarriers for product transportation throughieas world ports. A work stoppage, strike or stawtn o
one or more major ports or airports could resulshipping delays materially and adversely affecting customers, which in turn could have a mai
adverse effect on our business and operating ses@imilarly, an increase in freight surcharges thu rising fuel costs or general price increasmsdd
materially and adversely affect our business araaifmg results.

Customer Order Estimates May Not Be Indicative ©fuAdl Future Sales.Some of our customers have provided us with fotscaé thei
requirements for our products over a period of tirdée make many management decisions based ondhstsener estimates, including purchasing mate
hiring personnel and other matters that may inereas production capacity and costs. If a custoraduces its orders from prior estimates after aee
increased our production capabilities and costs, rkduction may decrease our net sales and wenoiape able to reduce our costs to account fo
reduction in customer orders. Many customers dopnavide us with forecasts of their requirememts dur products. If those customers place sigaif
orders, we may not be able to increase our prostuctilickly enough to fulfill the customers' ordef@he inability to fulfill customer orders couldmage oL
relationships with customers and reduce our nessal
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Pressure By Our Customers To Reduce Prices AndeAGoeLongferm Supply Arrangements May Cause Our Net SaleBr@fit Margins Tt
Decline. Our customers are under pressure to reduce pridbeio products. Therefore, we expect to expegeimcreasing pressure from our custome
reduce the prices of our products. Continuingquresto reduce the price of our products could lzereterial adverse effect upon our business aadhtip
results. Our customers frequently negotiate suppigngements with us well in advance of placirdeos for delivery within a year, thereby requiring tc
commit to price reductions before we can deternfimee can achieve the assumed cost reductions.b&lieve we must reduce our manufacturing cost:
obtain higher volume orders to offset decliningrage sales prices. Further, if we are unablefsebfieclining average sales prices, our grosstpnafrgin:
will decline, which would have a material adverffe@ upon our results of operations.

We Depend Upon Our Key Personnel, And The Lossn@K&y Personnel, Or Our Failure To Attract And &etkey Personnel, Could Advers
Affect Our Future Performance, Including Productvelmpment, Strategic Plans, Marketing And Otheredtiyes. The loss or failure to attract and re
key personnel could significantly impede our perfance, including product development, strategiaglanarketing and other objectives. Our suc
depends to a substantial extent not only on thktyakind experience of our senior management, latiqularly upon Anthony So, our Chairman of
Board. We do not have key man life insurance on3dr.  To the extent that the services of Mr. Saldibe unavailable to us, we would be requirediimio
another person to perform the duties Mr. So otherwiould perform. We may be unable to employ aragualified person with the appropriate backgre
and expertise to replace Mr. So on terms suitablest

Certain Subsidiaries Of The Company Receivedy@Qing Enquiries From The Local Tax Authorities DwyiThe Year. If The Subsidiaries W
Finally Held Liable For Such Additional Taxationu©Consolidated Net Income And The Value Of Youedtment Could Be Substantially Redur During
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2tHrtain of our subsidiaries were, and contirube, subject to enquiries from the local tax arities.
In accordance with Accounting Standards Codifigaff@0 "Income Taxes", the Company recorded a pmvief approximately $2,595,000 in relatior
uncertain tax positions as of April 1, 2007. Tlssessment is subject to final determination byldbal tax authorities and may be different from wiva
have recorded as a provision. As such, there eanobassurance that the inquiry will not resulthia imposition of additional income tax expensett
Group, which could have a material adverse effpanuthe Group and its results of operations. Adiogy to the requirement from the local tax authesi
the Company has purchased tax reserve certifiéatepproximately $1,710,000 for the fiscal yearsaview, for the potential payment to the tax atiti.

Contractual Arrangements We Have Entered Into AmdadAnd Our Subsidiaries May Be Subject To ScruBinylhe Respective Tax Authorit
And A Finding That Bonso And Its Subsidiaries Owlditfonal Taxes Could Substantially Reduce Our ©btidated Net Income And The Value Of \
InvestmentWe could face material and adverse tax consequehties respective tax authorities determine thet tontractual arrangements among
subsidiaries and Bonso do not represent an armithieprice and adjust Bonso's, or any of its suasa&s’, income in the form of a transfer pric
adjustment. Bonso did not consider it necessamake tax provision in this respect. However, ¢hggin be no assurance that the assessment perfby
the local tax authorities will result in the sam@sipion. A transfer pricing adjustment could, amather things, result in a reduction, for tax msgs, c
expense deductions recorded by Bonso or any efilisidiaries, which could in turn increase itsltakilities. In addition, the tax authorities mimpose lat
payment fees and other penalties on our affili@etities for underpaid taxes. Our consolidatedimatme may be materially and adversely affecteali
affiliated entities' tax liabilities increase ottlifey are found to be subject to late payment de@dher penalties.
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Increased Prices For Raw Materials May Have A Negatmpact Upon Us.The price level of raw materials remained stable fiscal year end:
March 31, 2014, compared to that in the fiscal yated March 31, 2013. However, we experience@asad costs of component parts due to the incihe
the price of oil used in the production of compdsesuch as plastic resin, steel and other raw maieturing fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 oillfprices
continue to increase in the future, it will likedgsult in an increase in the costs of componentsi@s well as an increase in our operating exseneghicl
may have a material adverse effect upon our busiaed results of operations.

We May Face An Increased Shortage Of Factory Werk@uring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, waiced our full workforce in Shenzh
PRC as we transferred all our operations to a ra@tofy in Xinxing. See "Employees" below. We aigreced difficulties in hiring enough factory work
in the Xinxing factory. As a result, we have assig subcontracting work to third parties to incesasir overall production capacity. There can b
assurance that we will not experience an increased for workers in China in the future or that vem adequately staff our new factory in Xinxinghe
inability to adequately staff our factories coulavb a material adverse impact on production, wbaid lead to delays in shipments or missed sdleshe
event that we have delayed or lost sales, we mag teedeliver goods by air at our cost to ensuaé dlar products arrive on time, which would likegsult ir
an increase in air freight costs and vendor fimeb@uld result in missed sales, any of which cdwdde a material adverse effect upon our businesoa
results from operations.

Recent Changes In The PRC's Labor Law Could PenBlanso If It Needs To Make Additional WorkforcduR&ons. In June 2007, the Natiol
People's Congress of the PRC enacted new labolelgiglation called the Labor Contract Law, whictcame effective on January 1, 2008. It forma
workers' rights concerning overtime hours, pensitaffs, employment contracts and the role ofieranions. Considered as one of the strictesr Izl
in the world, among other things, this new law ieggian employer to conclude an "opamded employment contract” with any employee wlhioeeiha
worked for the employer for 10 years or more or lhad two consecutive fixed-term contracts. An ‘fepaded employment contract" is in effect a lifeti
permanent contract, which is terminable only inc#jed circumstances, such as a material breadhe®mployer's rules and regulations, or for aose
dereliction of duty. Under the new law, downsizing 20% or more of each individual entity may ocouly under specified circumstances, such
restructuring undertaken pursuant to China's ErterpBankruptcy Law, or where a company suffersoser difficulties in production and/or busin
operations. Also, if we lay off more than 20 enygles at one time, we have to communicate withaherlunion of our Company and report to the Dit
Labor Bureau. During the fiscal year ended Marth2)14, we paid severance payment of $1,194,006eétucing our full workforce in Shenzhen, PR(
we moved our operations to the new factory in Xigxiand the accumulated provision was $156,000 &acch 31, 2014. (2013: $743,000). This acc
severance payment allowance is reviewed every y@d&.may incur much higher costs under China'srlddnos if we are forced to downsize again,
accordingly, this new labor law may exacerbatesiiheerse effect of the economic environment on imantial results and financial condition.

We Face Increasing Competition In Our Industry Avidy Not Be Able To Successfully Compete With Ounpgetitors. Our business is in .
industry that is becoming increasingly competitimad many of our competitors, both local and irdéomal, have substantially greater technical, rfaia
and marketing resources than we have. As a resailtnay be unable to compete successfully withetlvesnpetitors. We compete with scale manufact
in the Far East, the United States, and Europe.b®lieve that our principal competitors in the scale other original equipment manufacturer ("OEM)
original design manufacturer ("ODM") manufactureasd all companies engaged in the branded, ODMQ@IBEM business. The scale market is hi
competitive, and we face pressures on pricing ameil margins, as evidenced by the decline in martfiat we have experienced with our scale prod
Lower margins may affect our ability to cover owosts, which could have a material negative impaatur operations and our business.
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We Are Controlled By Our Management, Whose Intefdsty Differ From Those Of The Other Shareholdefs of June 30, 2014, Mr. Anthony !
our founder and Chairman, beneficially owns appraately 40.9% of the issued shares of our commocksto 43.5% of the shares entitled to vote .
eliminating 330,736 shares held as treasury sttialegsury Stock"). Andrew So, our Chief Operatinfiéer and President, owns approximately 4.5% e
issued shares of our common stock or 4.8% of tla@eshentitled to vote after eliminating Treasurpc8t Albert So, our Chief Financial Officer ov
approximately 1.8% of the issued shares of our comstock or 1.9% of the shares entitled to voteraftiminating Treasury Stock. The record ownersi
Mr, Anthony So, Mr. Andrew So and Mr. Albert So aggates 50.2% of the shares entitled to vote. Therdairectors of the Company own 3.5% of
issued shares of our common stock or 3.7% of theeshentitled to vote. Accordingly, the existingmagement and directors of the Company can votiee
aggregate 53.9% of the shares entitled to votea Assult, the current directors and managemenh@fCtompany are in a position to elect the boa
directors and, therefore, to control our business afairs, including certain significant corporatetions such as acquisitions, the sale or purcbfiagset
and the issuance and sale of our securities. Tirerdt directors and management may be able teeptewr cause a change in control of the Compang
also may be prevented from entering into transastibat could be beneficial to us without the aurirector's and management's consent. The 8gitei
our largest shareholders may differ from the irder®f other shareholders. There are no agreemandsystandings or commitments among the memb
the Board to vote their shares in any specific neaion to vote collectively for or against any matteat may come before the shareholders.

We have identified material weaknesses in our malercontrol over financialreporting which could, if not remediated, result imateria
misstatements in our financial statemeée are responsible for establishing and maintairgidgquate internal control over our financial réipgy a
required by Rule 1345 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Asldsed in Item 15 Controls and Procedures, we mawdnjunction with ot
independent auditors identified certain materiahMveesses in our internal control over financialorépg related to our financial closing, the condatoul
year end inventory count, the lack of trained aotiog personnel, the entry of certain transactiong the accounting records on a timely basis, e
approval of loans to an officer and director.

A material weakness is defined as a deficiencycanbination of deficiencies, in internal controleovfinancial reporting, such that there
reasonable possibility that a material misstaternéour annual or interim financial statements witt be prevented or detected on a timely basisa fessul
of these material weaknesses, our management catcthat our internal control over financial repaytwas not effective as of March 31, 2014, basa
criteria set forth by the Internal Control—Integrat~ramework issued by the Committee of Sponsd@irganizations of the Treadway Commission.

As discussed in Item 15, we are actively engagedkireloping and implementing remediation plansgiesi to address these material weakne
however the material weaknesses will not be rentedliantil the necessary controls have been implésdesind are determined to be operating effecti
We do not know the specific time frame needed lly femediate the material weaknesses identified. d&hnot assure you that our efforts to fully reiaue
these internal control weaknesses will be succksesfinat similar material weaknesses will not redfiour remedial measures are insufficient toradd th
material weaknesses, or if additional material weskes or significant deficiencies in our interoahtrol are discovered or occur in the future,
consolidated financial statements may contain risteisstatements and we could be required totestar financial results.

Notwithstanding the identified material weaknesseanagement believes the consolidated financigérsents included in this Annual Report
Form 20F fairly present in all material respects our ficiahcondition, results of operations and cash §@tand for the periods presented in accordanth
U.S. GAAP.
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Due To Inherent Limitations, There Can Be No Asscealhat Our System Of Disclosure And Internal @dsitAnd Procedures Will Be Succes
In Preventing All Errors Or Fraud Or In Informing &hagement Of All Material Information In A Timelyaiher. Our disclosure controls and intet
controls and procedures may not prevent all emadsall fraud. A control system, no matter howlveeinceived and operated, can provide only reaso)
not absolute, assurance that the objectives adheol system are met. Further, the design afrdrol system reflects that there are resourcetainss, an
the benefits of controls must be considered redativtheir costs. Because of the inherent lingtetiin all control systems, no evaluation of costicar
provide absolute assurance that all control isamelsinstances of fraud, if any, within the compaaye been or will be detected. These inherentdiii:
include the realities that judgments in decisimaking can be faulty and that breakdowns can osicoply because of error or mistake. Additionatigntrols
can be circumvented by the individual acts of sgmesons, by collusion of two or more people or bgunvention of the internal control procedurese
design of any system of controls also is basedam ypon certain assumptions about the likelihobfuture events, and there can be no assurancetly
design will succeed in achieving its stated goaidew all potential future conditions; over timecantrol may become inadequate because of chan
conditions, or the degree of compliance with thicjes or procedures may deteriorate. Becaushefrtherent limitations in a costfective control syster
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur aaydmot be detected.

There Are Inherent Uncertainties Involved In Estiésa Judgments And Assumptions Used In The Prépar&f Financial Statements
Accordance With U.S. GAAP. Any Changes In Estimdteggments And Assumptions Could Have A Mateldserse Effect On Our Business, Finan
Position And Results Of OperatiorThe consolidated financial statements includecha geriodic reports we file with the SEC are pregan accordan
with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of financial statets in accordance with U.S. GAAP involves makisgneates, judgments and assumptions that i
reported amounts of assets (including intangibée®s3, liabilities and related reserves, reveneigsenses and income. Estimates, judgments and pssns
are inherently subject to changes in the futurel, amy such changes could result in correspondimggds to the amounts of assets, liabilities, ress
expenses and income. Any such changes could hamegeaial adverse effect on our financial positiod aesults of operation.

Compliance Costs With The Securities Laws The Sab@®xley Act of 2002 ("Sarban@sdey Act'), The Wall Street Reform and Consi
Protection Act ("Dod-Frank Act"), And Other Regulatory Initiatives Wificrease Our Cost€hanges in corporate governance practices duest®dthuid
Frank Act and the Sarban@sdey Act, changes in the continued listing ruldstte NASDAQ Stock Market, new accounting pronouneats and ne
regulatory legislation, rules or accounting chanlgage increased our cost of being a U.S. publicpeom and may have an adverse impact on our !
financial position and operating results. Thesaulagry changes and other legislative initiativesdrmade some activities more tic@misuming and ha
increased financial compliance and administratiests for public companies, including foreign prevassuers like us. In addition, any future chang
regulatory legislation, rules or accounting mayseaour legal and accounting costs to further irs@etn addition, these new rules and regulatiogsire
increasing time commitments and resource commitsnigaim our company, including from senior managetmehis increased cost could negatively im
our earnings and have a material adverse effeotinfinancial position results of operations. Fartithe new rules may increase the expenses atsbuial
our director and officer liability insurance.

We Inadvertently Violated Sarban@sdey Section 402 and Section 13(k) Of The Seesiiikchange Act And May Be Subject To SanctionS&d
Violations. Section 13(k) of the Securities Exchange Act of4,98 amended (the "Exchange Act") provides thiat uinlawful for a company such as o
which has a class of securities registered undetidde12(b) of the Exchange Act to, directly or imedtly, including through any subsidiary, exter
maintain credit in the form of a personal loan tdar any director or executive officer of the coamy. Issuers violating Section 13(k) of the ExcleaAg!
may be subject to civil sanctions, including injtime remedies and monetary penalties, as welliasiral sanctions. The imposition of any of suchcgms
on the Company may have a material adverse effeoupobusiness, financial position, results of aiens or cash flows.
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During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, we enladns aggregating approximately $1,052,000 toCGhairman and Chief Executive Offii
Anthony So. Management believed at the time thatdans were made that these loans were permissiblelid not violate Section 13(k) of the Exche
Act, because Mr. So would be able to repay theafimibunt by foregoing his salary and accrued anleask payments until the loans had been paid in ful

We advanced the funds to Mr. So on two separatasimes, and Mr. So directed that his salary paysn@nd accrued annual leave payments be
to offset the amounts that we loaned to him. Initead Mr. Albert So and Mr. Andrew So, who are ioffrs and directors of the Company, directec
Company to use their accrued annual leave paynterpartially satisfy the amounts due to the Compfrayn Mr. Anthony So. On March 31, 2014,
amount due to the Company from Mr. So was $166,067August 7, 2014, Mr. So paid $166,157 to the gamy to fully repay the amounts loaned to |
The loans were non-interest bearing. See "Majore3irdders and Related Party Transactions."

Notwithstanding Mr., Anthony So's repayment in foflithe loans made to him, those loans constituielation of Section 13(k) of the Exchange
and Section 402(a) of Sarbanes-Oxley.

As a result of this inadvertent violation, the Bibadopted a policy regarding loans or advancesydxecutive Officer or Director of the Compa
The policy provides that "The Company shall noedily or indirectly, including through any subsigiaextend or maintain credit to, or arrange foz
extension of credit, or renew an extension of ¢redithe form of a personal loan to or for anydaiior or Executive Officer (or equivalent thereof)the
Company or any subsidiary of the Company."

Our Operating Results And Stock Price Are SubjectVide Fluctuations. Our quarterly and annual operating results aectfd by a wide varie
of factors that could materially and adversely effeet sales, gross profit and profitability. Th@uld result from any one or a combination of dagt man
of which are beyond our control. Results of operatin any period should not be considered indieadf results to be expected in any future peraot
fluctuations in operating results may also resuftuctuations in the market price of our commarckt

Our Results Could Be Affected By Changes In Cupréhachange Rates.Changes in currency rates involving the Hong K@ajlar or Chines
Renminbi could increase our expensé&uring the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 2848 2014, our financial results were affected byrency
fluctuations, resulting in a total foreign exchangss of approximately $703,000, $261,000 and 0™, respectively. Generally, our revenues arlectai
in United States Dollars. Our costs and expense@aid in United States Dollars, Hong Kong Dollaasd Chinese Renminbi. We face a variety of
associated with changes among the relative valubesie currencies. Appreciation of the Chineseni¥eni against the Hong Kong Dollar and the Un
States Dollar would increase our expenses wherslai into United States Dollars and could maltgrind adversely affect our margins and resul
operations. If the trend of Chinese Renminbi agipt®n continues against the Hong Kong Dollar #mel United States Dollar, our operating costs
further increase and our financial results willdziversely affected. In addition, a significant alemation in the Chinese Renminbi or Hong Kong Dotiaulc
have a material adverse effect upon our resultpefations. If we determined to pass onto ourornsts through price increases the effect of ine®asth
Chinese Renminbi relative to the Hong Kong Dollad ¢he United States Dollar, it would make our picid more expensive in global markets, such ¢
United States and the European Union. This coesdlt in the loss of customers, who may seek, &ndhte to obtain, products and services compata
those we offer in lowecost regions of the world. If we did not increasg prices to pass on the effect of increasesenCthinese Renminbi relative to
Hong Kong Dollar and the United States Dollar, margins and profitability would suffer.
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Protection And Infringement Of Intellectual Propert We have no patents, licenses, franchises, caoosssr royalty agreements that are mat
to our business. We have obtained a trademarktration in Hong Kong for the marks BONSO and MODW$onnection with certain electronic appara
Unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspecisuofproducts or trademarks or to obtain and ufarmation that we regard as proprietary. Poli
unauthorized use of our products is difficult. Quneans of protecting our proprietary rights may betadequate. In addition, the laws of some fa
countries do not protect our proprietary right@asogreat an extent as do the laws of the Unite@$StaDur failure to adequately protect our prdprieright:
may allow third parties to duplicate our productdevelop functionally equivalent or superior teglugy. In addition, our competitors may indepertt§
develop similar technology or design around ouppgdary intellectual property.

Further, we may be notified that we are infringpagents, trademarks, copyrights or other intellelgtuoperty rights owned by other parties. Ir
event of an infringement claim, we may be requiedpend a significant amount of money to develowminfringing alternative or to obtain licenses.
may not be successful in developing such an afiemnar obtaining a license on reasonable termat, &ll. Any litigation, even without merit, coutdsult ir
substantial costs and diversion of resources aunlild@mve a material adverse effect on our busiaedsesults of operations.

Cancellations Or Delays In Orders Could Materiafynd Adversely Affect Our Gross Margins And Opegatilcome. Sales to our OEM custom
are primarily based on purchase orders we recedre fime to time rather than firm, lorigem purchase commitments. Although it is our gehngractice t
purchase raw materials only upon receiving a puwehader, for certain customers we will occasignplirchase raw materials based on such custc
rolling forecasts. Further, during times of potentomponent shortages we have purchased, andcor@inue to purchase, raw materials and comp:
parts in the expectation of receiving purchasersréa products that use these components. Ievbat actual purchase orders are delayed, areoeit/et
or are cancelled, we would experience increaseghiiovy levels or possible wriiewns of raw material inventory that could matdyiaind adversely affe
our business and operating results.

We Generally Have No Written Agreements With Sergpllo Obtain Components, And Our Margins And OfregaResults Could Suffer Fre
Increases In Component Price We are typically responsible for purchasing congrs used in manufacturing products for our custsmWe generally «
not have written agreements with our suppliersashgonents. This typically results in our bearing tisk of component price increases because webe
unable to procure the required materials at a peicel necessary to generate anticipated margims the orders of our customers. Prices of compisnaa)
increase in the future for a variety of reasongcakdingly, additional increases in component riceuld materially and adversely affect our grossgims
and results of operations.
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Certain Legal Consequences of Foreign Incorporatioand Operations

Judgments Against The Company And Management MaRifBeult To Obtain Or Enforce. We are a holding corporation organized a
International Business Company under the laws @fBtitish Virgin Islands ("BVI"), and our principaiperating subsidiaries are organized under the
Hong Kong and the laws of the PRC. Our principaoative offices are located in Hong Kong and tREP Outside the United States, it may be diffiéor
investors to enforce judgments obtained againsh @&tions brought in the United States, includaogions predicated upon the civil liability proviss o
United States federal securities laws. In addjtioost of our officers and directors reside outsideUnited States, and the assets of these peaseiscate
outside the United States. As a result, it maybeopossible for investors to effect service ofcpss within the United States upon these persottsanforc
against the Company or these persons judgmentgated upon the liability provisions of United Stmffederal securities laws. Our Hong Kong couase
our British Virgin Islands counsel have advised tihere is substantial doubt as to the enforcaglaljainst us or any of our directors or officerrigina
actions or in actions for enforcement of judgmesftbnited States courts in claims for liability ledson the civil liability provisions of United Seat feder:
securities laws.

No treaty exists between Hong Kong or the BritisiigW Islands and the United States providing foe treciprocal enforcement of fore
judgments. However, the courts of Hong Kong andBtitish Virgin Islands are generally prepared ¢oept a foreign judgment as evidence of a debtAln
action may then be commenced in Hong Kong or thisBrVirgin Islands for recovery of this debt. AoHg Kong or British Virgin Islands court will or
accept a foreign judgment as evidence of a debifdue

® the judgment is for a liquidated amount in a ciadtter;

® the judgment is final and conclusi

® the judgment is not, directly or indirectly, foretipayment of foreign taxes, penalties, fines orgds of a like nature (in this regard, a H
Kong court is unlikely to accept a judgment for amount obtained by doubling, trebling or otherwmaltiplying a sum assessed
compensation for the loss or damage sustainedéopetson in whose favor the judgment was giv

® the judgment was not obtained by actual or consteifraud or dures:

® the foreign court has taken jurisdiction on groutitst are recognized by the common law rules aftdlict of laws in Hong Kong or tl
British Virgin Islands;

® the proceedings in which the judgment was obtaimex not contrary to natural justice (i.e. the @piof fair adjudication)

® the proceedings in which the judgment was obtaitiesl judgment itself and the enforcement of thegjoent are not contrary to the pu
policy of Hong Kong or the British Virgin Island

® the person against whom the judgment is givenhgestito the jurisdiction of a foreign court; a
® the judgment is not on a claim for contributionr@spect of damages awarded by a judgment, whithifidier Section 7 of the Protectior

Trading Interests Ordinance, Chapter 7 of the Lafitdong Kong.

Enforcement of a foreign judgment in Hong Konglae British Virgin Islands may also be limited ofemted by applicable bankruptcy, insolver
liquidation, arrangement and moratorium, or simigavs relating to or affecting creditors' rightsgeally, and will be subject to a statutory limidat of time
within which proceedings may be brought.
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Because We Are Incorporated In The British Virgilahds, You May Not Have The Same Protections Aeltiders Of U.S. CorporationsWe
are organized under the laws of the British Virtglands. Principles of law relating to matterseafing the validity of corporate procedures, titiciary
duties of our management, directors and controliingreholders and the rights of our shareholdéfer diom, and may not be as protective of sharééc
as, those that would apply if we were incorporated jurisdiction within the United States. Ouretitors have the power to take certain actionsowi
shareholder approval, including amending our Memaduan or Articles of Association, which are the termsed in the British Virgin Islands fo
corporation's charter and bylaws, respectively, apgroving certain fundamental corporate transasfioncluding reorganizations, certain merger
consolidations and the sale or transfer of asdataddition, there is doubt that the courts of Bnitish Virgin Islands would enforce liabilitiesgdicated upc
United States federal securities laws.

Future Issuances Of Preference Shares Could Mdlgrand Adversely Affect The Holders Of Our ComiBbares Or Delay Or Prevent A Cha
Of Control. Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provitle ability to issue an aggregate of 10,000,000eshaf preferred stock in four class
While no preferred shares are currently issuedutstanding, we may issue preferred shares in tiueefu Future issuance of preferred shares coutdriably
and adversely affect the rights of the holdersusfapmmon shares, dilute the common shareholdeldinys or delay or prevent a change of control.

Our Shareholders Do Not Have The Same Protectiongnformation Generally Available To Shareholder$ @.S. Corporations Because ~
Reporting Requirements For Foreign Private Issutms More Limited Than Those Applicable To Publicg@oations Organized In The United Stat We
are a foreign private issuer within the meaningutés promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAtB34 (the "Exchange Act"). We are not subje
certain provisions of the Exchange Act applicabl&tited States public companies, including: tles under the Exchange Act requiring the filinghathe
SEC of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or currepores on Form 8, the sections of the Exchange Act regulating gbkcitation of proxies, consents
authorizations in respect to a security registenedier the Exchange Act and the sections of the & Act requiring insiders to file public repoofstheil
stock ownership and trading activities and esthblgs insider liability for profits realized from grishortswing" trading transaction (i.e., a purchase ameg
or sale and purchase, of the issuer's equity s@suwithin six months or less). Because we atesnbject to these rules, our shareholders araffarded th:
same protections or information generally availdablevestors in public companies organized inliniged States.

Our Board's Ability To Amend Our Charter Withouta8tholder Approval Could Have Arifiakeover Effects That Could Prevent A Chang
Control. As permitted by the laws of the British Virgindads, our Memorandum and Articles of Associatiosmyrbe amended by our board of direc
without shareholder approval. This includes amesmisn to increase or reduce our authorized capitaks Our board's ability to amend our che
documents without shareholder approval could hheeeffect of delaying, deterring or preventing arge in control of Bonso, including a tender offa
purchase our common shares at a premium over thentunarket price.

We Have Not Paid Dividends Since 2007 And May MgtBvidends In The Future We have not paid dividends on our Common Stoo&esR007%
and we may not be able to declare dividends, obtad of directors may decide not to declare @rdsb, in the future. We will determine the amouwi
any dividends when and if they are declared, irftihgre at the time of declaration.
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Item 4. Information on the Company
History and Development of the Company

Bonso Electronics International Inc. was formedtagust 8, 1988 as a limited liability InternatiorBlsiness Company under the laws of the BI
Virgin Islands under the name "Golden Virtue Lindite On September 14, 1988, we changed our narBengo Electronics International, Inc. We ope
under the BVI Business Companies Act.

Effective as of May 1,2001 we acquired 100% oféheity of Korona Haushaltswaren GmbH & Co. KG,maited liability partnership registered
Germany ("Korona").Korona markets consumer scaledyts throughout Europe to retail merchandiserd distributors. These products fea
contemporary designs using the latest materialsatindctive packaging. Effective March 31, 200@ sold assets of Korona to Beurer GmbH, inclu
inventories, accounts receivable, toolings andlettial property rights. Korona completed italigation in February 2012.

Effective as of August 1, 2002, we acquired 51%haf equity of Gram Precision Scales Inc. ("GramcBien"). Gram Precision was primal
engaged in the distribution and marketing of podaaties in the United States, Canada and Euroffectige November 1, 2008, we sold our 51% of
equity of Gram Precision to Mohan Thadani, the firmof Gram Precision.

Our corporate administrative matters are condutttezligh our registered agent, HWR Services Limid€@. Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, Briti
Virgin Islands. Our principal executive officesedbcated at Unit 1404, 14/F, Cheuk Nang Centrdjll®vood Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kor
Our telephone number is (852) 2605-5822, our faibsimumber is (852) 2691-1724, ourmeil address is info@bonso.com and our websi
www.bonso.com.
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Our principal capital expenditures on propertynpknd equipment over the last three years arfeghtbelow:

2012 2013 2014
Property plant & equipment and land use ri¢ $3,415,00( $1,412,00( $2,898,00(

Our capital expenditures include construction-ingoess and the purchase of machinery used in tduiption of certain of our products.

All of the foregoing capital expenditures were figad principally from internally generated fundscept for two motor vehicles purchased \
capital leases.

Business Overview

Bonso Electronics International Inc. designs, dep®| produces and sells electronic setsmed and wireless products for private label oa
equipment manufacturers (individually "OEM" or, leatively, "OEM's"), original brand manufactureiadividually "OBM" or, collectively, "OBM's") an
original design manufacturers (individually "ODM, @ollectively, "ODM's").

Since 1989, we have manufactured all of our pradirctChina in order to take advantage of the loaxarhead costs and competitive labor re

We began production in Xinxing factory during tligcél year ended March 31, 2013. We moved all ygecthdn processes from our Shenzhen factory t
Xinxing factory during the fiscal year ended Mah 2014, and we rented out the old Shenzhen fatdax third party as a source of rental income.
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Products

Our sensobased scale products include bathroom, kitchenceoffewelry, laboratory, postal and industrial Issathat are used in consun
commercial and industrial applications. These potglaccounted for 95% of revenue for the fiscak yaaled March 31, 2012, 90% for 2013 and 959
2014. We believe that our bathroom and indussgales will continue to be a major portion of ocales revenue as we are able to secure ordersadin
major customers.

The Company has begun to produce certain elecp@atare products, including a bark control devithese products accounted for 4% of rev
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 (2013: 804,2:3%).

We also receive revenue from certain customerghdevelopment and manufacture of tooling and mglébr scales and pet electronics produ
Generally, these tools and moulds are used byruhéomanufacture of products. We also generatessales of scrap materials. These revenues aec
for approximately 2% of net sales for the fiscahngeended March 31, 2012, 2% for 2013 and 1% faA20

24




The following table sets forth the percentage dfsaes for each of the product lines mentionedr@bjor the fiscal years ended March 31, 2
2013, and 2014:

Year ended March 31,

Product Line 2012 2013 2014

Scales 95% 9C% 95%
Pet Electronics Produc 3% 8% 4%
Others 2% 2% 1%
Total 10C% 10C% 10(%

Business Strategy

We believe that our future growth depends uponatnility to strengthen our customer base by enhgnaird diversifying our products, increas
the number of customers and expanding into additiorarkets while maintaining or increasing saleswfproducts to existing customers, and focusimyr
the production and sale of higher margin produnts eliminating or decreasing manufacture and shleveer margin products. Our future growth and
ability to become profitable are also dependentnupar ability to control production costs and irase production capacity. Our strategy to achibest
goals is as follows:

Product Enhancement And DiversificationVe continually seek to improve and enhance oistiag products in order to provide a longer prd
life-cycle and to meet increasing customer demanddiftitianal features. Our research and developmtefftare currently working on a variety of proje
to enhance our existing scale products and in tetap scale/meter area. Further, we are developéntain electrical pet care products. See "Prx
Research and Development/Competition" below.

Maintaining And Expanding Business Relations Witistthg Customers. We promote relationships with our significant tamsers through regul
communication, including visiting certain of ourstomers in their home countries and providing dissxess to our manufacturing and quality co
personnel. This access, together with our contmrmuality, has resulted in a relatively low lewa defective products. Moreover, we believe tbai
emphasis on timely delivery, good service and lostdas contributed, and will continue to contréyub good relations with our customers and in&e
orders. Further, we solicit suggestions from austemers for product enhancement and when feagilala, to develop and incorporate the enhancer
suggested by our customers into our products.
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Controlling Production Costs In 1989, recognizing that labor cost was a mé&otor permitting effective competition in the somer electron
products industry, we relocated all of our manufeng operations to China to take advantage ofdige available pool of lowarest manufacturing labc
Continuing this approach and recognizing that latxmsts are significantly lower in Xinxing than imeéhzhen, we moved all of our manufacturing 1
Shenzhen to Xinxing, and we expect to realize agtaoh in our labor costs as a result. In additiwa,have continued to shift production and manufaag
of various parts and components to third party Bepp including plastic injection molded parts amtal parts. In some cases, we have entere
agreements with third parties in which they lease egquipment from us, and then manufacture pardscamponents that we use in assembling our
products. Those third parties provide the workerd supervisors, and the necessary raw materialslédge our machinery or equipment, our dorm
facilities for their workers and supervisory staffid our meals or cafeteria services for the thindy's workers and staff. There are other thindypeontactor
that utilize their own equipment and their own fiéieis in manufacturing specific components or péotr us.

We are actively seeking to control production cdistsuch means as redesigning our existing prodnaisder to decrease material and labor ¢
controlling the number of our employees, increading efficiency of workers by providing regularitiag and tools and redesigning the flow of
production lines.

Increasing Production Capacity In November 2006, Bonso entered into a land lage agreement to acquire 133,500 square metéanis
right for future expansion in Xinxing, China. Wave completed construction of the new manufactuiaedity and moved all manufacturing operationsnf
Shenzhen to Xinxing. Currently, we are completingstruction of the Group's office building on thaXng site, and expect to complete it before the ef
this fiscal year. We intend to carefully monitor @apacity needs and to expand capacity as neyaaghe future.

Increased Focus Upon Manufacturing and Selling ldigMargin Products and the Elimination or Decredrethe Production and Sale of Lov
Margin Products.In seeking to return to profitability, we have arsad our product mix and concluded that we are i@y to return to profitability if wi
eliminate the production and sale of lower margiadpcts that require the employment of larger nuslad workers and the commitment of substa
resources to carry or stock raw materials and compis inventory. We have been in discussions withlargest customer for these low margin electi
scale products and advised that without substaptieé increases, we will not be in position to thame manufacturing these products in the calegdai
beginning January 1, 2015. That customer did ncgeatp the price increases that we requested,saimdthe process of shifting this business to aittve
suppliers. We are optimistic that this will resmlimproved profitability for the Group.
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Customers and Marketing

We sell our products primarily in the United Stadesl Europe. Customers for our products are pilyn@EM's, OBM's and ODM's which marl
the products under their own brand names. We moatio market our products to OEM's, OBM's and Ga'trade shows and viangil, our website ar
facsimile.

Net export sales to customers by geographic arestitating 10% or more of total sales of the Compamnsisted of the following for each of
three years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

Year ended March 31:

2012 2013 2014
$ in thousanc % $ in thousanc % $ in thousanc %
United States of 75 78 81
America 19,94( 23,80¢ 25,20:
Germany 4,98t 18 5,121 17 4,68¢ 15
Total 24,92°¢ 28,92°¢ 29,891

We maintain a marketing and sales team of six geoplso, our experienced engineering teams womcty with our customers to develop |
tailor our products to meet the customers' speaifieds. We market our products primarily througtombination of direct contact by our experienaed i
house technical sales staff and our sales repesarg and through the use of direct mail catalegared product literature. During the fiscal yeanslet
March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, we recorded totainsigsion payments of approximately $4,000, $1,000 &2,000, respectively. In addition,
marketing teams contact existing and potentialarusts by telephone, mail and facsimile and in perso
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Our major sensor-based electronic scale produsteers and their percentage of sales for the firiee fiscal years are below:

Percent of Sales — Year ended March 31.:

Electronics Sensor Customers 2012 2013 2014
Customer A 66% 52% 45%
Customer B 1% 18% 33%
Customer C 14% 13% 9%

Component Parts and Suppliers

We purchase over 1,000 different component pads fmore than 100 major suppliers and are not degrenabon any single supplier for |
components. We purchase components for our preguicharily from suppliers in Japan, Taiwan, Sokitrea, Hong Kong and China.

The price of oil and other raw materials increadedng the fiscal years ended March 31, 2011 arkP 2@sulting in an increase of our compo
part prices. We have taken steps to reduce owsexp to any inability to obtain components by éasting with an increased buffer rate and placinmigic
for components earlier and allowing for longer dety lead times. Because of these actions, weotlexpect to experience any difficulty in obtainimgede
component parts for our products. The price lefehw materials remained stable in the fiscal yeated March 31, 2014, compared to that in thaligea
ended March 31, 2013.

Quality Control

We have received ISO 9001:2000 certification froet DNorske Veritas Certification B.V., the Nethedan The ISO 9001:2000 certification \
awarded to our subsidiary, Bonso Electronics Lithiéad to Bonso Electronics Limited's subsidiary 8oiklectronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited.
have also received certification according to theiEbnmental Management Standards of ISO 14001:28@4O0ccupational Health and Safety Manage
Standard of OHSAS 18001 and management systemddicai devices of ISO13485:2003.
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ISO 9001 is one of the ISO 9000 series of qualistean standards developed by the International idzgtion for Standardization, a worldw
federation of national standards bodies. 1SO 9f@@dvides a model for quality assurance (and coontisuimprovement) in product developm
manufacturing, installation and servicing that feesi on meeting customer requirements. We had IBQ:2000 certification from Det Norske Veri
Certification B.V., the Netherlands for our Shenzliactory. We intend to obtain 1ISO 9001: certifioatfor our new Xinxing subsidiary and our Xinx
manufacturing facility.

By integrating the Occupational Health and Safetgnklgement Standard of OHSAS 18001 into our quality environmental systems, we
created a total Integrated Management System (IMMQ)ality, Environment and Health and Safety by comnmlg 1ISO9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18
into one Quality/Environment/Health and Safety ségition.

ISO 13485 certification ensures that we have impleted and maintained a quality system for the deaigl manufacture of medical devices
allows us to develop and manufacture safe andtaffemedical devices should we choose to do sherfuture.

The European Union has enacted the Restrictiorh@flise of Certain Hazardous Substances in Elekctitd Electronic Equipment Directi
("RoHS"). RoHS prohibits the use of certain subsés, including lead, in certain products. Weedsaithat we are in compliance with RoHS and he¢
supply of compliant components from suppliers.

The Company provides to certain customers an additione to two percent of certain products ordardi@u of a warranty, which are recognize:
cost of sales when these products are shippedstoroers from our facility. In addition, certairoducts sold by the Company are subject to a linpreduc
quality warranty. The Company accrues for estichateurred but unidentified quality issues basedrubistorical activity and known quality issuesiifos!
is probable and can be reasonably estimated. fBinelad limited warranty period is one to threergedQuality returns, refunds, rebates and discan
recorded net of sales if they are within the wasrgreriod. All sales are based upon firm orderthviiked terms and conditions, which generally aatripe
modified. Historically, we have not experiencedtenial differences between our estimated amountgiafity returns, refunds, rebates and discouristia
actual results. In all contracts, there is nogpootection or similar privilege in relation tceteale of goods.
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Patents, Licenses, Trademarks, Franchises, Concess$ and Royalty Agreements

We have obtained a trademark registration in Homgd<and China for the marks BONSO and MODUS in ection with certain electror
apparatus.

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark aadée secret laws, employee and third party disolosure agreements and other intelle:
property protection methods to protect our proprietights. There can be no assurance that thairtieg will not assert infringement or other claiaggins
us with respect to any existing or future produdtée cannot assure you that licenses would beablailf any of our technology was successfully iemajec
by a third party, or if it became desirable to @s® thirdparty technology to enhance the Company's produkcitsgation to protect our propriete
information or to determine the validity of any rthparty claims could result in a significant expemgeus and divert the efforts of our technical
management personnel, whether or not such litigasialetermined in our favor.

While we have no knowledge that we are infringipgmi the proprietary rights of any third party, #thean be no assurance that such claims wi
be asserted in the future with respect to existinfyture products. Any such assertion by a thaty could require us to pay royalties, to paotté in costl
litigation and defend licensees in any such suispant to indemnification agreements, or to reffeam selling an alleged infringing product or see:

Product Research and Development

The major responsibility of the product designessh and development personnel is to develop esdlipe designs to the satisfaction of, ar
accordance with, the specifications provided by @®&M's, OBM's and ODM's. We believe our enginegramd product development capabilities
important to the future success of our business aODM, we take specifications that are proviteds by the customer and design a product to thest
specifications. Some of our product design, reseand development activities are customer fundebiaae under agreements with specific custome
specific products. To reduce costs, we conductresearch and development at our facilities in @hilwe principally employ Chinese engineers
technicians at costs that are substantially lolwantthose that would be required in Hong Kong.Matrch 31, 2014, we employed 24 individuals in H
Kong and China for our engineering staff, who dreagious times engaged in research and developnTérg major responsibility of the product desig
research and development personnel is to develdparduce designs of scales products to the setiimfaof, and in accordance with, the specificad
provided by the ODM's and OEM's. We anticipaténgimdditional research and development persoonaleet the increased demand for scale products.
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Competition

The manufacture and sale of electronic sebs@ed and wireless products is highly competiti@@mpetition is primarily based upon unit pr
product quality, reliability, product features aménagement's reputation for integrity. Accordingbljance is placed on research and developmenéew
products, line extensions and technological, qgalitd other continuous product improvement. Tharebe no assurance that we will enjoy the sameee
of success in these efforts in the future. Re$eand development expenses aggregated approxing&a&R;000 during the fiscal year ended March 312
$396,000 during the fiscal year ended March 31328id $366,000 during fiscal year ended March 8142

Seasonality

Generally, the first calendar quarter of each yeaypically the slowest sales period because camufacturing facilities in China are closed for
weeks for the Chinese New Year holidays to permipleyees to travel to their homes in China. Initold, sales during the first calendar quarter cles:
products usually dip following the increase in salering the Christmas season. A greater numbeuro$ales of scales products occur between théhman
July and October for shipment in preparation of @wistmas holiday. Throughout the remainder ef ykar, our products do not appear to be subj
significant seasonal variation. However, pastssphtterns may not be indicative of future perfaroea

Transportation

Typically, we sell products either F.O.B. Hong Koiantian (Shenzhen) or Nansha (Guangzhou), whieans that our customers are respon
for the transportation of finished products fromngoKong, Yantian (Shenzhen) or Nansha (Guangzhouheir final destination. Transportation
components and finished products to and from thetpaf shipment is by truck. To date, we have heen materially affected by any transporte
problems. However, transportation difficultieseafing air cargo or shipping, such as an extendteslie of ports that materially disrupts the flofvooir
customers' products into the United States, cowdterially and adversely affect our sales and marijras a result, our customers delay or canaigrsro
seek concessions to offset expediting chargesitioeyred pending resolution of the problems caudiiregport closures.
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Government Regulation

We are subject to comprehensive and changing fordéagleral, provincial, state and local environmaénéquirements, including those goverr
discharges to the air and water, the handling aspodal of solid and hazardous waste and the reiediof contamination associated with releast
hazardous substances. We believe that we arenipl@nce with current environmental requiremenievertheless, we use hazardous substances
operations and, as is the case with manufactunegeneral, if a release of hazardous substancessoon or from our properties we may be held liatie
may be required to pay the cost of remediatione dtmount of any resulting liability could be maaéri

Foreign Operations

A significant amount of our products are manufastiuat our factories located in China. While Chivas been granted permanent most fa\
nation trade status in the United States througlkritry into the World Trade Organization, contrsies between the United States and China may tua
threaten the status quo involving trade betweeruthited States and China. These controversiesicoaterially and adversely affect our businessabyong
other things, causing our products in the Uniteate3tto become more expensive, resulting in a textuin the demand for our products by customerthé
United States.

Sovereignty over Hong Kong reverted to China ory Jul1997. The 1984 SinBritish Joint Declaration, the 1990 Basic Law ofrigoKong, th
1992 United Stateklong Kong Policy Act and other agreements proviol@es indication of the business climate we believié a@ntinue to exist in Hor
Kong. Hong Kong remains a Special Administrativeg®n ("SAR") of China, with certain autonomiesrfréghe Chinese government. Hong Kong is ¢
member of the World Trade Organization. It hasasafe customs territory from China, with separatifftrates and export control procedures. It b
separate intellectual property registration systdfhe Hong Kong Dollar is legal tender in the SARely convertible and not subject to foreign cony
exchange controls by China. The SAR governmenshbsresponsibility for tax policies, though thkitise government must approve the SAR's buc
Notwithstanding the provisions of these internagloagreements, we cannot be assured of the codtistability of political, legal, economic or otl
conditions in Hong Kong. No treaty exists betwddéomng Kong and the United States providing for tkeiprocal enforcement of foreign judgmet
Accordingly, Hong Kong courts might not enforce gatents predicated on the federal securities lawth®fUnited States, whether arising from act
brought in the United States or, if permitted, iorg Kong.
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Organizational Structure

We have two whollyewned Hong Kong subsidiaries, Bonso Electronicsitech("BEL") and Bonso Advanced Technology Limi{¢BATL"). Both
BEL and BATL were organized under the laws of H&mng and are responsible for the design, developmamnufacture and sale of our products.

BEL has one active Hong Kong subsidiary, Bonso stment Limited ("BIL"). BlLwas organized under the laws of Hong Kong and leas lise
to acquire and hold our investment properties ingilong and China.

BEL also has one active PRC subsidiary, Bonso Eleits (Shenzhen) Company, Limited ("BESCL"), whistorganized under the laws of the F
and is used to manufacture our products up to dardfd4. BESCL has leased its factory to a tpady from August 2013 to August 2019, and willeie
a monthly rental income of approximately $104,086IWAugust 2016, and will increase to approximgi®114,000 from August 2016 to August 2019.

BATL has three active PRC subsidiaries, Bonso AdednTechnology (Xinxing) Company, Limited ("BATXXC), which is organized under t
laws of the PRC and is used to acquire and holdheur manufacturing facility that is being constattin Xinxing, Guangdong, China, Xinxing An Bz
Metal and Plastic Manufacturing Company Limited IB"), in Xinxing, Guangdong, PRC, for hiring worlsefor assembly of scales and pet electrc
products, and Bonso Technology (Shenzhen) Companigdd ("BTL"), in Shenzhen, PRC, to provide protldesign and distribution services for the Group.

We also have another wholly-owned British Virgitareds subsidiary, Modus Enterprise International In
As of March 31, 2009, Modus Enterprise Internatidna. owned 100% of Korona. Korona was engagecharketing, distributing and retaili

consumer bathroom and kitchen scale products thmutgeurope. Effective March 31, 2009, we soldaiarassets of Korona to Beurer GmbH, and Kao
completed its liquidation during the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2012.
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Effective November 1, 2008, we sold our 51% of ¢lggity of Gram Precision to Mohan Thadani, the ftemof Gram Precision. Gram Precis
was primarily engaged in the distribution and mérigeof pocket and industrial scales in the Unigdtes, Canada and Europe.

Property, Plant and Equipment
British Virgin Islands

Our corporate administrative offices are locatedCedgmuir Chambers, Road Town, Tortola, BritishgifirIslands and corporate administra
matters are conducted through our registered ag®R Services Limited, located at P.O. Box 71, Rdadn, Tortola, British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong

We own a residential property in Hong Kong, whishdcated at Savanna Garden, House No. 27, Tal&e,Territories, Hong Kong. House No.
consists of approximately 2,475 square feet plug7asquare foot terrace and a 2,308 square fodegarea. The use of House No. 27 is providediager:
to Mr. Anthony So, the Chairman and Chief Executfécer of the Company.

China

Our Shenzhen factory in China is located at Shenai¢he DaYang Synthetical Development Distritbse to the border between Hong Kong
China. This factory consists of one factory buitgli which contain approximately 186,000 square, fered workers' dormitories, containing approximg
103,000 square feet, a canteen and recreationragné@proximately 26,000 square feet, an officéding, consisting of approximately 26,000 squazet
and two staff quarters for our supervisory emplaye®nsisting of approximately 34,000 square fieeta total of approximately 375,000 square feEhe
Group entered into a rental agreement in June 2018nt out the Shenzhen factory to a third pamynf August 2013 to August 2019, and will recer'
monthly rental income of approximately $104,000luktigust 2016, and will increase to approximatéhi4,000 from August 2016 to August 2019.
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We also own one residential property in Shenzhdiclwis located at Lakeview Mansion,BC, Hujinju Building No. 63, Xinan Road, Boach
Baoan Shenzhen, China. It consists of approximdté91 square feet and is rented to an unaffdigkérd party for an aggregate monthly rental of B
2,300, or approximately $371.

We also own two office units in Beijing, namely tmil2 and 13 on the third floor, Block A of SunghiPlaza in Beijing, China. Unit 12 consist
1,102 square feet and Unit 13 consists of 1,86@rggieet. One Unit is rented to an unaffiliateiddtiparty for an aggregate monthly rental of apprately
RMB 11,424, or approximately $1,843, while the otheit is rented to another unaffiliated third gaidr an aggregate monthly rental of approximaRiB
9,000 or approximately $1,452.

Our Xinxing factory is located in Xinxing Higlech Industrial Estate, Xinxing, Yunfu City, Guangg, China. This factory land area is 1,448
square feet, with one factory building consistii@25,000 square feet, one warehouse consistiri @00 square feet, and three dormitories congistl

85,000 square feet in total. We are currently tontng an office building on our land in XinxinglVe expect to complete construction by the enthia
fiscal year, and the building has 49,000 square fee

Adequacy of Facilities
We believe our manufacturing complexes will be aee for our reasonably foreseeable needs.
Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable to Bonso.

35




Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospés

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with Iltem 3. — "Key InformationSelected Financial Data" and the Consolid
Financial Statements and Notes to ConsolidatechEiabStatements included elsewhere in this AnReglort.

Overview

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, thenBany experienced increased revenues. Our owadal increased due to higher demand fc
products.

We derive our revenues principally from the sals@fisobased scales manufactured in China, which repr&&ntof total sales for the fiscal y
ended March 31, 2014. As mentioned in Item 3. ey'Hnformation —Risk Factors," we are dependent upon a limited rarmald major customers fot
significant portion of our revenues. Our revenaes business operation are subject to fluctuaticthdre is a loss of orders from any of our lar
customers. Further, the pricing of our scale potglis becoming increasingly competitive, espegi@lour customers in the United States and Germahg
contributed approximately 96% of our revenue duthmgfiscal year ended March 31, 2014.
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During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, nktssitom continuing operations were approximate?$,$82,000, and net loss was approximi
$902,000. During the fiscal year ended March 30132 net sales from continuing operations were @pprately $30,386,000, and net loss
approximately $754,000. During the fiscal year ehiftarch 31, 2014, net sales from continuing openativere approximately $31,305,000, and net los
approximately $221,000.

Labor costs per worker are increasing in Chinaadeordance with the new minimum wage set by thallauthorities, we increased the minin
wage for our labor in Shenzhen from RMB 1,320 (opraximately $206) per month beginning April 1, 2010 RMB 1,500 (or approximately $238)
month beginning February 1, 2012, and then to RM&Q (or approximately $254) per month beginningréial, 2013, and then to RMB 1,808
approximately $293) per month beginning FebruargQi,4 in Shenzhen, PRC. The minimum wage was RMRQOL(or approximately $164) per montt
Xinxing, Guangdong, PRC beginning May 1, 2013. bééeve that increased labor costs in China willeha significant effect on our total productionts
and results of operations and that we will not ble o continue to increase our production at oanafacturing facilities without substantially inasng ou
non{production salaries and related costs. Our labstscrepresented approximately 14.5% of our tatadiyction costs in the fiscal year ended Marct
2014, compared to 15.8% in the fiscal year endettMal, 2013. However, the total labor costs iaseel from approximately $4,004,000 in the fiscal
ended March 31, 2013, to approximately $4,151,80teé fiscal year ended March 31, 2014. The ineréa®verall labor costs was the result of seves
payment made to the terminated workers of Shenfdetory as we transferred production processes fsamShenzhen factory to our Xinxing factory.
started hiring workers to work in our Xinxing faggaduring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.r&tean be no assurance that labor costs will e
increase or that any additional increase in lalstwill not have a material adverse effect upanresults of operations.

We have continued to shift production and manufaoguof various parts and components to third patypliers, including plastic injection molc
parts and metal parts. In some cases, we havesdriteo agreements with third parties in which thegse our equipment from us, and then manufaptunte
and components that we use in assembling our firducts. Those third parties provide the workers supervisors, and the necessary raw material
lease our machinery or equipment, our dormitorylifees for their workers and supervisory staff,daour meals or cafeteria services for the thirdys
workers and staff. There are other third party @artors that utilize their own equipment and tlesin facilities in manufacturing specific componeotgart:
for us.

We have not experienced significant difficultiesistaining raw materials for our products, and nganaent does not anticipate any such difficu
in the foreseeable future. Prices of raw mateiiadseased during the fiscal year ended March 8112but did not vary significantly during the fidg/ear.
ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014. There caw lassurance that raw material costs will not flat# or that any additional increase in raw matedst:
will not have a material adverse effect upon osults of operations.
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In seeking to return to profitability, we have arsgd our product mix and concluded that we are tilady to return to profitability if we elimina
the production and sale of lower margin products tequire the employment of larger numbers of wosland the commitment of substantial resourc
carry or stock raw materials and components invgnie have been in discussions with our largestauer for these low margin electronic scale pres
and advised that without substantial price increase will not be in position to continue manufaatgrthese products in the calendar year beginramgian
1, 2015. That customer did not agree to the priceeases that we requested, and is in the proéedsfiing this business to alternative suppliéfée are
optimistic that this will result in improved prddibility for the Group.

Operating Results

The following table sets forth selected income @eta percentage of net sales for the periodsatetic

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

Statement of Operations Data 2012 2013 2014
% % %

Net sales 100.( 100.( 100.(
Cost of sale: (85.9) (83.1) (91.5)
Gross profil 14.€ 16.€ 8.5
Selling expense (2.0 (0.9) 1.2
Salaries and related co: (9.5) (8.€) (9.5
Research and development expet (1.2 1.9 1.2
Administration and general expent (9.9 (7.9) (9.5)
Gain from disposal of subsidia 54 - -
Other income 0.4 0.t 2.8
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipn 0.1 0.C 11
(Loss) / profit from operatior (0.5) 2.9 0.€
Interest incomt 0.C 0.C 0.2
Interest expense (0.9 (0.2) (0.9)
Foreign exchange lo: (2.€) (0.9) (1.9)
Loss before income tax (3.9) (2.9) (0.7)
Income tax expenst (0.0) (0.7 (0.0
Net loss (3.9 (2.5 (0.7)
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Fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 compared to fiscgbar ended March 31, 2013

Net Sales Our sales increased approximately $919,000,.@¥3from approximately $30,386,000 for the fisgahr ended March 31, 2013
approximately $31,305,000 for the fiscal year enbiedich 31, 2014. The increase in sales was priyndudie to an increased demand for our electrorates
products.

Gross Profit. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue deatgasapproximately 8.5% during the fiscal year ehbitarch 31, 2014, as compare!
approximately 16.9% during the fiscal year endeddifad1, 2013. The lower gross margin was primatily result of the increased labor costs dt
termination of all direct labor in our Shenzhentéag during the transfer of production processesunXinxing factory, and for an increase in sulicacting
costs for subcontracting work to third parties dgrour loss of production capacity during the tfansin addition, we incurred approximately $3@Qanort
in carriage inward during the fiscal year ended éa81, 2014 for the transfer of production proceseghe Xinxing factory.

Selling Expenses Selling expenses increased by approximately 0®1from approximately $268,000 for the fiscaliyeaded March 31, 2013
approximately $389,000 for the fiscal year endeddi&81, 2014, or 45%. The increase was the re$uficreased air shipments due to delay in delivd
our products, due to insufficient workers emplogftér we moved all production to the Xinxing fagtor

Salaries And Related CostsSalaries and related costs increased by appateiyn$356,000, or 13.6%, from approximately $2,600 for the fisc:
year ended March 31, 2013 to approximately $2,98Bf0r the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014. Tieedase in salaries and related costs was printhe
result of an increase in salary of staff in China€cordance with the increase in minimum wage,s&verance payment to staff as a result of terioimat
all staff in our Shenzhen factory during the trensff production processes to our Xinxing factory.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses decreasediapgiely $30,000, or 7.6%, from approximately $8@® for th
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 to approximat&d@6$000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 20The decrease in research and developmen
primarily the result of decreased headcount of megyis in accordance with decreased projects dthimdiscal year ended March 31, 2014. Researc
development expenses account for 1.2% of net revéonthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, andLf8% of net revenue for the fiscal year ended ki
31, 2013.

Administration And General Expenses.

Administration and general expenses increased psoajmately $562,000, or 23.4%, from approximate®402,000 for the fiscal year ended M:
31, 2013 to approximately $2,964,000 for the figemr ended March 31,2014. The increase is priynaitributable to an approximately $419,000 los$air
value of forward contracts for the fiscal year ehdiéarch 31, 2014, compared to a $87,000 gain inviaue of forward contracts for the fiscal yeadet
March 31, 2013.
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Other Income.Other income increased approximately $563,0004d4r2%6, from approximately $165,000 for the fiscehy ended March 31, 2C
to approximately $728,000 for the fiscal year endtadch 31, 2014. The increase was primarily theulteof the rental income generated from leasire
Shenzhen factory during the fiscal year ended Madg2014.

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmer gain of $3,595,000 for the disposal of propeplant and equipment related to the Shen
factory was recorded when we transferred all prédngrocess to the Xinxing factory and the Shenziagtory was leased out for rental income. Tlvese
a $2,000 gain on disposal of property, plant andpegent during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013

(Loss) / Profit From Operations As a result of the factors described above, imedrom operations increased by 173.2% from a lof
approximately $403,000 for the fiscal year endeddt&81, 2013 to a profit of approximately $295,000the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014.

Interest Income Interest income increased to approximately $82for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, aspaoed to approximately $7,C
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, duedeposit placed in high interest yield investmentrduthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2014.

Interest Expense Interest expense increased approximately $68,60000.0%, from approximately $68,000 for the disgear ended March &
2013 to approximately $136,000 for the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2014. This increase was primanyresult of an increase in utilization of banl
facilities including short term bank loan and bawerdraft during the fiscal year ended March 31,20
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Foreign Exchange Los&oreign exchange loss increased approximately $083or 70.1%, from approximately $261,000 for fiseal year ende
March 31, 2013 to approximately $444,000 for tlsedi year ended March 31, 2014. This increasepwamsrily the result of the fluctuation and appadizir
of the Chinese Renminbi compared to the UnitedeStAbllar during the fiscal year ended March 31,420

Income Tax Expenselncome tax expense was $nil during the fiscalrynded March 31, 2014, as compared to $29,000gdthe fiscal year end
March 31, 2013.

Net Loss As a result of the factors described above Josst decreased from a loss of approximately $784{00the fiscal year ended March
2013 to a loss of approximately $221,000 for tkedl year ended March 31, 2014, a decrease irfagsgproximately $533,000, or 70.7%.

Foreign Currency Translation AdjustmenEoreign currency translation adjustments, net xfitecreased from approximately $62,000 for thed!
year ended March 31, 2013 to a gain of approxima&257,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@licrease of approximately $195,000, or 314
The increased foreign currency translation adjustmeet of tax, was primarily the result of increddluctuation of the Chinese Renminbi againstUnéec
States Dollar.

Comprehensive (Loss) / Incomfes a result of the factors described above, congirelie gain increased from a loss of approxime$éB2,000 fc
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 to an incofre@proximately $36,000 for the fiscal year endeardh 31, 2014, an increase of approximately $72x
or 105.2%.
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Fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 compared to fiscgbar ended March 31, 2012

Net Sales Our sales increased approximately $3,704,00030%, from approximately $26,682,000 for the dlsgear ended March 31, 2012
approximately $30,386,000 for the fiscal year enllliedich 31, 2013. The increase in sales was priyndtié to an increased demand for our scales preduct

Gross Profit. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue inctetsapproximately 16.9% during the fiscal yeareshtarch 31, 2013, as compare
approximately 14.6% during the fiscal year endeddii&81, 2012. The higher gross margin was primahnié result of the reduced labor costs due tceam
in efficiency and transfer of production procesgesur Xinxing factory. Our labor costs represdrapproximately 15.8% of our total production castthe
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, compared to 17rB#te fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Selling Expenses Selling expenses increased slightly by approtéige$1,000 from approximately $267,000 for thedisyear ended March !
2012 to approximately $268,000 for the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2013, or 0.4%.

Salaries And Related CostsSalaries and related costs increased by appateiyn$101,000, or 4.0%, from approximately $2,806, for the fisc:
year ended March 31, 2012 to approximately $2,8%¥for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013. Theedase in salaries and related costs was printhe
result of increase in salary of staff in China ae@dance with the increase in minimum wage.

Research And DevelopmenResearch and development expenses increaseukipately $84,000, or 26.9%, from approximately $8DO0 for th
fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 to approximate3965000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 201® nhcrease in research and developmen
primarily the result of increased headcount of pagrs in accordance with increased projects dutirdfiscal year ended March 31, 2013. Researc!
development expenses account for 1.3% of net revémthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, andLf2% of net revenue for the fiscal year ended k
31, 2012.
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Administration And General ExpensesAdministration and general expenses decreaseappyoximately $90,000, or 3.7%, from approxime
$2,492,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31,2@2pproximately $2,402,000 for the fiscal year eshdarch 31,2013. The decrease is prim
attributable to the fact that for the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2012, the Company paid approxima#685,000 to a bank under a bank guarantee th
Company had provided for Gram Precision, which aféset by significantly higher utility costs assaigd with the operation of two factories during fisea
year ended March 31, 2013.

Gain from Liquidation of Subsidiary Since Korona was liquidated during the fiscadryended March 31, 2012, the Company recordedraaj
approximately $1,448,000. There was no gain frigidation of a subsidiary during the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2013.

Loss From Operations As a result of the factors described above, fiass operations increased by 244.4% from a lossppiroximately $117,0!
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 to a tdsspproximately $403,000 for the fiscal year enff&dch 31, 2013.

Interest Income Interest income remained at approximately $7f0@@he fiscal years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Interest Expenselnterest expense decreased approximately $1900Q1,.8%, from approximately $87,000 for the flsgear ended March 31, 2C
to approximately $68,000 for the fiscal year enftadch 31, 2013. This decrease was primarily tiselteof an increase in utilization of factoring vibwe
interest rate during the fiscal year ended March2813.

Foreign Exchange Los&oreign exchange loss decreased approximately $d@2or 62.9%, from approximately $703,000 for fiseal year ende
March 31, 2012 to approximately $261,000 for tleedi year ended March 31, 2013. This decreaseprimsirily the result of the decreased magnituc
appreciation of the Chinese Renminbi comparededuthited States Dollar during the fiscal year entliedich 31, 2013.

Other Income.Other income increased approximately $47,000, %9 from approximately $118,000 for the fiscal yeaded March 31, 2012

approximately $165,000 for the fiscal year endeddWi@1, 2013. The increase was primarily the tesithe increase in rental income and gain fromvéac
contracts during the fiscal year ended March 31320
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Income Tax Expenselncome tax expense was $29,000 during the figeat ended March 31, 2013, as compared to $2,000gdthe fiscal ye:
ended March 31, 2012. The income tax expensensaply due to the under provision for taxation fscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Net Loss As a result of the factors described above Josst decreased from a loss of approximately $9@2{60the fiscal year ended March
2012 to a loss of approximately $754,000 for tkedl year ended March 31, 2013, a decrease irofagsproximately $148,000, or 16.4%.

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustmengoreign currency translation adjustments, net rf tiecreased from approximately $353,000 foi
fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 to a gain of agprately $62,000 for the fiscal year ended March 2113, a decrease of approximately $291,00
82.4%. The decreased foreign currency transladastment, net of tax, was primarily the resultexfuced fluctuation of the Chinese Renminbi adahme
United States Dollar.

Comprehensive Losés a result of the factors described above, comgnele loss increased from a loss of approximak6K9,000 for the fisc
year ended March 31, 2012 to a loss of approxim&@92,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@bh3ncrease of approximately $143,000, or 26.0%.

Impact of Inflation

We believe that inflation had an impact on our bess during the fiscal years ended March 31, 22023 and 2014. The minimum wage
Shenzhen, PRC, increased from RMB 1,100 (or apprately $162) per month beginning July 1, 2010 toBRM320 (or approximately $206) per mc
beginning April 1, 2011, and was later increasedRMB 1,500 (or approximately $238) per month begignFebruary 1, 2012, and to RMB 1,600
approximately $254) per month beginning March 1,2@&nd then to RMB 1,808 (or approximately $293) month beginning February 1, 2014. As a re
we believe that inflation will continue to increaser operating costs and cost of raw materialstene a significant impact upon us in the futuree kv
generally been able to modify and improve our pobdiesigns so that we could either increase tleepiof our products or lower the production casisrde
to keep pace with inflation. Oil prices have beefatile in recent years. If oil prices increagawill likely result in an increase in the cost @@mponents
us, as well as an increase in our operating expemgech will have a material adverse effect upankmsiness and results of operations. Furtherintreas
in labor costs and operating costs in the PRC hadtarial impact on our profitability.
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Taxation

The companies comprising the Group are subjecidtcoh an entity basis on income arising in, oratifrom, Hong Kong, and the PRC. °
current rate of taxation of the subsidiary opemtmHong Kong is 16.5%. The Group is not subfedhcome taxes in the British Virgin Islands.

The tax rates for our subsidiary in PRC were 24%0h1 and 25% in 2012 and beyond. There is n@asable in Hong Kong on offshore profit
on dividends paid to Bonso Electronics Limited s/ subsidiaries or to us by Bonso Electronics Lachit Therefore, our overall effective tax rate rba
lower than that of most United States corporatitiesyever, this advantage could be materially aneialy affected by changes in the tax laws oBthigsh
Virgin Islands, Hong Kong or China.

On March 16, 2007, the Chinese government enactmifiad enterprise income tax law, or "EIT," whibhcame effective on January 1, 2008. |
to the EIT, as a foreign invested enterprise, dE;'Flocated in Shenzhen of the PRC, our PRC sidn$éd enjoyed a national income tax rate of 15%
were exempted from the 3% local income tax. Thdepeatial tax treatment to our subsidiaries in BRRC of qualifying for tax refunds as a resul
reinvesting their profits earned in previous yesrshe PRC also expired on January 1, 2008. UnderBIT, apart from those qualified as higiet
enterprises, most domestic enterprises and FIE®&subject to a single PRC enterprise incomeatxof 25% in year 2012 and afterward.

Efforts by the Chinese government to increase ¢aemues could result in decisions or interpretatiointhe tax laws by the Chinese tax authoi
that are unfavorable to us and which increase woiuré tax liabilities or deny our expected refun@hanges in Chinese tax laws or their interpratadi
application may subject us to additional Chinesattan in the future.

No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding tsvexists between the United States and the Britighin Islands. Under current British Virc
Islands law, dividends, interest or royalties pgaydus to individuals are not subject to tax as lasdhe recipient is not a resident of the Britfyin Islands
If we were to pay a dividend, we would not be le@bb withhold any tax, but shareholders would nezgjross dividends, irrespective of their resid#rdi
national status.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 2&1@® 2014, certain of our subsidiaries were, andimoa to be, subject to inquiries from the I¢
tax authorities. Upon the adoption of ASC 740 "meoTaxes", the Company recorded a provision of apprately $2,595,000 in relation to uncertain
positions as of April 1, 2007. The assessmenthgestito final determination by the local tax autties and may be different from what we have rdedras
provision. As such, there can be no assurancethiainquiry will not result in imposing additionscome tax expense on the Group, which could hi
material adverse effect upon the Group and itsltesfi operations. According to the requirementifrthe local tax authorities, the Company has puael
tax reserve certificates for approximately $1,700,0r the fiscal years in review, for the potehpiayment to the tax authority.
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Contractual arrangements we have entered into araerand our subsidiaries in different locations rbaysubject to scrutiny by respective
authorities, and a finding against the Company igmdubsidiaries may result in additional tax ligieis that could substantially reduce our consatid ne
income. We could face material and adverse tagemqurences if respective tax authorities deterniaethe contractual arrangements among our subisi
and Bonso do not represent an arm's length prideadjust Bonso's or its subsidiaries' income. €mnsolidated net income may be materially and ably
affected if our affiliated entities' tax liabiligencrease.

Dividends, if any, paid to any United States restder citizen shareholder are treated as divideradrne for United States federal income
purposes. Such dividends are not eligible for T8 dividends:eceived deduction allowed to United States cotpmra on dividends from a dome:
corporation under Section 243 of the United Statéernal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (therHalt Revenue Code"). Various Internal Rewv:
Code provisions impose special taxes in certaicuaiistances on nddnited States corporations and their sharehold¥mu are urged to consult your
advisor with regard to such possibilities and yown tax situation.

In addition to United States federal income taxatghareholders may be subject to state and laxastupon their receipt of dividends.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We sell most of our products to international costes. Our principal export markets are North Aweeimainly the United States), Europe (me
Germany) and Asia. Other markets are other Europeantries (such as the United Kingdom), Australia Africa. Sales to international customers
made directly by us to our customers. We selbfbur products in United States Dollars and paydiar material components principally in United t8¢
Dollars and Hong Kong Dollars. A very small portiof the components used are paid for in Japanese ¥lost factory expenses incurred are pa
Chinese Renminbi. Because the Hong Kong Dollgegged to the United States Dollar, in the pastooly material foreign exchange risk previouslysa
from potential fluctuations in the Chinese Renmimloid a devaluation in United States Dollars. Hwm teasons discussed in the paragraphs t
management believes that it may be possible traethill be some fluctuation in the coming yearuring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014
experienced a foreign currency loss of approxinyzkdi4,000.

A summary of our debts from our banking facilitigsized as at March 31, 2013 and 2014 which wéesated to foreign currency risk is as follo

March March
31, 2013 31, 2014

$ in thousand $ in thousand

Hong Kong dollar: 3,81: 5,471

The amount above is due within one year.
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Fluctuations in the value of the Hong Kong Dollavé not been significant since October 17, 198nthe Hong Kong government tied the v
of the Hong Kong Dollar to that of the United Stafgollar. However, there can be no assurancethiaralue of the Hong Kong Dollar will continue lte
tied to that of the United States Dollar. Chinaptéd a floating currency system on January 1, 188#ying the market and official rates of fore
exchange. China approved current account conidytibf the Chinese Renminbi on July 1, 1996, delied by formal acceptance of the Internati
Monetary Fund's Articles of Agreement on Decemhet996. These regulations eliminated the requirgrf@ prior government approval to buy fore
exchange for ordinary trade transactions, thoughiayal is still required to repatriate equity obtencluding interest thereon. From 1994 untilyJ2005
the Chinese Renminbi had remained stable agaiadt/t8. Dollar at approximately 8.28 to 1.00 U.Sll&o On July 21, 2005, the Chinese currency re
was altered to link the RMB to a "basket of curiea¢ which includes the United States Dollar, Eulapanese Yen and Korean Woimder the rules, tt
RMB is allowed to move 0.3% on a daily basis agaihe United States Dollar.The People's Bank of China, on May 21 2007, wédetine RMB tradin
band from 0.3% daily movement against the UniteateSt Dollar to 0.5%0n June 20, 2010, the PBOC announced that the RRE&rmmMent would furth:
reform the RMB exchange rate regime and increasdléibility of the exchange rate. It is difficulo predict how this new policy may impact the R
exchange rate. As of Julyl5, 2014, the RMB wasealat 6.17 per U.S. Dollar. There can be no asserthat these currencies will remain stable of
fluctuate to our benefit.

To manage our exposure to foreign currency andsltation risks, we may purchase currency exchangyeafal contracts, currency options, or o
derivative instruments, provided such instrumendy ime obtained at suitable prices.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have financed our growth and cash needs topaterily from internally generated funds and batébt. We do not use offalance she
financing arrangements, such as securitizatioecdivables or obtaining access to assets througgiadpurpose entities, as sources of liquidityur @rimary
uses of cash have been to fund expansions anddgsyoh our manufacturing facilities.

Operating activities generated approximately $23® 6f net cash for the fiscal year ended March2814, as compared to $593,000 of net cash
in operating activities during the fiscal year eshddarch 31, 2013. This increase in the amountashcgenerated by operating activities was prin
attributable to the decrease in net loss, decrieasade receivables and increase in accrued changeé deposits as of March 31, 2014, when compartth
of March 31, 2013.
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As of March 31, 2014, we had approximately $1,166,0h cash and cash equivalents and fixed depositsiring within a year, as compares
$2,154,000 in cash and cash equivalents and fiebsits maturing within a year as of March 31, 2018orking capital at March 31, 2014 v
approximately negative $3,769,000, as comparecetgative $160,000 at March 31, 2013. The decreaseorking capital is the result of an increas
investing activities for a total of approximatel2,$78,000 for acquisition of property, plant andiipqment. We believe there are no material regtri¢
(including foreign exchange controls) on the apitif our subsidiaries to transfer funds to us mfirm of cash dividends, loans, advances or ptéhtateria
purchases. We believe our working capital is sigfit for our present requirements.

As of March 31, 2014, we had approximately $2,480, net trade receivables, as compared to $2)88%s of March 31, 2013. This decrea:s
$279,000 was primarily attributable to increassettlement from customers close to the end ofiivalfyear, as compared to that of March 31, 2013.

As of March 31, 2014, we had approximately $7,5@8,in inventories, as compared to $5,460,000 aMafch 31, 2013. This increase
$2,085,000 was primarily attributable to a stockefipaw materials during the production processdfer during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 .

As of March 31, 2014, we had a total of approxifya®i2,940,000 in notes and accounts payable, agpared to $10,069,000 as of March
2013. The increase of $2,871,000 was primarilsitattable to a stockp of inventory during the production process tfansluring the fiscal year enc
March 31, 2014 .

As of March 31, 2014, we had in place general bamkacilities with one financial institution withneounts available aggregating approxime
$10,698,000 (2013: $10,000,000). Such facilittedude the ability to obtain overdrafts, letterccoédit, short-term notes payable, factoring, sten loans
longterm loans and financial instruments including fard/ contracts. As of March 31, 2014, we had wiliapproximately $5,477,000 from these gel
banking facilities. Interest on this indebtedn#lestuates with the prime rate and the Hong Kongrmank Offer Rate as set by the Hong Kong Bai
Association. The bank credit facilities are cafatized by our bank guarantee and an investmempiepty of the Company. Our bank credit facilittes du
for renewal annually. We anticipate that the bagKacilities will be renewed on substantially #sme terms and our utilization in the next yeat rginair
at a similar level as that in the current year.ribgithe fiscal years ended March 31, 2013 and 2@®4paid a total of approximately $68,000 and $0G6
respectively, in interest on indebtedness for curitig operations.
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Our current ratio decreased from 0.99 as of Madch2813 to 0.80 as of March 31, 2014. Our quitiordecreased from 0.60 as of March 31, :
to 0.39 as of March 31, 2014.

The minimum wage was increased to RMB 1,320 (or@pmately $206) beginning April 1, 2011, and wasel increased to RMB 1,500
approximately $238) per month beginning Februarg@12, and to RMB 1,600 (or approximately $254) menth beginning March 1, 2013, and the
RMB 1,808 (or approximately $293) per month begigrirebruary 1, 2014 in Shenzhen, PRC. The minimvage was RMB 1,010 (or approximately $1
per month beginning May 1, 2013 in Xinxing, GuanggloPRC. Our entire manufacturing operation heehtmoved to Xinxing during the fiscal year er
March 31, 2014, and management expects the olabalt costs will be reduced with the operation inxng.

During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2015, wpest we will need to expend approximately $738,00@he construction of an office building
Xinxing, China and leasehold improvement of an gtrent property in Hong Kong.

We believe that our cash flows from operations, @urent cash balance and funds available undewotking capital and credit facilities will
sufficient to meet our working capital needs arehpkd capital expenditures for at least the nexb 22 months. However, a decrease in the denmamabi
products or increase in our costs of goods solexpenses may affect our internally generated fuadd,we would further look to our banking facilitit
meet our working capital demands.

Commitments

The following table sets forth information with pet to our commitments as of March 31, 2014:

Payments due by Period

Total Within 1 year 2 to 3 years 4to0 5 years More than 5
years
$ in thousands $ in thousands $ in thousands $ in thousands $ in thousands
1
(Ns)otes payable and bank overdrafts and 1¢9 $ 555. $ 555. $ 0 s 0 s 0
Operating lease $ 38 $ 89 $ 18 % 114 % 0
Capital lease® $ 98 $ 26 $ 51 % 21 % 0
Construction in Xinxing $ 66 $ 66 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Leasehold improvement in Hong Ko $ 73 % 73 % 0 $ 0 $ 0
Income tax liabilitied? $ 2,59t $ 0 $ 2,59t $ 0 $ 0
Total $ 9,371 $ 6,407 $ 2,82¢ % 13t % 0

(1) Represents amounts due within one year ungienanking facilities agreement.

(2) As a result of the adoption of ASC 740, thenpany recognized an approximately $2,595,000 litfibr unrecognized tax benefits, including
penalities of approximately $994,000. The Compasgessed its tax position during the fiscal yeaedrMarch 31, 2014 and concluded that the
same tax liability was carried forward.

(3) Includes interest payment.
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For a discussion of interest rates on our noteslayand short-term loans, see "ltem 1Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About kéd
Risk" below.

Critical Accounting Policies

The methods, estimates and judgments we use igiagmur most critical accounting policies haveigngicant impact on the results we repot
our financial statements. The SEC has definednibst critical accounting policies as the ones #rat most important to the portrayal of our finat
condition and results and require us to make oustrdifficult and subjective judgments, often aseault of the need to make estimates of mattersatte
inherently uncertain. Based on this definitions most critical policies include valuation of inveries, revenue recognition, impairment of |divigd asse!
and acquired intangible assets, allowance for tradeivables and income and deferred income taxes.

Below, we discuss these policies further, as welhe estimates and judgments involved. We belieaeour other policies either do not gene
require us to make estimates and judgments thaasadifficult or as subjective, or it is less likahat they would have a material impact on outortgz
results of operations for a given period. For scdssion of all our significant accounting policiese footnote 1 to the Consolidated FinancialeStant
included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orealizable value with cost determined on a firstfirst-out basis. Net realizable value is the pric
which inventories can be sold in the normal cowfsbusiness after allowing for the costs of coniptetand disposal. The Company continuously rev
slow-moving and obsolete inventory and assesses anptioryeobsolescence based on inventory levels, mhtymposition and expected usage as of
date.

Revenue Recognition

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyied or determinable, delivery has occu
and collectability of the sales price is reasonasyured. Revenue is recognized when title akdfifoss transfers to the customer, which is galhewher
the product is leaving the ports of Hong Kong oei®then as designated by our customers. Shippirtg bdked to our customers are included wi
revenue. Associated costs are classified in dostles.

The Company provides to certain customers an additione to two percent of certain products ordardi@u of a warranty, which are recognize:
cost of sales when these products are shippedstoroers from our facilities. In addition, certgroducts sold by the Company are subject to adu
product quality warranty. The Company accrues fin@ated incurred but unidentified quality issuasdd upon historical activity and known qualityuiss i
a loss is probable and can be reasonably estimaitedstandard limited warranty period is one t@¢hyears. Quality returns, refunds, rebates arwbuaii:
are recorded net of sales if they are within therardty period. All sales are based upon firm csdeith fixed terms and conditions, which generakyno
be modified. Historically, we have not experiencedterial differences between our estimated amoafgsiality returns, refunds, rebates and discoant
the actual results.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Acquired Intangble Assets

Longdived assets held and used by the Group and achum@ngible assets are reviewed for impairment ngkler events or changes
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoursuzh assets may not be recoverable. The Groupateal recoverability of assets to be held and by
comparing the carrying amount of an asset to futeteundiscounted cash flows to be generated bggbket. If such assets are considered to be ietham
impairment loss is measured by the amount by wttieltarrying amount of the assets exceeds thedhie of the assets calculated using a discoumitede
cash flows analysis.

Allowance for Trade Receivables

Allowance is made against trade receivables toeittent that collection is considered to be doubtfTiis allowance is primarily determined fr
our monthly aging analysis. It also requires juégbregarding the collectability of certain recéids, as certain receivables may be identifiedotleatible
that are subsequently uncollectible and which caakllt in a subsequent writdf of the related receivable to the statement mpérations. Most of tt
Company's trade receivables are generally unseceredpt for two customers with receivables covdngdredit insurance. To determine the necess$ig
provision, the Company analyzes the age of theivabkes and the customer's ability to pay base@ast payment history, financial statements andue
information of the customer. Any change in thdemtability of accounts receivable that were notviously provided for could significantly chandee
calculation of such provision and the results af @perations.

Income and Deferred Income Taxes

The Company complies with ASC 740 which prescri@gscognition threshold and measurement attribiotethe financial statement recognit
and measurement of a tax position taken or expeaotbd taken in a tax return. ASC 740 also pravigieidance on derecognition, classification, irgeea(
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesand transition. Only tax positions that meetrttare-likely-thannot recognition threshold at the effec
date may be recognized or continue to be recognipes adoption of ASC 740. The Company's accognpiolicy is to treat interest and penalties
component of income taxes.

Amounts in the consolidated financial statementated to income taxes are calculated using theciples of ASC 740. ASC 740 requi
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilifasthe expected future tax consequences of ewbatshave been included in the financial statementsy
returns. Undethis method, deferred tax assets and liabilitiesdatermined based on the temporary differencegeleet the financial reporting basis and
tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacgddtes in effect for the year in which the difleces are expected to reverse. Future tax bermfith as n
operating loss carry forwards, are recognized deraal tax assets. Recognized deferred tax aaseteeduced by a valuation allowance if, basedhe
weight of available evidence, it is more likely thaot that some portion or all of the deferredaaset will not be realized.
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Trend Information

Although we are optimistic about our future in thanufacture and sale of senbased scales products, we are dependent upontadimimber ¢
customers for a significant portion of our revenumsd the loss of any of these customers could havmterial adverse effect upon us and our rest
operations. As of March 31, 2014, our backlog efhnfacturing orders was $6,707,000 as compare8,@83,000 as of March 31, 2013. We expect the
demand for our products will decrease in the figear ending March 31, 2015, compared with thalhénfiscal year ended March 31, 2014.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements that have, or are eddgdikely to have, a current or future effect omr financial conditior
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenesults of operations, liquidity, capital expiemebs or capital resources that are materialvestors.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The new accounting pronouncements in the UnitetbSthat may be relevant to the Group are as fstlow

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013; "Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax BenefieWa Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar
Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists". Therent practice in FASB ASC 740, "Income Taxes" does include explicit guidance on the finan
statement presentation of an unrecognized tax lbemkén a net operating loss carryforward, a simitx loss, or a tax credit carryforward existshe
objective of this Update is to eliminate the divtgrén practice in the presentation of unrecognitax benefits. This accounting standard updagdfective
for fiscal years, and interim within those yearsginning after December 15, 2013. Early adopt®opdarmitted. The Company believes that its adapai
this Update will not have any material impact andbnsolidated financial statements.
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In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 20D8, "Presentation of Financial Statements (Top#)2hd Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic &
Reporting Discontinued Operations and DisclosuffeBisposals of Components of an Entity" ("ASU 2018"). ASU 201408 amends the definition o
discontinued operation and requires entities tavippadditional disclosures for both discontinugetrations and disposal transactions that do not the
discontinuedsperations criteria. It is effective for annualipds beginning on or after December 15, 2014. Wadateexpect the adoption of this guidanc
have a material effect on our consolidated findratetements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2008; "Revenue from Contracts with Customers". Thigdive of this Update is to remove inconsistes
and weaknesses in revenue requirements, and tdifgitye preparation of financial statements byueidg the number requirements to which an entitysi
refer. This accounting standard update is effechir fiscal years, and interim within those yedesginning after December 15, 2016. Early adopsomo
permitted. The Company is currently evaluatingithpact this Update will have on its consolidatedificial statements.

Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
Directors and Senior Management

Our board of directors and executive officers ated below:

Name Age Position with Bonso

Anthony Sc 71 Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer d@icector, President and Treasu
Andrew Sa 28 Director, Chief Operating Office

Kim Wah Chunc 56 Director of Engineering and Research and Developaet Directol

Woc-Ping Fok 65 Director

Henry F. Schluete 63 Director and Assistant Secretze

Albert So 36 Director, Chief Financial Officer and Secret:
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ANTHONY SO is the founder of Bonso. He has been ©bairman of the Board of Directors since July 898e was appointed as the C
Executive Officer and President on November 16,6200r. So received his BSE degree in civil engiiregfrom National Taiwan University in 1967 an
Master degree in Business Administration ("MBA'9rfr the Hong Kong campus of the University of HHllll, England in 1994. Mr. So has been Chair
of the Hong Kong GO Association since 1986 and skiwed as Chairman of the Alumni Association ofidfeal Taiwan University for the 199B39¢
academic years. Mr. So has served as a trustbe @hinese University of Hong Kong, New Asia Cgélesince 1994.

ANDREW SO joined the Company in August 2009 and Ieen a director since February 25, 2012. Mr. @oeatly holds the position of Ch
Operating Officer and oversees the Company's dgirations. Mr. So graduated with distinction@98 from the University of Toronto, Canada, wé
Bachelor of Commerce degree (BComm). From 2008060, prior to his employment with the Company, Bo. worked as a Derivatives Analyst at £
Street Trust Company Canada, Toronto, Canadaulyn2D14, Mr. So completed the MBA Program of Hdfgng University of Science and Technolc
and he will formally graduate in the Fall of 2014.

KIM WAH CHUNG has been a director since Septemtieri®94. Mr. Chung has been employed by us si@8& and currently holds the posit
of Director of Engineering and Research and Devalagt. Mr. Chung is responsible for all researabjquts and product development. Mr. Chung's €
engineering career has been spent with Bonso, amd$ been involved in all of our major productalepments. Mr. Chung graduated with honors in
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Balor of Science degree in electronics.
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WOO-PING FOK was elected to our Board of Directors @pt8mber 21, 1994. Mr. Fok has practiced law imgi&ong since 1991 and i
Consultant with Messrs. C.K. Mok & Co. Mr. Fok'sasjor areas of practice include conveyancing andl pegperty law, corporations and business
commercial transactions and international tradd wispecial emphasis in China trade matters. bk.Was admitted to the Canadian Bar as a Barré&
Solicitor in December 1987 and was a partner indhefirm of Woo & Fok, a Canadian law firm wittsihead office in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada. Inl]
Mr. Fok was qualified to practice as a Solicitoffgland & Wales, a Solicitor of Hong Kong and arigter & Solicitor of Australian Capital Territory

HENRY F. SCHLUETER has been a director since Oat@®1 and has been our Assistant Secretary simteb€r 6, 1988. Since 1992, |
Schlueter has been the Managing Director of SchiugtAssociates, P.C., a law firm, practicing ir threas of securities, mergers and acquisitionanéi
and corporate law. Mr. Schlueter has served asUmited States corporate and securities counsekesl®88. From 1989 to 1991, prior to establis
Schlueter & Associates, P.C., Mr. Schlueter waargnpr in the Denver, Colorado office of Kutak Rdfdemerly Kutak, Rock & Campbell), and from 1¢
to 1989, he was a partner in the Denver office efsbin & Harding. Mr. Schlueter is a member of Almeerican Institute of Certified Public Accountanttss
Colorado and Denver Bar Associations, and the WygrSitate Bar.

ALBERT SO was appointed as the Chief Financial Offethe Company in March 2009. Mr. So was finstpdoyed as the Financial Controllet
the Company in January 2008 and as a managemametraf the Company in November 2004. Mr. So heenka director since March 1, 2013. Prior t
employment as a management trainee of the CompanySo was a student. Mr. So is a Certified Mamaget Accountant, Financial Risk Manager,
received a Master degree in Business Administretiom HeriotWatt University, Edinburgh, United Kingdom, and adBelor degree in Mathematics fr
Simon Fraser University in Burnaby, British ColumpbCanada.

Anthony So, the Company's President, Chief Exeeudficer and Chairman of the Board of Directorshis father of Andrew So, the Compal
Chief Operating Officer, and Albert So, the ComparGhief Financial Officer.

No arrangement or understanding exists betweersiacty director or officer and any other personsyantsto which any director or executive offi

was elected as a director or executive officerr @rectors are elected annually and serve urdir thuccessors take office or until their deatkigmation o
removal. The executive officers serve at the plemsf the Board of Directors.
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Compensation

The aggregate amount of compensation paid by uandubsidiaries during the year ended March 81420 all directors, former directors
officers as a group for services in all capacities $1,355,000. Total compensation for the benéftnthony So was $857,000, for the benefit of Kivial
Chung was $161,000, for the benefit of Andrew Se %&28,000, for the benefit of Albert So was $106,8nd for the benefit of Henry F. Schlueter we
aggregate of $84,000. The $84,000 listed as hahérey paid for the benefit of Mr. Schlueter waslgaihis law firm, Schlueter & Associates, P.Cr, lega
services rendered. The amount for the year enda@ivi31, 2014, included unpaid vacation paymer§l@ 000 for Kim Wah Chung. The amount for
year ended March 31, 2014 includes vacation paywfebi 7,000 for Anthony So.

We did not set aside or accrue any amounts to gegeension, retirement or similar benefits for clioes and officers for the fiscal year ended M
31, 2014, other than contributions to our Providaumd Plan, which aggregated $17,000 for office directors.

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with Anthony So and\Wah Chung. Mr. So's employment agreement pes/idr a maximum yearly salary
approximately $800,000 per year plus bonus, and@ung's employment agreement provides for a maxirpearly salary of approximately $200,000
year plus bonus, as stated in their respective @mmnt agreements. The initial term of the emplaytmagreements expired on March 31, 2013 ("It
Term"); however, the employment agreements hava baeewed under a provision in the agreementsptteaides for automatic renewal for successive
year periods, unless at least 90 days prior toettpgration of the Initial Term or any renewal tergither party gives written notice to the otherty
specifically electing to terminate the agreemedhe of the properties of the Group in Hong Konglgo provided to Mr. So as part of his compensatidn.
So's employment agreement contains a provision ruwtiech the Company will be obligated to pay Mr. 8lb compensation for the remainder of
employment agreement and five times his annualhsaled bonus compensation if a change of conteotiedined in his employment agreement occurs.
employment agreements with Anthony So and Kim Whahr@ were renewed automatically, and the respeetiveloyment agreements will expire on M
31, 2015, unless automatically renewed.

Options of Directors and Senior Management

The following table provides information concernimgtions owned by the directors and senior manageatéMarch 31, 2014.

Number of Exercise Price
Common Shares Per Share
Name Subject to Expiration Date
Stock Options
Woa-Ping Fok 10,00¢ $ 6.2C September 12, 201
10,00 $ 4.5C December 4, 201
Henry F. Schluete 10,000 $ 6.2C September 12, 201
10,00 $ 4.5C December 4, 201
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Directors

Except as mentioned above, our directors do naivecany additional monetary compensation for sgrvn their capacities. All directors .

reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurredmmection with their services as a director.

Employee retirement benefits

@

(b)

With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a whalwned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong ¢gomplemented a defined contribution
(the "Plan™) with a major international assuranempany to provide life insurance and retirementefienfor its employees. All permanent full ti
employees who joined BEL before December 2000 ,uebiaty factory workers, are eligible to join the yident fund plan. Eligible employees of
Plan are required to contribute 5% of their montsdyary, while BEL is required to contribute fro®30 10% based on the eligible employ
salary, depending on the number of years of thygbédi employee's servic

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the "MPF") was introed by the Hong Kong Government and commencedeitedber 2000. BEL joined 1
MPF by implementing a plan with a major internatibassurance company. All permanent Hong Kongtiimé employees who joined BEL on
after December 2000, excluding factory workers,digible to join the MPF. Eligible employees' afé employer's contributions to the MPF
both at 5% of the eligible employee's monthly sakand are subject to a maximum mandatory contdioutif HK$1,000 (US$128) monthly. T
maximum mandatory contribution was increased to HR$0 (US$160) monthly starting from June 1, 20TBe maximum mandatory contribut
was increased to HK$1,500 (US$192) per month staftom June 1, 2014.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gi®upquired to make contributions for each empdoy rates based upon the employee's ste
salary base as determined by the local Social 8gdBureau, to a defined contribution retiremenhesme organized by the local Social Seci
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits fer@moup's employees in the PRC.

The contributions to each of the above schemesea@gnized as employee benefit expense when tleeglue and are charged to the consolic
statement of income (loss). The Group's total rimumtions to the above schemes for the years eMimdh 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 amounte
approximately $239,000, $225,000 and $758,000ectsmely. The Group has no other obligation to empkyments in respect of retirement ben
of the employees
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Board Practices

All directors hold office until our next annual ntimg of shareholders or until their respective ssors are duly elected and qualified or
positions are earlier vacated by resignation oemtise. All executive officers are appointed by Board and serve at the pleasure of the BoaréreTére n
director service contracts providing for benefit®n termination of employment or directorship.

NASDAQ Exemptions and Home Country Practices

NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350 provides that forefgivate issuers may elect to follow certain homartry corporate governance practice
long as they provide NASDAQ with a letter from ddés counsel in its home country certifying that iRsuer's corporate governance practices ar
prohibited by home country law.

On July 19, 2005, we submitted a letter to NASDA&tifying that certain of Bonso's corporate goves® practices are not prohibited by
relevant laws of the British Virgin Islands. Wellvfollow British Virgin Island law in respect tde following requirements:

] A majority of Bonso's board of directors will na@ lmdependen

= Bonso will not have a nominating committs

] Bonso will not have a compensation commit

. Bonso's independent directors will not meet in eige session; an
= Bonso's audit committee may have only one men

Audit Committee

Mr. Woo Ping Fok and Mr. Henry F. Schlueter arertiembers of the Audit Committee. Mr. Fok is "indagent" as defined in the NASDAQ list
standards, and Mr. Schlueter may not be considérddpendent" since his law firm serves as Bondaised States counsel.
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The Audit Committee was established to: (i) reveavd approve the scope of audit procedures employedir independent auditors; (ii) review
approve the audit reports rendered by our indepenalaeditors; (iii) approve the audit fee chargedthy independent auditors; (iv) report to the Boai
Directors with respect to such matters; (v) recomadrihe selection of independent auditors; anddigi¢harge such other responsibilities as may begdéd
to it from time to time by the Board of DirectorEffective as of August 17, 2000, the Board of Dioes adopted a formal charter for its Audit Conted
which was amended effective June 30, 2005.

Employees
At March 31, 2014, we employed a total of 663 pess@s compared to 1,127 persons at March 31, 20d3.,299 persons at March 31, 2012

employees in Hong Kong (13 in 2013 and 12 in 2063}, employees in China (1,114 in 2013 and 1,2&0it?). Employees are not covered by colle
bargaining agreements. We consider our globallpkaxrtices and employee relations to be good.
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Share Ownership

The following table shows the number of sharesoofimon stock beneficially owned by our directors erdcutive officers as of June 30, 2014:

Name Shares of Options Held Total Number of Percent of

Common Stock Shares of Beneficial

Owned of Common Stock Ownership

Record Beneficially
Owned

Anthony Sc 2,281,77@ 0 2,281,77 40.9%
Kim Wah Chunc 93,70( 0 93,70( 1.7%
Henry F. Schluete 34,00( 20,00(@ 54,00( 1.C%
Woa-Ping Fok 66,50" 20,00® 86,50" 1.€%
Andrew Sa 253,00( 0 253,00( 4.5%
Albert So 100,00( 0 100,00( 1.8%
All Directors and Officers as a group (6 persc 2,828,97 40,00( 2,868,97 51.1%

Note: The number of shares outstanding is 5,246s8@8es, with 5,577,639 total number of sharee@swhich includes 330,736 shares in treas
The calculations above are based upon the numistranés issued of 5,577,6.

Q) Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock owneeaufrd by a corporation that is wholly owned byt of which Mr. So is the sc
beneficiary.
2) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstuxk at an exercise price of $6.20 per shar@iegpon September 12, 2014

options to purchase 10,000 shares of common staak exercise price of $4.50 per share expirin@ecember 4, 201!

3) Includes options to purchase 10,000 shares of canstoxk at an exercise price of $6.20 per shar@iegpon September 12, 2014 ¢
options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stak exercise price of $4.50 per share expirinpecember 4, 201!
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Stock Option and Bonus Plans
The 1996 Stock Option Plan

In October 1996, our stockholders adopted the 186k Option Plan (the "Employees' Plan"), whichvdes for the grant of options to purcl
an aggregate of not more than 400,000 shares of@umon stock. In January 2000, our shareholdepsosed the proposal of the Board of Directol
increase from 400,000 to 900,000 in the aggredatenumber of options to purchase common stock utfterEmployees' Plan. The purpose of
Employees' Plan is to make options available toagament and employees in order to encourage thesectae or increase on reasonable terms their
ownership and to encourage them to remain wittCiiapany.

The Employees' Plan is administered by a commépgminted by the Board of Directors which determitiee persons to be granted options L
the Employees' Plan, the number of shares sulijegach option, the exercise price of each optiahtha option period, subject to the requirement tit
option may be exercisable more than ten years tfeedate of grant. The exercise price of an optiay be less than the fair market value of theetlgiohg
shares of common stock. No options granted uritkerEmployees’ Plan are transferable by the optiatleer than by will or the laws of descent
distribution, and each option will be exercisalleing the lifetime of the optionee only by suchiopee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuathedEmployees' Plan may be paid in cash, by thersder of options, in common stock, in o
property, including the optionee's promissory noteyy a combination of the above, at our discretio

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, ndoogtwere granted under the Employees' Plan.
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The 2004 Stock Option Plan

On March 23, 2004, our stockholders adopted thet 2B@ck Option Plan (the "2004 Plan"), which pre&dor the grant of up to six hund
thousand (600,000) shares of the Company's comtook & the form of stock options, subject to cerdjustments as described in the 2004 Plan.

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key grapkto remain in the employ of the Company andnimourage such employees to secu
increase on reasonable terms their common stocleship in the Company. The Company believes ti@a2004 Plan promotes continuity of manage
and increased incentive and personal intereseinviiifare of the Company.

The 2004 Plan is administered by a committee appaiby the Board of Directors, which consists deast two but not more than three membe
the Board, one of whom shall be a non-employedefCompany. The committee members currently athokly So and Wodting Fok. The committ:
determines the specific terms of the options gdriteluding the employees to be granted optiorgeuthe plan, the number of shares subject to eptibr
grant, the exercise price of each option and th®operiod, subject to the requirement that naasptnay be exercisable more than 10 years afteddite o
grant. The exercise price of an option may betless the fair market value of the underlying sharecommon stock. No options granted under tha piill
be transferable by the optionee other than byawithe laws of descent and distribution, and egatton will be exercisable during the lifetime oktbptione
only by the optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuarth¢o2004 Plan may be paid in cash, by the surreofleptions, in common stock, in ot
property, including a promissory note from the opée, or by a combination of the above, at therelign of the Committee.

As of March 31, 2014, no options had been grantetbuthe 2004 Plan.

2004 Stock Bonus Plan

On September 7, 2004, our stockholders adopte@@Bé Stock Bonus Plan (the "Stock Bonus Plan")ctvlduthorizes the issuance of up to
hundred thousand (500,000) shares of the Comp&aytsnon Stock in the form of a stock bonus.
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The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to: (@uice key employees to remain in the employ of tamm@any or of any subsidiary of the Comp:
(ii) encourage such employees to secure or incrimesiestock ownership in the Company; and (iilvaed employees, noamployee directors, advisors i
consultants for services rendered, or to be reddéseor for the benefit of the Company or anytsfsubsidiaries. The Company believes that thekIonu:
Plan will promote continuity of management and éased incentive and personal interest in the veetiithe Company.

The Stock Bonus Plan shall be administered by anittee appointed by the Board of Directors whichsists of at least two but not more than t
members of the Board, one of whom shall be a nopl@yee of the Company. The Committee members ctiyrare Anthony So and WoBing Fok. Th
Committee has the authority, in its sole discretidi) to determine the parties to receive boneglstthe times when they shall receive such awara
number of shares to be issued and the time, temsh&€@nditions of the issuance of any such shaiig$o (construe and interpret the terms of the Bt®onu:
Plan; (iii) to establish, amend and rescind ruled eegulations for the administration of the St@nus Plan; and (iv) to make all other determima
necessary or advisable for administering the SBmkus Plan.

As of March 31, 2014, no shares had been grantéerihe Stock Bonus Plan.
Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Tranactions
Major shareholders
We are not directly or indirectly owned or conteallby any foreign government or by another corpamat The following table sets forth, as of J

30, 2014, beneficial ownership of our common stbglkeach person, to the best of our knowledge, knmaown beneficially 5% or more of our comn
stock outstanding as of such date. Except aswibeindicated, all shares are owned directly aold Bqual voting rights.
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Name Shares of Options to Percent of

Common Stock Purchase Beneficial
Owned Common Stocl Ownershig®
Anthony Sc 2,281,77(@ - 40.5%
Hon Ming Char 350,00t - 6.28%
CAS Corporatior 290,65 - 5.21%
Q) Based on beneficial ownership of both sharesaimon stock and of options to purchase commark $tat are immediately exercisable.
The calculations above are based upon the numistranés issued of 5,577,6.
2) Includes 1,143,421 shares of common stock owneeaufrd by a corporation that is wholly owned byt of which Mr. So is the sc
beneficiary.

3) According to the Schedule 13D filed by CAS Corpimabn December 11, 200
There are no arrangements known to us which maysabsequent date result in a change in contthieo€ompany.
Related Party Transactions

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 241@ 2014, we paid Schlueter & Associates, P.C.ggnegate of $68,000, $74,000 and $84,
respectively for legal fees. Mr. Henry F. Schlugtedirector of the Company, is the Managing Dieof Schlueter & Associates, P.C.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, we enladns aggregating approximately $1,052,000 toGhairman and Chief Executive Offi

Anthony So. Management believed at the time thatidns were made that these loans were permissiblelid not violate Section 13(k) of the Exche
Act, because Mr. So would be able to repay theafimbunt by foregoing his salary and accrued anleask payments until the loans had been paid in ful
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We advanced the funds to Mr. So on two separatasimes, and Mr. So directed that his salary paysn@nd accrued annual leave payments be
to offset the amounts that we loaned to him. Initeatd Mr. Albert So and Mr. Andrew So, who are ioffrs and directors of the Company, directec
Company to use their accrued annual leave paynentartially satisfy the amounts due to the Compfogn Mr. Anthony So. On March 31, 2014,
amount due to the Company from Mr. So was $166,000August 7, 2014, Mr. So paid $166,000 to the gamy to fully repay the amounts loaned to |
The loans were non-interest bearing.

Notwithstanding Mr. Anthony So's repayment in fofiithe loans made to him, those loans constitwielation of Section 13(k) of the Exchange
and Section 402(a) of Sarbanes-Oxley.

As a result of this inadvertent violation, the Bbadopted a policy regarding loans or advancesyd=aecutive Officer or Director of the Compa
The policy provides that "The Company shall noedily or indirectly, including through any subsigiaextend or maintain credit to, or arrange foe
extension of credit, or renew an extension of ¢redithe form of a personal loan to or for anydgiior or Executive Officer (or equivalent thereof)the
Company or any subsidiary of the Company."
Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not Applicable to Bonso.
Legal Proceedings

Not Applicable to Bonso.
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Item 8. Financial Information
Financial Statements
Our Consolidated Financial Statements are set tortter Item 18. - Financial Statements.
Item 9. The Offer and Listing
Offer and Listing Details
Our common stock is traded only in the United Stateer-thecounter market. It is quoted on the NASDAQ Capifalrket under the trading syml
"BNSO." The following table sets forth, for therjpels indicated, the range of high and low clossades prices per share reported by NASDAQ.

quotations represent prices between dealers andtdaclude retail markup, markdown or commissiand may not necessarily represent actual transectio

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices for each of the last five years:

Period High Low
April 1, 2009 to March 31, 201 $1.42 $0.63
April 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011 $2.44 $0.86
April 1, 2011 to March 31, 201 $2.80 $1.07
April 1, 2012 to March 31, 201 $1.88 $0.88
April 1, 2013 to March 31, 201 $2.94 $1.33
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The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices during each of the quarters in the twa-peaod ended June 30, 2014.

Period High Low

July 1, 2012 to September 30, 2( $1.10 $0.88
October 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 $1.72 $0.97
January 1, 2013 to March 31, 2C $1.66 $1.25
April 1, 2013 to June 30, 20: $1.56 $1.33
July 1, 2013 to September 30, 2( $1.98 $1.35
October 1, 2013 to December 31, 2( $2.23 $1.35
January 1, 2014 to March 31, 2C $2.94 $1.46
April 1, 2014 to June 30, 20: $2.10 $1.34

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices during each of the most recent six months.

Period High Low

January 201. $2.94 $1.46
February 2014 $2.10 $1.72
March 2014 $2.18 $1.63
April 2014 $1.73 $1.55
May 2014 $1.70 $1.34

June 201« $2.10 $1.42
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On July 15, 2014, the closing price of our commimtls was $1.94. Of the 5,577,639 shares of comstock issued as of June 30, 2014, 5,24¢
shares were outstanding, 2,412,370 shares werdrhtid United States by 169 holders of record 28@,736 shares were held by the Company as tre
stock. We have 181 shareholders of record anthatgithat we have 511 shareholders holding theaksin street name (who have not objected to
names being disclosed to us).

Transfer and Warrant Agent

The transfer agent and registrar for the commockstoComputershare, 1745 Gardena Avenue #200dalenCalifornia 91204.
Item 10. Additional Information
Share Capital

Our authorized capital is $170,000, consisting3)833,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 par y@ushare, and 10,000,000 authorized sha
preferred stock, $0.01 par value, divided into 8,600 shares each of class A preferred stock, 8aseferred stock, class C preferred stock andschi
preferred stock. Information with respect to thenber of shares of common stock outstanding abdigenning and at the end of the last three fisealry i:
presented in the Consolidated Statements of Chand&sareholders' Equity for the fiscal years enliadch 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 included hereinem
18.

At June 30, 2014, there were 5,577,639 sharesrof@mumon stock issued, 5,246,903 shares were adista and 330,736 shares were held b
Company in treasury. All shares were fully palid.addition, we had outstanding 70,000 optionsurcpase common stock as follows:

Exercise Price per

Number of Option: Share Expiration Date
40,000 $6.20 September 12, 201
30,000 $4.50 December 4, 201

At June 30, 2014, there were no shares of our peefestock outstanding.
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Memorandum and Articles of Association

We are registered in the British Virgin Islands drave been assigned company number 9032 in thsteegif companies. Our registered age
HWR Services Limited at Craigmuir Chambers, P.Ox B, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Island¥he object or purpose of the Company is to en
in any act or activity that is not prohibited unditish Virgin Islands law as set forth in Parggtad of our Memorandum of Association. As an In&tiona
Business Company, we are prohibited from doingri®ss with persons resident in the British Virgilautsls, owning real estate in the British Virgiraistls o
acting as a bank or insurance company. We doeimve that these restrictions materially affeat operations.

Paragraph 57(c) of our Amended Articles of Assdaiafthe "Articles") provides that a director mag @ounted as one of a quorum in respect o
contract or arrangement in which the director igemally interested; however, if the agreementransaction cannot be approved by a resolutionrettiir:
without counting the vote or consent of any interdglirector, the agreement or transaction may belyalidated by approval or ratification by a teton of
the members. Paragraph 53 of the Articles alldwesdirectors to vote compensation to themselvesspect of services rendered to the Company. Rk
66 of the Articles provides that the directors nigyresolution exercise all the powers of the ComgpEnborrow money and to mortgage or charg
undertakings and property or any part thereofssue debentures, debenture stock and other sesuwiitienever money is borrowed or as security fg
debt, liability or obligation of ours or of any tHiparty. Such borrowing powers can be alteredbgmendment to the Articles. There is no prowisiothe
Articles for the mandatory retirement of directoBirectors are not required to own shares of tam@any in order to serve as directors.

Our authorized share capital is $170,000, divided 23,333,334 shares of common stock, $0.003 alaey and 10,000,000 authorized share
preferred stock, $0.01 par value. Holders of mmmon stock are entitled to one vote for each wkhkre on all matters to be voted upon by sharehs
including the election of directors. Holders of @@mmon stock do not have cumulative voting rightthe election of directors. All of our commadmase:
are equal to each other with respect to liquidatiod dividend rights. Holders of our common sharesentitled to receive dividends if and when aesd b
our board of directors out of funds legally avaltaltherefor under British Virgin Islands law. lhet event of our liquidation, all assets availalie
distribution to the holders of our common sharesdistributable among them according to their respe holdings. Holders of our common stock hae
preemptive rights to purchase any additional uidstommon shares. No shares of our preferred simok been issued; however, the board of direbiar
the ability to determine the rights, preferences istrictions of the preferred stock at their gition.

70




Paragraph 7 of the Memorandum of Association pewithat without prejudice to any special rightsvimesly conferred on the holders of i
existing shares, any share may be issued with grefhrred, deferred or other special rights or seditrictions, whether in regard to dividend, vgtineturt
of capital or otherwise, as the directors may ftome to time determine.

Paragraph 10 of the Memorandum of Association pleithat if at any time the authorized share caigitdivided into different classes or serie
shares, the rights attached to any class or sexdgsbe varied with the consent in writing of thddeos of not less than thrdedrths of the issued shares
any other class or series of shares which mayfeetafl by such variation.

Paragraph 105 of the Articles of Association presithat our Memorandum and Articles of Associatiy be amended by a resolution of men
or a resolution of directors. Thus, our board wéctors without shareholder approval may amend Memorandum and Articles of Association. 1
includes amendments to increase or reduce our r@zgdocapital stock. Our ability to amend our Meamalum and Articles of Association with
shareholder approval could have the effect of detpydeterring or preventing a change in controthef Company, including a tender offer to purchas
common shares at a premium over the then currerkamngarice.
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Provisions in respect of the holding of general tings and extraordinary general meetings are sdhd®aragraphs 68 through 77 of the Articles
under the International Business Companies Acte dinectors may convene meetings of the membessdit times and in such manner and places
directors consider necessary or desirable, andghaly convene such a meeting upon the writtenastgof members holding more than 30% of the vof
our outstanding voting shares.

British Virgin Islands law and our Memorandum andides of Association impose no limitations on tight of nonresident or foreign owners
hold or vote our securities. There are no prowsiin the Memorandum and Articles of Associatiorvegaing the ownership threshold above w
shareholder ownership must be disclosed.

A copy of our Memorandum and Atrticles of Associatias amended, was filed as an exhibit to our Reagisn Statement on Form Z{SEC Filt
No. 33:-32524).

Material Contracts

The following summarizes each material contradieptthan contracts entered into in the ordinaryremwf business, to which Bonso or
subsidiary of Bonso is a party, for the two yeanmiediately preceding the filing of this report:

We signed a Banking Facility Letter dated May 1@]142 with Hang Seng Bank for an approximately HK@83illion (or approximately US$ 1(
million) letter of credit, trust receipt facilityexport D/P bills, export trade loan, factoring, wraft facility and financial instruments includirfgrwarc
contracts. A copy of this Banking Facilities Letigattached to this Annual Report on Form 20-Ex=sibit 4.1 and is incorporated herein by thigrehce.

Exchange Controls

There are no exchange control restrictions on paysnef dividends on our common stock or on the aehdf our operations either in Hong Ko
where our principal executive offices are locatadthe British Virgin Islands, where we are incaigged. Other jurisdictions in which we conduct igien
may have various exchange controls. Taxation apdtriation of profits regarding our China openasi@re regulated by Chinese laws and regulatigvish
respect to our PRC subsidiaries, with the excepfom requirement that approximately 11% of prdfiesreserved for future developments and staffare
there are no restrictions on the payment of divideand the removal of dividends from China oncedaadés are paid and assessed and losses, if am
previous years have been made good. To date, thes®ls have not had, and are not expected te,lmmaterial impact on our financial results. réhare
no material British Virgin Islands laws that impofegeign exchange controls on us or that affectpghgment of dividends, interest or other paymeo
holders of our securities who are not residentghefBritish Virgin Islands. British Virgin Islandaw and our Memorandum and Articles of Associe
impose no limitations on the right of honresidentaveign owners to hold or vote our securities.
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Taxation

No reciprocal tax treaty regarding withholding éxibetween the United States and the British Vitgiands. Under current British Virgin Islat
law, dividends, interest or royalties paid by usniividuals are not subject to tax as long asréugpient is not a resident of the British Virgsldnds. If w
were to pay a dividend, we would not be liable ithtwold any tax, but shareholders would receivesgrdividends, if any, irrespective of their resiror
national status.

Dividends, if any, paid to any United States restder citizen shareholder are treated as dividermdre for United States federal income
purposes. Such dividends are not eligible for 7886 dividendseceived deduction allowed to United States compmra on dividends from a dome:
corporation under Section 243 of the Internal ReeeBode. Various Internal Revenue Code provisimp®se special taxes in certain circumstances on no
United States corporations and their shareholdéa are urged to consult your tax advisor withameigto such possibilities and your own tax situatio

A foreign corporation will be treated as a pasdimeeign investment company ("PFIC") for United 8taffederal income tax purposes if, ¢
applying relevant lookhrough rules with respect to the income and asdetabsidiaries, 75% or more of its gross incomesests of certain types of pass
income or 50% or more of the gross value of itesis attributable to assets that produce pagsivene or are held for the production of passivaine.
For this purpose, passive income generally inclutiléglends, interest, royalties, rents (other tleats and royalties derived in the active condfiet vade ¢
business), annuities and gains from assets thdtipeopassive income. We presently believe thaangenot a PFIC and do not anticipate becoming &F
This is, however, a factual determination made mm@nual basis and is subject to change. If wewebe classified as a PFIC in any taxable yéad.§.
holders would generally be required to treat anip ga sales of our shares held by them as ordimagme and to pay an interest charge on the vdltee
deferral of their United States federal incomeatixibutable to such gain and (ii) distributionsdoly us to our United States holders could alssuigect t
an interest charge. In addition, we would not fievinformation to our United States holders thauld enable them to make a "qualified electing fi
election under which, generally, in lieu of thedgoing treatment, our earnings would be curremttjuided in their United States federal income.

In addition to United States federal income taxatghareholders may be subject to state and lagkastupon their receipt of dividends.
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Documents on Display

You may read and copy documents referred to inAhisual Report on Form 2B-that have been filed with the SEC at the SECHi®®Referenc
Room, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. Yoay obtain information on the operation of the IRuBeference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800
SEC-0330. You can also obtain copies of our SE@S& by going to the SEC's website at http://wvag.gov.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference'itfiemation we file with the SEC. This means that can disclose important information to
by referring you to another document filed sepdyatdth the SEC. The information incorporated lefaerence is considered to be part of this AnnugoR
on Form 20-F.

Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosureAbout Market Risk

We are exposed to a certain level of interestniakeand foreign currency exchange risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk primarily arises from ouroskerm debt and our general banking facilities. AsMarch 31, 2014, we had utiliz
approximately $5,477,000 of our total banking féiett of $10,698,000. Based on the maturity peofihd composition of our lortgrm debt and gene
banking facilities, including the fact that our Bamg facilities are at variable interest rates, @gtimate that changes in interest rates will noehamateri:
impact on our operating results or cash flows. iffend to manage our interest rate risk throughr@piate borrowing strategies. We have not entarta
interest rate swap or risk management agreememtg\rer, it is possible that we may do so in therit

A summary of our debts as at March 31, 2014 whieheveubjected to variable interest rates is asbelo

March 31, Interest
2014 Rate
Notes payabli $ 2,527,001 HIBOR + 2.5%
Bank overdraf- securec $ 630,00( PRIME + 1%
Factoring $ 546,00( HIBOR + 1.5%
Shor-term loan $ 1,774,00 HIBOR + 2.25%

(Note: HIBOR is the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate

All the balances above are due within one year.

A change in the interest rate of 1% will increase@crease the interest expense of the Compangrgximately $44,000.

For further information concerning our banking fitieis, the interest rates payable and repaymamsdeplease see Note 7 to our Consolic

Financial Statements included elsewhere in thisuahReport.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

For a discussion of our Foreign Currency Exchanigé&,FSee Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects,ei§orCurrency Exchan
Rates."

Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equy Securities
Not applicable to Bonso.

PART II

Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delingencies
None.

Iltem 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of curity Holders and Use of Proceeds
None.

Item 15. Controls and Procedures

The Company's management, with the participatioitso€hief Executive Officer and the Chief Finahd@dficer, conducted an evaluation of
disclosure controls and procedures, as definecaragraph (e) of Rule 13a-15 or 158-under the Exchange Act, as of March 31, 2014. Campany'
internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed under the supervision of the Chiefdike Officer, the Chief Operating Officer and tGhie!
Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurareganding the reliability of financial reporting anke preparation of financial statements for exl
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles. Our internal control over fingalaeporting includes those policies and procesltinat:
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1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inorealsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trensactions and dispositions of our ass

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactioneeneded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiahstatements in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of our Company are being made iongccordance with authorizations of
management and directors; ¢

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventidimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of assets that could ha
material effect on the financial statemel

There are inherent limitations in the effectivenefany internal control, including the possibiliy human error and the circumvention or overrii
of controls. Accordingly, even effective internadntrols can provide only reasonable assurances mggpect to financial statement preparation. s
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessuimfe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate because of changes in ioosdlio
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In making this assessment, management used thexiarigstablished in Internal Controlategrated Framework issued by the Committe
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis$ie@SO). Based on this evaluation and after disonswith our auditors, Anthony So, the Ct
Executive Officer, and Albert So, the Chief Finai®fficer, have concluded that, there were centadterial weaknesses in our internal controls ddanict
31, 2014, related to our financial closing, thedut of our year end inventory count, the lackrafited accounting personnel, the entry of certaindaction
into the accounting records on a timely basis, thedapproval of loans to an officer and directovimlation of Section 13(k) adopted under the Exgf@Ac
as more particularly described below.

® We have not maintained effective internal contreérothe financial closing process to provide reabtam assurance that the financial statemen
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Arting Principles (GAAP)
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® We did not have

B a sufficient number of experienced personnel inameounting and finance departments to provideoredsle assurance that transactions were
recorded, and adequate supervisory reviews andtonmg activities over financial reporting mattensd controls performed, as necessary to p
the preparation of the financial statements in edaace with GAAP

B timely and accurate preparation and review of gl-end account analyses and timely disposition ofraguired adjustment

B adequate training of and communication to employegmrding their duties and control responsibgitiwithin the accounting and finar
organization to ensure that processes and corttioltees were being carried out appropriately;

B adequate training of and communication to employegarding their duties and control responsibaitia conducting the year end invent
counting procest

B These material weaknesses resulted in materialgbmsing adjustments reflected in the financial estants for the year ended March 31, 2
These adjustments resulted in changes to assdditiies, stockholders' equity, income and expsr

® \We inadvertently violated Section 13(k) of the Exage Act and Section 402(a) of Sarbi-Oxley in making loans to an officer and direct

Notwithstanding the identified material weaknesseanagement believes the consolidated financigérmstnts included in this Annual Report
Form 20F fairly present in all material respects our ficiahcondition, results of operations and cash §@tand for the periods presented in accordanth
U.S. GAAP.

Remediation Efforts

In response to the material weaknesses descrilmae aimanagement, with the input and support ofAtindit Committee, identified and has taken
following steps since March 31, 2014:

We have had discussions with experienced persowsprdviously worked in the accounting and finanepaitment of the Company about bt
rehired by the Company. These persons left the @ogip employment when we moved our production m®oe Xinxing, but we believe we may be ab
interest them in returning to the Company. Whetherare able to bring our previous staff back tokwfor the Company or not, we intend to hire addigi
accounting personnel during the current fiscal yeamprove the levels of review of accounting dimancial reporting matters. We may experience yiele
doing so and any such additional employees williregtime and training to learn our business anerajing processes and procedures. For theteaar-
until such personnel are familiar with our businass reporting structure, this will continue to stitute a material weakness in our internal conorcd!
financial reporting that could result in materiabstatements in our financial statements not bpiegented or detected.

78




As described in "Risk Factors" and "Related Pantgn$actions" in this document, the Company hadvieraently violated Section 13(k) of 1
Exchange Act and Section 402(a) of Sarbabekey. As a result of this inadvertent violatiohetBoard adopted a policy regarding loans or ack&te an
Executive Officer or Director of the Company suhsstt to March 31, 2014. The policy provides thate TTCompany shall not directly or indirectly, inciog
through any subsidiary, extend or maintain cremlior arrange for the extension of credit, or reemextension of credit, in the form of a persdoah to o
for any Director or Executive Officer (or equivalehereof) of the Company or any subsidiary of @mmpany.

If the remedial measures described above are inmuff to address any of the identified materiahlwgesses or are not implemented effectivel
additional deficiencies arise in the future, maernisstatements in our interim or annual finansi@tements may occur in the future. We are cuy
working to implement enhanced controls, as disaiab®ve, to address the material weaknesses iimteanal control over financial reporting and tonedy
the ineffectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures. A key element of our remediation effothe ability to recruit and retain qualified imdiuals tc
support our remediation efforts. While our Auditr@uittee and Board of Directors have been suppodiveur efforts by supporting the hiring of vari
individuals in finance, as well as funding effottsimprove our financial reporting system, imprownin internal control will be hampered if we cat
recruit and retain more qualified professionals.olg other things, any unremediated material weaasesould result in material pagdsing adjustments
future financial statements. Furthermore, any suulemediated material weaknesses could have teeteffiescribed above in the Risk Factor captiolée
have identified material weaknesses in our inteogeaitrol over financial reporting which could, ibihnremediated, result in material misstatementsuil
financial statements." Management believes thatdéheediation items listed above, if executed, eflsure that data and reports can be relied upotié
purpose of accurately and timely recording trarisastin accordance with GAAP.

Item 16. Reserved
Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Henry F. Schlueter is a member of the Company'sitAodmmittee and is deemed to be a financial expkht. Schlueter, the Company's out:
securities counsel, may not be deemed to be "inutgre” within the definition of "independence" pished by NASDAQ.
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Item 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that appliesn&bief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offit We intend to disclose any changes in, or
waivers from, our code of ethics by filing a ForaK6 Stockholders may request a free copy in gomn from our Chief Financial Officer at:

Bonso Electronics International, Inc.
Unit 1404, 14/F, Cheuk Nang Centre
9 Hillwood Road, Tsimshatsui

Kowloon
Hong Kong

Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Audit Committee's Pre-approval Policies and Procedre

The Audit Committee must pre-approve the audit mmraudit services performed by the independent auilitorder to assure that the provisiol
such services does not impair the auditor's indégrece. Before the Company or any of its subsieagngage the independent auditor to render asetii
engagement must be either:

Q) specifically approved by the Audit Committee; or

2) entered into pursuant to this Pre-Approval Policy.

The term of any pre-approval is 12 months fromdat of preapproval, unless the Audit Committee specificaligyides for a different period. T
Audit Committee may periodically revise the listpyk-approved services.
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The Audit Committee may delegate f@pproval authority to one or more of its membefsie member or members to whom such author
delegated shall report any papproval decisions to the Audit Committee at itxtngcheduled meeting. The Audit Committee may delegate t
management the Audit Committee's responsibilitigsre-approve services performed by the indeperalatitor.

The Audit Committee must specifically pagprove the terms of the annual audit servicesgamgant. The Audit Committee shall approw
necessary, any changes in terms resulting fromggsaim audit scope, Company structure or otheremsatin addition to the annual audit services eagam
approved by the Audit Committee, the Audit Comngittaay grant prepproval for other audit services, which are themsevices that only the indepenc
auditor reasonably can provide.

The Audit Committee may grant pre-approval to thesemissible normudit services classified as other services thaglieves would not impair t
independence of the auditor, including those thatrautine and recurring services.

The Audit Committee may consider the amount or eaofjestimated fees as a factor in determining kdread proposed service would impair
auditor's independence. Where the Audit Committee dpproved an estimated fee for a service, thegpeoval applies to all services described ir
approval. However, in the event the invoice impexs of any such service is materially in excesthefestimated amount or range, the Audit Commitias
approve such excess amount prior to payment ofrthgice. The Audit Committee expects that any e=gsi to pay invoices in excess of the estin
amounts will include an explanation as to the redeothe overage. The Company's independent@uditl be informed of this policy.

The Company's management shall inform the Audit @dtee of each service performed by the independeditor pursuant to this PAgpprova
Policy. Requests or applications to provide ses/itat require separate approval by the Audit Cdtemishall be submitted to the Audit Committee bth
the independent auditor and the Chief Financiaic®ffand must include a joint statement as to wdreih their view, the request or application isgisten
with the SEC's and the Public Company Accounting®ght Board (United States)'s rules on auditdefiendence.

The Audit Fees indicated below was pre-approvethbyAudit Committee before the auditor commenceit tvork.
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Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Moore Stephens fofepsimnal services rendered for the audit of then@any's annual consolidated finan
statements for the fiscal years ended March 314 20@ 2013 were $200,000 and $180,000, respectively

Audit Related Fees

There were no fees billed by Moore Stephens fofeggional services rendered for assurance aneédedatrvices that were reasonably related t
performance of the audit and are not reported aboder "Audit Fees" for the fiscal year ended Ma8&h2014 and for the fiscal year ended March 8132

Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed by a company controlijet¥bore Stephens for professional services rendfnethx compliance for the fiscal year en
March 31, 2014 were approximately $4,500 and $3f60¢€he fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

Item 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards fo Audit Committees

Pursuant to NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4350(a), aifpreprivate issuer may follow its home country pieein lieu of Rule 4350, which sets fc
the qualitative Listing Requirements for NASDAQtdid companies. Rule 4350 requires, among othagshithat a listed company have at least
members on its audit committee. The Company ctiyréas an audit committee consisting of two dioest one of whom is deemed to be "independer
defined in NASDAQ Marketplace Rule 4200. The Comphas obtained a letter from independent coumstilg British Virgin Islands certifying that hav
a single member audit committee is not prohibitg@htish Virgin Island law. See " NASDAQ Exempti® and Home Country Practices."
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Item 16E. Purchasers of Equity Securities by thessuer and Affiliated Purchasers

In August of 2001, the Company's Board of Direcauthorized a program for the Company to repurchase $500,000 of its common stock. 1
repurchase program does not obligate the Compaagguire any specific number of shares or acquieges over any specified period of time. No st
had been repurchased up to March 31, 2006. On rNibee 16, 2006, the Company's Board of Directorhi@ized an additional $1,000,000 for
Company's repurchase of its common stock undesdhge repurchase program. This authorization torcbpge shares increased the amount authoriz
repurchase from $500,000 to $1,500,000. The Conigdmough its subsidiary) has repurchased an aggeeof 330,736 shares of its common si
including 70,019 ($134,000) shares that were rdmged during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.shares were repurchased during the fiscal
ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014. The Compayyfram time to time repurchase shares of its ComBtock under this program.

Item 16F. Changes in Registrant's Certifying Accontants.
Not applicable to Bonso.
Item 16G. Corporate Governance.

For a discussion of the ways in which the Compacgtporate governance differs from those followgddbmestic companies under the NASC
Marketplace listing requirements, see "NASDAQ Exéons and Home Country Practices" above.

Item 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure.

Not applicable to Bonso.
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PART IlI

Item 17. Financial Statements
Not applicable.

Item 18. Financial Statements

The following Financial Statements are filed ag p&this Annual Report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 20d 2014

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsearee(iLoss) / Income for the years endec
March 31, 2012, 2013 and 20

Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholBgrsty for the years ended March 31, 201
2013 and 201

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaadecMarch 31, 2012, 2013 and 20
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Item 19. Exhibits

41 Banking Facility Letter, dated May 14, 2014 betw8amso and the Hang Seng Bank Limi
4.2 Rental Agreement (abridged English translationgddiune 28, 2013, between Bonso and Shenzhen MeiiteCo., Ltd. (1.
11.1  Code of Ethics For Chief Executive Officer and Glimancial Officer (2]
12.1  Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1386,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002
12.2  Certification of Officer Pursuant to Section 1388,adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 200z
13.1  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopteduant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
13.2  Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 as adopteduant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z
Q) Filed as an Exhibit on the Form-F filed with the Commission on August 15, 20

2) Filed as an Exhibit on Form -F filed with the Commission on August 13, 20
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SIGNATURE

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets athe requirements for filing on Form Zand that it has duly caused and authorized thersignet
to sign this Annual Report on its behalf.

BONSO ELECTRONICS INTERNATIONAL INC

Dated: August 15, 2014 /s/ Anthony Sc
Anthony Sc
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer,
Treasurer and Directc

Dated: August 15, 201 /sl Albert Sc
Albert So
Director, Chief Financial Officer and Secret:
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Bonso Electronics International Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Bonso Electronics International Ind. subsidiaries (the "Company") as of March 31,3
and 2014 and the related consolidated statememtperations and comprehensive (loss) / income,gd®im stockholders' equity, and cash flows fohea
the three years in the period ended March 31, 200Hese consolidated financial statements are ébponsibility of the Company's management.
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobdated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf8lo(United States). Those standards requirt
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablirance about whether the consolidated finastaééments are free of material misstatement.
Company is not required to have, nor were we erdjag@erform, an audit of its internal control o¥igancial reporting. Our audits included consatir
of internal control over financial reporting as asts for designing audit procedures that are apjatepin the circumstances, but not for the purpos
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thm@any's internal control over financial reportingccordingly, we express no such opinion. An ¢
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the cons@tlfihancial statements. An audit also includegssin
the accounting principles used and significantnesties made by management, as well as evaluatingvéirall financial statement presentation. We ve
that our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all mater@spects, the consolidated financial positiontle
Company as of March 31, 2013 and 2014, and theotidaged results of its operations and its casigléor each of the three years in the period enaxtt
31, 2014, in conformity with accounting principigsnerally accepted in the United States of America.

/sl Moore Stephens

Moore Stephens

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

August 15, 2014




Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Fixed deposits maturing over three months
Trade receivables, n
Other receivables, deposits and prepaym
Receivable from affiliated par
Inventories
Financial instruments at fair val
Income tax recoverable

Total current assets

Investment in life insurance contract
Deposits - non current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings
Constructio-in-progress
Plant and machinel
Furniture, fixtures and equipme
Motor vehicles

Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment
Property, plant and equipment, |

Intangible assets, net
Financial instruments at fair value - non current portion

Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders' equity

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts - secured

Notes payabl

Accounts payabl

Accrued charges and depos

Income tax liabilities

Payable to affiliated party

Shor-term bank loan- securec

Financial instruments at fair val

Current portion of capital lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Financial instruments at fair value - non current portion
Capital lease obligations - non current portion
Income tax liabilities

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Stockholders' equity
Common stock par value $0.003 per st
- authorized share- 23,333,33¢
- issued shares: 2013 and 2014 - 5,577,639,
- outstanding shares: 2013 and 2 5,246,90:
Additional paicin capital
Treasury stock at cost: 2013 and 2~ 330,736 share

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Note

10

15

11(a)

11(a)

12

March 31
2013 2014
$ in thousand $ in thousand
(Note A)

1,14C 11€
1,01< 1,04¢
2,75¢ 2,48(
1,61F 1,781
- 16€
5,46( 7,54¢
54 -
1,74(C 1,74(
13,78: 14,87
127 131
28€E 29:¢
13,70¢ 14,33¢
2,61¢ 3,18:
21,56 11,27¢
3,521 1,17(¢
444 58¢
41,85( 30,557
(33,55’) (18,105)
8,29¢ 12,45:
4,59( 4,387
37 -
27,12% 32,14(
18C 63C
2,27¢ 2,52
7,798 10,41:
2,32¢ 2,591
7 7
- 10
1,357 2,32(
- 11¢
- 23
13,94: 18,64¢
- 20¢
- 69
2,59¢ 2,59¢
17 17
21,76¢ 21,76¢
(1,462 (1,462)



Accumulated defici
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

(12,58%) (12,809)

2,85¢ 3,111
10,58¢ 10,62:
27,12: 32,14(

Note A: Certain accounts in the balance sheet otM3a1, 2013 have been reclassified to conform thighpresentation of that of March 31, 20

See notes to these consolidated financial stateament
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statem ents of Operations and Comprehsive (Loss) / Income

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year ended March 3.

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling expense

Salaries and related co:

Research and development expet

Administration and general expent

Other income

Gain from liquidation of subsidiai

Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment

(Loss) / profit from operatior
Interest income

Interest expens
Foreign exchange loss

Loss before income taxi
Income tax expense

Net loss

Other comprehensive income, net of 1

Foreign currency translation adjustments, netf ta

Comprehensive (loss) / income

Weighted average number of shares outstandinge aad diluted

Net loss per shar- basic and diluted

Note 2012 2013 2014
$ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand
(Note A) (Note A)
19 26,68 30,38¢ 31,30¢
(22,787) (25,267 (28,637)
3,90( 5,12: 2,67¢
(267) (26€) (389
(2,526 (2,627 (2,987
(312 (396 (366)
(2,492 (2,402 (2,964
11€ 16E 72¢
1,44¢ - -
14 2 3,59¢
19 (117) (403 29t
7 7 64
(87) (68) (13¢€)
(703) (261) (444)
(900) (725) (22))
8 (2 (29 .
(902 (754) (22))
353 62 257
(549) (692) 36
18 5,246,90: 5,246,90: 5,246,90:
18 (0.17) (0.14) (0.04)

Note A: Certain accounts in the consolidated state of operations and comprehensive (loss) / imcfamthe fiscal years ended March 31, 2012 and:
have been reclassified to conform with the presemiaf that the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014.

See notes to these consolidated financial statement
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Balance, April 1, 201.

Net loss

Foreign exchange translation
adjustment

Balance, March 31, 201

Net loss

Foreign exchange translation
adjustment

Balance, March 31, 201

Net loss

Foreign exchange translation
adjustment

Balance, March 31, 2014

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidate d Statements of Changes in Stockholdé&quity

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Common stocl Treasury stocl Accumulated
other
comprehensiv
income-
Additional Treasury foreign Total
Shares Amount paic-in Shares Amount Accumulate: currency stockholder:
Issuec outstandin capital held outstanding deficit adjustment: equity
$in $in $in $in $in
thousand:  thousand: thousand: thousand:  $inthousand thousand:
5,577,63! 17 21,76" 330,73¢ (1,462) (20,937 2,43¢ 11,827
- - - - - (902) - (902)
- - - - - - 35¢ 358
5,577,63! 17 21,76t 330,73t (1,462) (11,83¢) 2,792 11,27¢
- - - - - (759) - (754)
- - - - - - 62 62
5,577,63! 17 21,76t 330,73t (1,462) (12,58%) 2,85¢ 10,58¢
- - - - - (221) - (221)
- - - - - - 257 257
5,577,63! 17 21,76t 330,73t (1,462) (12,809 3,111 10,62:

See notes to these consolidated financial statement




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year Ended March 3:

2012 2013 2014
$ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand
Note A Note A
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss (902 (7549) (221)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Depreciatior 54 12C 1,08¢
Amortization 17€ 22¢ 28¢
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipn (149 (2 (3,595
Write-down of inventorie: 283 - 874
Write off of property, plant and equipme - - 1,511
Change in cash surrender value of life insurancéraot - (5) (4)
Change in fair value of financial instrume (57 (35 41¢
Gain from liquidation of subsidial (1,449 - -
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Trade receivable (770 (67¢) 27¢
Other receivables, deposits and prepaym (16€) (792 (16€)
Receivable from affiliated par - - (16€)
Inventories 46C (1,355 (2,959
Income tax recoverab - (22 -
Accounts payabl 2,30: 2,761 2,62(
Accrued charges and depos 14¢ (18) 26¢
Payable to affilated party - - 10
Income tax liabilities 20 (37) -
Deferred income tax liabilities (17) (2) -
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating iietv 70 (599 24¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andpegent 25 2 40
Acquisition of property, plant and equipm: (3,415 (1,412 (2,77%)
Acquisition of intangible asse - (802) -
Premium payment of life insurance contr (122 - -
Increase in fixed deposits maturing over threatims - (1,019 (35)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,517) (3,226 (2,779
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital lease paymer - - (29
Increase in notes payal 537 40€ 251
Net advance from banking facilities - 1,537 1,41%
Net cash generated from financing activities 537 1,94% 1,63¢
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (2,905 (1,876 (892
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatnts held in foreign currenci 507 2 (132
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 5,412 3,01 1,14(
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,01« 1,14(C 11€
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year fc
Interesi 87 68 13¢€
Income tax, net of refun - 90 -
Non-cash investing activitie
Property plant and equipment acquired under capiak - - 12C

Note A: Certain figures in the consolidated statetra# cash flows of the years ended March 31, 28@ 2013 have been reclassified to conform witl
presentation of that of March 31, 20:



See notes to these consolidated financial stateament
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(b)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Note s to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies

Bonso Electronics International Inc. ("the Compadrasid its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Grouple engaged in the designing, manufacturing
selling of a comprehensive line of electronic ssaad weighing instruments, pet electronics pradant other products.

The consolidated financial statements have beguaped in United States dollars and in accordande generally accepted accounting principle
the United States of America. The preparation afsotidated financial statements requires managemnoentake estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liagsliind disclosure of contingent assets and ligsiliat the dates of the consolidated final
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxgehses during the reporting periods. Signifiesiimates made by management inc
valuation of inventories, allowance for trade reaeiles and the impairment of long-lived assetsuélatesults could differ from those estimates.

The Group sustained operating losses in fiscalsyeaded March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, includingtdoss of $221,000 in the fiscal year er
March 31, 2014.

Notwithstanding the operating losses sustainethénldst three fiscal years, the accompanying cafeet financial statements have been pre|
on a going concern basis. Management believes thapGwill have sufficient working capital to meés financing requirements based upon
experience and their assessment of the Group'sgbed| performance, credit facilities and bankirgtienships.

Pursuant to an agreement signed on March 30, 200®na Haushaltswaren GmbH & Co. KG ("Korona"),iadirect subsidiary of the Compa
agreed to sell all of its major assets, comprisiage receivables, inventories, intellectual propaghts and toolings, to a third party purchaaes
consideration of approximately EUR 1,990,000 (oDUE606,000). The Group decided to liquidate Karafter the completion of the sale. A ¢
from liquidation of subsidiary of $1,448,000 wasarled for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 [duidation of Korona was completec
February 2012.

The significant accounting policies are as follows:
Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include ithentcial statements of the Company and its sub#diafter elimination of intecompany accour
and transactions.

Acquisitions of companies have been consolidatewh fihe date on which control of the net assetsopedations was transferred to the Group.
Acquisitions of companies are accounted for udirgpurchase method of accounting.
Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents are skemt, highly liquid investments with original maitigs of three months or less. Cash equivalergsstated
cost, which approximates fair value because oshwet-term maturity of these instruments.




(©

(d)

(e)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Note s to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost , dsrdéned on a first-in, firsbut basis, or market. Costs of inventories inclpdechase and relat
costs incurred in bringing the products to theggant location and condition. Market value is deteed by reference to the selling price aftel
balance sheet date or to management estimates basprevailing market conditions. The Company irmly reviews its inventories for th
salability and for indications of obsolescence étedmine if inventory carrying values are higharthmarket value. Some of the significant fac
the Company considers in estimating the marketevaluits inventories include the likelihood of clgas in market and customer demand
expected changes in market prices for its inveesori

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced ataet of allowances for doubtful accounts aneésatturns. The allowance for doubtful acco
is the Group's best estimate of the amount of fneberedit losses in the Group's existing tradeirables. Bad debt expense is included i
administrative and general expenses.

The Group recognizes an allowance for doubtful ikeddes to ensure accounts and other receivabkesair overstated due to uncollectibili
Allowance for doubtful receivables is maintained &i customers based on a variety of factorsuidiclg the length of time the receivables are
due, significant onéime events and historical experience. An add#icdlowance for individual accounts is recordedewhhe Group becomr
aware of customers' or other debtors' inabilitynet their financial obligations, such as banknafitexgs or deterioration in the customer's orea
debtor's operating results or financial positidrcilcumstances related to customers or debtoraggheestimates of the recoverability of receive
will be further adjusted.

Deferred income taxes

Amounts in the consolidated financial statemenltsted to income taxes are calculated using theciplies of Accounting Standards Codifical
("ASC") 740 "Income Taxes". ASC 740 requires raubgn of deferred tax assets and liabilities foe £xpected future tax consequences of e
that have been included in the financial statementsx returns. Under this method, deferred &®sets and liabilities are determined based ¢
temporary differences between the financial repgriases and tax bases of assets and liabiliieg esacted tax rates in effect for the year inch
the differences are expected to reverse. Futwebémefits, such as net operating loss carry fateaare recognized as deferred tax as
Recognized deferred tax assets are reduced byatical allowance if, based on the weight of avddayidence, it is more likely than not that s
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will hetrealized.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)

Lease prepayments and intangible asse

Lease prepayments represent the cost of land gises in the People's Republic of China ("PRC").d.ase rights held by the Company are inclt
in intangible assets. The granted useful lifehef fland use rights is 50 years. They are statedsitand amortized on a straidine basis over tt
period of a maximum of 30 years, in accordance thithbusiness licenses of 30 years.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

(iif)
(iv)

v)

Property, plant and equipment are stated att less accumulated depreciation. Leasehold laddbaidings are depreciated on a straight
line basis over 15 to 50 years, representing tbeteshof the remaining term of the lease or theeetgd useful life to the Grou

Other categories of property, plant and equépirare carried at cost and depreciated usingtthigistline method over their expected us
lives to the Group. The principal estimated usk¥als for depreciation ar

Plant and machinet - 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipme - 51010 year:
Motor vehicles - 5 years

Assets under construction are not depreciated comistruction is completed and the assets are ifeadlyeir intended ust

The cost of major improvements and bettermentsistalized, whereas the cost of maintenance anaireefs expensed in the year w
they are incurrec

Any gain or loss on disposal is included in thesmidated statements of operations and comprehe(isiss) / income




(h)

@)

0

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)

Impairment of long-lived assets including intangible asse

Long-ived assets held and used by the Group and irilngssets are reviewed for impairment wheneventew@ changes in circumstances indi
that the carrying amount of such assets may noebaverable. The Group evaluates recoverabilitpssets to be held and used by comparin
carrying amount of an asset to future net undiselicash flows to be generated by the asset. i assets are considered to be impairec
impairment loss is measured by the amount by whliehcarrying amount of the assets exceeds thevédire of the assets calculated usit
discounted future cash flows analysis. Provisiamsimpairment made on other lotiged assets are disclosed in the consolidate@mstts ¢
operations and comprehensive (loss) / income. Qitwelp has transferred all its production proceghedactory in Xinxing, PRC, and the factor
Shenzhen is leased out to third party during theafiyear ended March 31, 2014. As a result, ttoeiperformed an assessment of the value
land, buildings and intangible assets of the faesoin Shenzhen and Xinxing, PRC, and no provifionmpairment was made by the Group (2!
$nil; 2012: $nil) based on the assessment.

Capital and operating lease:

Costs in respect of operating leases are charggdsigncome on a straighihe basis over the lease term. Leasing agreemehtsh transfer to tt
Group substantially all the benefits and riskswhership of an assetye treated as if the asset had been purchaseghbutihe assets are incluc
in property, plant and equipment (“capital leasesi)l the capital element of the lease commitmenshown as an obligation under capital lec
The lease rentals are treated as consisting ofatapid interest elements. The capital elemeap@ied to reduce the outstanding obligation a®
interest element is charged against profit so agive a consistent periodic rate of charge on #maining balance outstanding at the end of
accounting period. Assets held under capital leasesiepreciated over the useful lives of the eajait owned assets or the lease term, whiche
shorter.

Revenue recognitior

No revenue is recognized unless there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the price to the bigyixed or determinable, delivery has occu
and collectibility of the sales price is reasona@$sured. Revenue is recognized when title andofidss are transferred to customers, whit
generally the point at which products are leaving ports of Hong Kong, or Shenzhen or Nansha (Gilemg as designated by our custon
Shipping costs billed to the Company's customersrecluded within revenue. Associated costs aaesified as part of cost of sales.

The Company provides to certain customers an awditione to two percent of the quantity of cer@ioducts ordered in lieu of a warranty, wt
are recognized as cost of sales when these prodieshipped to customers from the Company's fiasili In addition, certain products sold by
Company are subject to a limited product qualityrasaty. The Company accrues for estimated incuotgdunidentified quality issues based u
historical activity and known quality issues if@s$ is probable and can be reasonably estimatadnddthe fiscal year ended March 31, 2014
company recorded $nil for such accrual (2013: Ral.2: $nil). The standard limited warranty peris@ne to three years. Quality returns, reft
rebates and discounts are recorded net of sathe #itne of sale and estimated based on past Yisll sales are based upon firm orders with f
terms and conditions, which generally cannot beifieatl Historically, the Company has not experiethenaterial differences between its estim
amounts of quality returns, refunds, rebates asdodints and the actual results. In all contrabesetis no price protection or similar privilege
relation to the sale of goods.

Rental income is recognized according to the reagatements. Rental income for non-uniform reytrEnts is recognized on a straidine basi
throughout the lease term.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)

Research and development cos

Research and development costs include salarié8esitand contractor fees that are directly htitable to the conduct of research and develog
progress primarily related to the development of miesign of products. Research and developmens e@wst expensed in the financial perio
which they are incurred.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred andnaheded within selling expenses. Advertising cosere approximately $5,000, $26,000
$16,000 for the fiscal years ended March 31, 22023 and 2014, respectively.

Income taxes

The Company complies with ASC 740 for uncertaimtynicome taxes recognized in financial statemeASC 740 prescribes a recognition thres
and measurement attributes for the financial statg@mecognition and measurement of a tax positiert or expected to be taken in a tax re
ASC 740 also provides guidance on derecognitiasgsification, interest and penalties, accountingterim periods, disclosure and transition.
Company's accounting policy is to treat interest penalties as components of income taxes.

Foreign currency translations

0] The Company's functional currency is the UnitedeStaollar. The financial statements of foreignssdilaries where the United States dc
is the functional currency and which have transastidenominated in nddnited States dollar currencies are translated litited State
dollars at the exchange rates existing on that. dBte translation of local currencies into Unitetht8s dollars creates transac
adjustments which are included in net loss. Exgkatifferences are recorded in the statements efatipns and comprehensive (los
income.

(ii) The financial statements of foreign subsidiatiwhere notdnited States dollar currencies are the functi@uaiencies, are translated i
United States dollars using exchange rates in effieperiod end for assets and liabilities and agerexchange rates during each repc
period for statement of operations. Adjustmentsitegy from translation of these financial statertsesre reflected as a separate comp
of shareholders' equity in accumulated other cohmgorsive (loss) / incom:

Stock options and warrants

Stock options have been granted to employees,tdissand noremployee directors. Upon exercise of the optionisplder can acquire shares
common stock of the Company at an exercise priterméned by the board of directors. The options eercisable based on the vesting t¢
stipulated in the option agreements or plan.

The Company follows the guidance of ASC 718, Acdimgnfor Stock Options and Other StoBlased Compensation. ASC 718 requires comp
to record compensation expense for shmsed awards issued to employees and directorsclaege for services provided. The amount o
compensation expense is based on the estimatedafa@ of the awards on their grant dates andcisgeized over the required service periods.
sharebased awards include stock options and restridtazk swards. The estimated fair value underlying @alculation of compensation expe
for stock options is based on the Black-Scholesimyi model. Forfeitures of shabased awards are estimated at the time of granteanskd, i
necessary, in subsequent periods if our estimatsge based on the actual amount of forfeiturebave experienced.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Description of business and significant accountingolicies (Continued)

Recent accounting pronouncement

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-1Rresentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhaletOperating Loss Carryforward, a Similar
Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists" The current practice in FASB ASC 740, "Incomed& does not include explicit guidance on
financial statement presentation of an unrecogniardenefit when a net operating loss carryforyardimilar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforn
exists. The objective of this Update is to elinintne diversity in practice in the presentatiomofecognized tax benefits. This accounting stad
update is effective for fiscal years, and interifthim those years, beginning after December 1532(arly adoption is permitted. The Comg
believes that its adoption of this Update will hatve any material impact on its consolidated figratatements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08Pfesentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) Broperty, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 3t
Reporting Discontinued Operations and DisclosurésD@posals of Components of an Entity("ASU 2014-08"). ASU 20148 amends tt
definition of a discontinued operation and requiasties to provide additional disclosures forfhdiscontinued operations and disposal transat
that do not meet the discontinuederations criteria. It is effective for annualipes beginning on or after December 15, 2014. Waatexpect tr
adoption of this guidance to have a material efé@cour consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-0Revenue from Contracts with CustomersThe objective of this Update is to remove indéstescie
and weaknesses in revenue requirements, and tdifgirtye preparation of financial statements byueidg the number requirements to whict
entity must refer. This accounting standard updagffective for fiscal years, and interim withimose years, beginning after December 15, 2
Early adoption is not permitted. The Company igently evaluating the impact this Update will hareits consolidated financial statements.

We believe there is no additional new accountinglance adopted, but not yet effective that is rateuvo the readers of our financial statem:
However, there are numerous new proposals undela@went which, if and when enacted, may haverifgignt impact on our financial reportir
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to $1,808,as of March 31, 2013 and 2014. The Compang\edi that the recoverability was doubr
and continued to include this amount in allowararedbubtful accounts as of March 31, 2013 and 2014.

Most of the Company's trade receivables are gdpanakecured, except for two customers with red#gs covered by credit insurance und
factoring agreement.

Inventories

The components of inventories as of March 31, 281482014 are as follows:

2013 2014
$in thousand $ in thousand
Raw materials 1,90¢ 5,137
Work in progres: 2,487 2,22¢
Finished goods 1,06¢ 17¢
5,46( 7,54t

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012 aridi2Based upon material composition and expectagelsnventories of approximately $283,
and $874,000, respectively, were charged to thedlmfated statements of operations under costale$ s




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Property, plant and equipment, net

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 2@ 2014, depreciation expenses charged to thelidsied statements of operations amou
to approximately $54 ,006120,000 and $1,086,000 respectively. As at M&th 2013 and 2014, fully depreciated assets tlea¢ wtill in use
the Group amounted to $32,858,000 and $2,909,Gpctively.

Property, plant and equipment in Shenzhen and Kgqwere assessed for impairment according to theypdescribed in note 1(h). The Comp
concluded that no impairment to property, plant agdipment in Shenzhen and Xinxing were requiredHe fiscal years ended March 31, 2013
2014 .

Interests in subsidiaries

Particulars of principal subsidiaries as of Mar@¢h 2013 and 2014 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation and Particulars c
kind of issued capitePercentage of capithkld by
Name of compan legal entity registered capit the Company Principal activities
2013 2014
Bonso Electronics Limited * Hong Kong, HK$5,000,000  100% 100% Investment holding, and trading
("BEL") limited liability (US$641,02¢ of scales and pet electronics
company products
Bonso Investment Limited Hong Kong, HK$3,000,00! 100% 100% Investment holding
("BIL") limited liability (US$384,61¢
company
Bonso Electronics (Shenzhen) CompzPRC, US$12,621,22 100% 100%  Production of scales and pet
Limited limited liability electronics products and
("BESCL") company investment holding
Bonso Advanced Technology Limited Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000  100% 100% Investment holding, and trading
("BATL") limited liability (US$128,20¢ of scales and pet electronics
company products
Bonso Advanced Technology (XinxincPRC, US$10,000,0C  100% 100%  Production of scales and pet
Company, Limited limited liability electronics products
("BATXXCL") company
Bonso Technology (Shenzhen) PRC, HK$200,00t( - 100%  Product development
Company, Limited limited liability
("BTL") company
Xinxing An Bang Metal and Plastic PRC, HK$500,00( - 100% Employ workers for assembly of
Manufacturing Company Limited limited liability scales and pet electronics
("ANB") company products
Modus Enterprise International Inc. * British Virgin HK$7,80C 100% 100% Investment holding
("MEII") Island, limited (Us$1,000
liability company
Bonso USA, Inc. ("Bonso USA") USA, limited US$ 1,001 100% 100%  Dormant

liability company

* Shares directly held by the Company




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are analyzed as follows:

March 31,
2013 2014
$inthousand $ in thousand
Cost 6,76¢ 6,89¢
Less: accumulated amortization (2,179 (2,507
4,59( 4,38

The components of other intangible assets arellasvio

March 31,
2013 2014
$inthousand $ in thousand
Land use right of factory land in Shenzhen, Guangd®RC 2,21t 2,062
Land use right of factory land in Xinxing, Guangdp®PRC 2,37¢ 2,32k
4,59( 4,387

Amortization expense in relation to other intangibksets was approximately $176, 000, $226 a@@0$289,000 for each of the fiscal years e
March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

As of March 31, 2014, future minimum amortizatioqpenses in respect of other intangible assetssaf@laws:

$ in thousand

2015 294
2016 294
2017 294
2018 294
2019 294
Thereafter 2,917
Total 4,387
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(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Banking facilities

As of March 31, 2014, the Group had general bankaegities for bank overdrafts, letters of crediptes payable, factoring, sheerm loans ar
longterm loans. The facilities are interchangeablérwatal amounts available of $10,698,000 (2013:,&10,000). The general banking facili
utilized by the Group are denominated in Unitedetaollars and Hong Kong dollars.

The Group's general banking facilities, expresaddnited States dollars, are further detailed Hevie:

Terms of banking

Amount available Amount utilized Amount unutilizec facilities as of
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 201«
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 Interest Repayment
$in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand rate terms
Import and export facilities
Combined limit 6,15¢ 6,15¢ 2,78¢ 3,70z 3,36¢ 2,451
Including sul-limit of:
Notes payabl Repayabile in fu
4,48 4,48 2,27¢ 2,527 2,211 1,96C HIBOR* +2.5% within 120 days
Bank overdrafts Prime rate Repayable on
641 641 18C 63C 461 11 + 1% demanc
Repayable in €
Factoring 2,40( 2,40( 332 54€ 2,06¢ 1,852 HIBOR* +1.5% days
Other facilities
Export Documentary Credi 1,92¢ 1,92¢ - - 1,92¢ 1,927
Term Loan® Revolving loan

is repayable in
90 days. Term
loan is repayabl
monthly over thi
1,92 2,621 1,02t 1,774 89¢ 847 HIBOR* +2.25% 3-year term.

10,00( 10,69¢ 3,81 5,47 6,18 5,221

As of March 31, 2014, a treasury product facilifyapproximately $25,738,000 (2013: $25,738,000) masle available to the Group for transaci
of financial instrusments including forward contsa@nd approximately $2,000,000 (2013: $1,500,00@)e facility was utilized.

One of the properties of the Company located inddong with net book value of $1,000,000 is arrahge security to the bank for the banl
facilities arrangement.

(1) A clause in the banking facilities states ttta term loan is subjected to review any time ailsd aubject to the bank's overriding righ
repayment on demand, including the right to callidash cover on demand for prospective and contirgilities.

* HIBOR is the Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate
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Banking facilities (continued)

The Prime Rate and HIBOR were 5.00% and 0.55% meura, respectively, as of March 31, 2014. The Eritate is determined by the Hong K
Bankers Association and is subject to revision ftome to time. Interest rates are subject to chahthe Company defaults on the amount due t
the facility or draws in excess of the facility anmés, or at the discretion of the banks.

The weighted average interest rates of short-temrotwings of the Group are as follows:

As of March 3],

2013 2014
Bank overdraft: 6.0(% 6.0(%
Notes payabl 2.92% 2.9%
Term Loan 2.47% 2.4%
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(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Income tax

The companies comprising the Group are subje@xmih an entity basis on income arising in or datifrom Hong Kong, the PRC, and the Ur
States of America ("USA"). The tax rate of the Sdtaries operating in Hong Kong was 16.5% for tiivee years in the period ended Marct
2014. The Group is not subject to income taxethénBritish Virgin Islands. The statutory tax ratethe USA was 34% for the three years el
March 31, 2014

Hong Kong Tax

BEL, BATL and BIL are subject to the Hong Kong ptetax rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%). ManagemerBBE has determined that all income
expenses are offshore and not subject to Hong koofits tax. As a result, BEL did not incur any Hplong profits tax during the years preser
BATL and BIL have no assessable profits for theryaad no current year provision for taxation hasrbmade.

PRC Tax

BESCL is registered and operates in Shenzhen, R& Bnd is subject to a tax rate of 25% for theytars ended December 31, 2012, 201:
2014, respectively. BATXXCL is registered in Xingi, Guangdong, PRC, and was entitled to a 50% tieduicn PRC income tax up to the tax y
ended December 31, 2012. BATXXCL is subject taxaraite of 25% thereafter. BTL and ANB are subjed tax rate of 25%.

On March 16, 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law") was enacted by the PRC governméfite EIT Law, effective January
2008, imposes a uniform tax rate of 25% for botmdstic and foreigmavested enterprises and revokes the then cumgrexemption, reduction a
preferential treatments applicable to foreign-inedsenterprises. However, there is a transitiomogefior enterprises, whether foreigmvested ¢
domestic, that were receiving preferential taxtiremts granted by relevant tax authorities at ttme the EIT Law became effective. Under
grandfathering rules of the EIT Law, enterprisext #ire subject to an enterprise income tax ("Efat¢ lower than 25% will continue to enjoy loy
rates with gradual transition to the new tax rdt@5%o in five years from the effective date of B Law. Enterprises that are currently entitle
exemptions or reductions from the standard incamedte for a fixed term may continue to enjoy sweltment until the fixed term expire

During the period from January 1, 2008 to March 3110, the Company's subsidiaries operating inrPlRE were subject to the EIT Law anc
standard tax rate of 25%, but the PRC subsidiane®ntitled to the grandfathering incentives. thertax years ended December 31, 2007, 200
2009, BECSL, the Company's PRC subsidiary, wasestilp a tax rate of 15%, 18% and 20%, respectivBESCL is subject to tax rates of 2
and 24% for the tax years ended December 31, 20d@@11, respectively, and a uniform tax rate #fZbr the tax year ended December 31, :
and thereafter.BATXXCL was entitled to an exemption from PRC ing®rax for the two tax years ended December 31, 20G8 2009.
BATXXCL is subject to a tax rate of 12.5% for tlextyears ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2018 anbject to a tax rate of 25% thereafter.




Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

8 Income tax (continued)

(c) Income is subject to taxation in the various cadestrin which the Company and its subsidiaries dpera’he loss before income taxes
geographical location is analyzed as follo

2012 2013 2014
$inthousand $inthousand $ inthousand
Hong Kong (2,177 (3,509 (2,495
PRC (181) 2,832 1,337
Others 1,45 (48) (63)
Total (900) (725) (221)

Others mainly include the (loss) / profit from B&ihd the United States.

(d) Income tax expenses comprise the followi
2012 2013 2014
$inthousand $inthousand $ inthousand
Deferred income tax 17 2 -
Current income tax expense (19) (32) -
Total income tax expense 2 (29 -

The components of the income tax expense by gebigapocation are as follows:

2012 2013 2014
$inthousand $inthousand $ inthousand
Hong Kong ) (29 -
PRC - - -
Others - - -
Total (2) (29 -

At the end of the accounting period, the incomelitbilities are as follows:

2013 2014
$inthousand $ in thousand

Non-current 2,59¢ 2,59¢
Current 7 7
Total 2,60z 2,60z
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8 Income tax (continued)
(e) Deferred tax assets comprise the followi
2013 2014
$in thousand $ in thousand
Tax loss carry forward 70C 853
Less: Valuation allowance (700) (859

As of March 31, 2013 and 2014, the Group had actated tax losses amounting to approximately $2@10 and $3,600,000 (the tax effect the
is $700,000 and $853,000), respectively, subjethécfinal agreement by the relevant tax autharitighich may be carried forward and applie
reduce future taxable income which is earned idesived from Hong Kong and other countries. Radilin of deferred tax assets associated
tax loss carry forwards is dependent upon generatirfficient taxable income prior to their expicati A valuation allowance is established ag:
such tax losses when management believes it is mialy than not that a portion may not be utilizeds of March 31, 2014, the Grou
accumulated tax losses of $299,000 will expiredf?2 $1,989,000 will expire in 2018, and $130,000expire in 2019.

U} Changes in valuation allowance are as follc
2012 2013 2014
$in thousand $in thousand $ in thousand
Balance, April 1 48E 784 70C
Charged / (credited) to income tax expense 29¢ (84) 152
Balance, March 31 784 70C 852
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8 Income tax (continued)

(9) The actual income tax expense attributable to egsrior the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 201B2014 differed from the amounts comp
by applying the Hong Kong statutory tax rate inadance with the relevant income tax law as a teguhe following:

2012 2013 2014
$inthousand $inthousand $ in thousand
Loss before income taxes (900 (725) (2217)
Income tax benefit on pretax income at statutory 14¢€ 12C 3€
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiary
operating in other jurisdictior 17¢€ (249) (29
Profit not subject to income t: 4,36¢ 3,60(C 1,12¢
Expenses not deductible for income tax purpt (4,715 (3,469 (1,137
(Increase) / decrease in valuation allowa (299 84 (159%)
Reversal of provision as a result of developmenéwfules 20 - -
Under provision of prior yee - (31 -
Tax losses not yet recognized / (utilization of li@sses not previously
recognized) 29¢ (84) 152
Total income tax expense (2) (29 -

The statutory rate of 16.5% used above is thatafgHKong, where the Company's main business isddca

(h) The Company complies with ASC 740 and recognize838000 in the liability for unrecognized tax bétse including penalties of $994,000. 1
Company assessed the tax position during the fisgal ended March 31, 2014 and concluded thatahee gax liability was to be carried forwe
Included in the total tax liabilities of $2,602,0@013: $2,602,000), the uncertain tax liabiliiesespect of this for the years ended March 313
and 2014 amounted to $2,595,0

The Company's accounting policy is to treat inteaesl penalties as components of income taxesof March 31, 2014, the Company had acc
penalties related to uncertain tax positions of4$990 .
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Income tax (continued)

The Company files income tax returns in Hong Kahg, PRC and various foreign tax jurisdictions. Ehisrone subsidiary which operates wi
each of the Company's major jurisdictions, resgliima range of open tax years. The open tax Yeathe Company and its significant subsidie
range between the fiscal year ended March 31, 20@6the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014. Theigims made as a result of these opel
cases are subject to a final agreement by theametdsx authorities.

Financial instruments at fair value

The Group complies with ASC 820, "Fair Value Measnents" ("ASC 820"). ASC 820 clarifies the defimitiof fair value, prescribes methods
measuring fair value and establishes a fair vaiemlchy to classify the inputs used in measuraigvalue as follows:

Level 1-Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvagtiarkets for identical assets or liabilities &akzle at the measurement date.

Level 2dnputs are unadjusted quoted prices for similaetssand liabilities in active markets, quoted sider identical or similar assets ¢
liabilities in markets that are not active, inpotber than quoted prices that are observable gnatsrderived from or corroborated by observ
market data.

Level 34nputs are unobservable inputs which reflect threéng entity's own assumptions on what assumgtiba market participants would us
pricing the asset or liability based on the besilable information.

The Company entered into forward contracts wittaakb and the bank will pay the Company if the Ch&uan appreciates against USD. |
Chinese Yuan depreciates against USD, the Compdhyegd to pay the bank, but will be able to bugrenChinese Yuan as a result.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, basedur valuation of the existing financial instrumt& we recorded a loss of approxime
$419,000 for the change in valuation, resulted liafility of approximately $119,000 (current por) and $208,000 (non current portion). Du
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, we recordegisaet of approximately $91,000 for the finanicisfruments based on our valuation.

At the end of the accounting period, the fair vadfi¢he following assets / (liabilities) were afidavs:

March 31, 201! March 31, 201«
$ in thousand
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Forward Contracts (1 - 91 - 91 - (327) - (327)

(1) The fair value of forward contracts were deteed based on the present value of expected faasgie flows considering the risks involved, and
using discount rates appropriate for the respeatigurities. Observable level 2 inputs are usedetermine the present value of expected future
cash flows.




10

11

(@)

Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Investment in life insurance contract

Investment in life insurance contract represergscérrying amount (surrender value) of the contfatts to be terminated by the Company. The
one life insurance contract as of March 31, 201d iarch 31, 2013, with carrying amount of approxieha$131,000 and $127,000, respectiv
All premiums of this contract have already beerdghiring the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012. felee amount (death benefit) of this contra
$1,000,000.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, wemed a change in cash surrender value of appraoeiyn@4,000 for the change in valual
(2013: $5,000).

Leases

Capital lease

During the year ended March 31, 2014, the Groupredtinto additional capital lease obligations antimg to approximately $123,000 for t
motor vehicles.

Future minimum payments under capital leases &aoth 31, 2014 with an initial term of more tharegrear are as follows:

Future minimum Principal
payments under capit repaymen Interest paymer Total obligations
leases for the years

ended March 31, $ in thousand $ in thousand $ in thousand

2015 23 3 26

2016 24 2 26

2017 24 1 25

2018 19 0 19

2019 2 0 2
92 6 98
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11 Leases (continued

(b) Operating lease

As of March 31, 2014, the Group leases two progerind a factory in Shenzhen under rental agreertetttird parties. The Group will need to
a cancellation fee of approximately $8,000 fortilie properties if the Group decides to terminatéha rental agreements before their expiry.

The Shenzhen factory was rented out to a third/gestn August 1, 2013 to August 1, 2019. The expéduture rental payments to be receiver
as follows:

Year ending March 31, $ in thousand

2015 1,24¢
2016 1,24¢
2017 1,33:
2018 1,37¢
2019 1,37¢
2020 45¢

7,03¢

As of March 31, 2014, the future minimum lease caotmmant payables in respect of non-cancellable djpeydeases for office are as follows:

Year ending March 31, $ in thousand

2015 8¢9
2016 8¢
2017 94
2018 94
2019 20

38¢€

Rental expense for all operating leases of aneffiemise in Shenzhen amounted to approximatel@ ¥I@0,$nil and $51,000 for the fiscal ye
ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.
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Commitments and contingent liabilities

Commitments

Capital expenditures contracted at the balancet sla¢e but not yet provided for are as follows:

March 31,
2013 2014
$in thousand $ in thousand
Construction in Xinxing, Guangdong, PF 26C 665
Leasehold improvement in Hong Kong - 73
26( 73¢

As of March 31, 2014, the Company entered into remtdr agreements to construct factory building Badehold improvements on the lan
Xinxing, the PRC for total consideration of $1,88%). $1,187,000 has been paid, and the remairita;be of $665,000 is to be paid in accord
with the progress of the construction.

Contingent liabilities

The Company has entered into an employment agrdemwitima director, Anthony So. Mr. So's employmagreement provides for a maxim
yearly salary of approximately $800,000 per yearsgbonus. The initial term of the employment agreetrexpired on March 31, 2013 ("Init
Term"); however, the employment agreement has besewed under a provision in the agreement thatighes for automatic renewal for succes
one year period, unless at least 90 days priongcekpiration of the Initial Term or any renewaite either party gives written notice to the o
party specifically electing to terminate the agream Mr. So's employment agreement contains a simviunder which the Company will

obligated to pay Mr. So all compensation for th@aader of his employment agreement and five tihieannual salary and bonus compensati
a change of control, as defined in his employmemneement occurs. The employment agreement was eshawtomatically, and will expire

March 31, 2015, unless automatically renewed.
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Stockholders' equity
Repurchase of common sta

In August of 2001, the Company's Board of Directmthorized a program for the Company to repurchas® $500,000 of its common stock. 1
repurchase program does not obligate the Compaagdoire any specific number of shares or acqliages over any specified period of time.
stock had been repurchased when, on November D&, 20e Company's Board of Directors authorizedttamo$1,000,000 for the Company
repurchase its common stock under the same remegh@gram. This authorization to repurchase sha@sased the amount authorized
repurchase from $500,000 to $1,500,000. The Bo#rDirectors believed that the common stock wasewvalued and that the repurchas
common stock would be beneficial to the Companyaeholders. The Company (through its subsidibag) repurchased an aggregate of 33(
shares of its common stock, including 70,019 ($23d) shares that were repurchased during the figzal ended March 31, 2009. No shares
repurchased during the three fiscal years endediMat, 2012, 2013 and 2014. The Company may fiore to time repurchase shares o
common stock under this program.

Preferred stoc

The Company has authorized share capital of $100@010,000,000 shares of preferred stock, withvadue of $0.01 each, divided into 2,500,
shares each of class A preferred stock, class ®npee stock, class C preferred stock and classeffeped stock. Shares may be issued within
class from time to time by the Company's Board o€&ors in its sole discretion without the appiosfthe shareholders, with such designati
power, preferences, rights, qualifications, limdatand restrictions as the Board of DirectorsIstialand as have not been fixed in the Comps
Memorandum of Association. The Company has noegsuny shares of preferred stock as of March 31420

Dividends

No dividends were declared by the Company for @di¢che fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 2013281d! , respectively.

F-25
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Stock option and bonus plan

On September 7, 2004, the Company's stockholdeysted the 2004 Stock Bonus Plan (the "Stock Bomais"Pwhich authorizes the issuance o
to five hundred thousand (500,000) shares of thegamy's common stock in the form of stock boi

The purpose of this Stock Bonus Plan is to (i) oelkey employees to remain in the employment ofGbenpany or of any subsidiary of
Company; (ii) encourage such employees to secuiacoease their stock ownership in the Company; @ijdreward employees, noamploye:
directors, advisors and consultants for serviceslerd or to be rendered to or for the benefithef Company or any of its subsidiaries.
Company believes that the Stock Bonus Plan wiliymte continuity of management and increase incerathd personal interest in the welfare o
Company.

The Stock Bonus Plan shall be administered by antitiee appointed by the Board of Directors whichgists of at least two but not more than t
members of the Board, one of whom shall be aemployee of the Company. The existing Committeenbers are Mr. Anthony So and Mr. W
Ping Fok. The Committee has the authority, irsdtle discretion: (i) to determine the parties weree bonus stock, the times when they shall re
such awards, the number of shares to be issuethartoine, terms and conditions of the issuancengfsauch shares; (ii) to construe and interpre
terms of the Stock Bonus Plan; (iii) to establiasimend and rescind rules and regulations for therastmation of the Stock Bonus Plan; and (iv
make all other determinations necessary or adwvdabladministering the Stock Bonus Plan.

On March 23, 2004, the Company's stockholders adotite 2004 Stock Option Plan (the "2004 Plan")cWiprovides for the grant of up to
hundred thousand (600,000) shares of the Compaagisnon stock in the form of stock options, subjectertain adjustments as described ir
Plan.

The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to secure key employessmain in the employment of the Company anenoourage such employees to secu
increase on reasonable terms their common stoclership in the Company. The Company believes that2004 Plan promotes continuity
management and increased incentive and persopat#ttin the welfare of the Company.

The 2004 Plan is administered by a committee appodiby the Board of Directors which consists deast two but not more than three membe
the Board, one of whom shall be a remployee of the Company. The current committee begmare Mr. Anthony So and Mr. Woo Ping Fok.

committee determines the specific terms of theomgtigranted, including the employees to be graopgidns under the plan, the number of s
subject to each option grant, the exercise priceach option and the option period, subject tadlagirement that no option may be exercisable

than 10 years after the date of grant. The exengiie of an option may be less than the fair eavalue of the underlying shares of Comi
Stock. No options granted under the plan will iznsferable by the optionee other than by willke laws of descent and distribution, and
option will be exercisable during the lifetime bEtoptionee only by the optionee.

The exercise price of an option granted pursuarth¢o2004 Plan may be paid in cash, by the surreofleptions, in common stock, in ot
property, including a promissory note from the opée, or by a combination of the above, at therelign of the Committee.

F-26
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14 Stock option and bonus plans (continued
(@) (Continued)

In October 1996, the Company's Board of Direct@sraved the 1996 Stock Option Plan and 1996 Employee Directors' Stock Option Pl
Under the 1996 Stock Option Plan, the Company nraptgoptions of common stock to certain employess @directors of the Company fo
maximum of 900,000 shares. The 1996 Stock Optlan B administered by a committee appointed byBbard of Directors which determines
terms of options granted, including the exerciseepithe option periods and the number of sharé®tsubject to each option. The exercise pri
options granted under the 1996 Stock Option Play bealess than the fair market value of the comstmares on the date of grant. The maxir
term of options granted under the 1996 Stock Opfitam is 10 years. The right to acquire the comsimares is not assignable except for ce
conditions stipulated in the 1996 Stock Option Plan

Under the 1996 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Opt#an, the noremployee directors were automatically granted stogons on the thii
business day following the day of each annual gémaeeting of the Company to purchase shares ofmmmstock. The maximum numbel
authorized shares under the 1996 Nomployee Director's Stock Option Plan was 600,d0@& exercise price of all options granted underlid@¢
Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan shall be bnredred percent of the fair market value per slofrldne common shares on the dat
grant. The maximum term of options granted untier 1996 NorEmployee Directors' Stock Option Plan is 10 yeada stock option may |
exercised during the first six months of its temeept for certain conditions provided in the 1996nNEmployee Directors' Stock Option Plan.
right to acquire the common shares is not assignalatept for under certain conditions stipulateth@11996 Normployee Directors' Stock Opti
Plan.

In April 2003, the Company issued options to cer@irectors and noemployee directors of the Company to purchase agneggte of 372,5(
shares of common stock of the Company at an exepeise of $1.61. The options expired on MarchZ11,3. The exercise prices of these op
were equal to the fair market value at the timgraht. No such options have been exercised dtiimgears ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

In March 2004, the Company issued options to aerianemployee directors of the Company to purchase greggte of 40,000 shares of comt
stock of the Company at an exercise price of $6T2e options expired on March 25, 2014. The egerprices of these options were equal t
fair market value at the time of grant. No sucliays were exercised during the years ended Mat¢c2@L2, 2013 and 2014.
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14 Stock option and bonus plans (continued
(@) (Continued)

In September 2004, the Company issued options rtaisenonemployee directors of the Company to purchase gneggte of 40,000 shares
common stock of the Company at an exercise prick6#0. The options shall expire on Septembe2024 and can be exercised at any time
granting. The exercise prices of these option®weegual to the fair market value at the time ohgraNo such option was exercised during the \
ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

In December 2005, the Company issued options tmioenonemployee directors of the Company to purchase aneggte of 30,000 shares
common stock of the Company at an exercise prick4d#0. The options shall expire on December 45281id can be exercised at any time
granting. The exercise prices of these options wqrel to the fair market value at the time of gr&lo such options had been exercised durin
years ended March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

On November 16, 2006, the Board of Directors of @mnpany voted to rescind the Company's 1996 Eimployee Directors' Stock Option P
(the "Non-Employee Directors' Plan"). All optionsepiously granted under the N&mployee Directors' Plan continue in full force asffec
pursuant to their terms of grant.

During the fiscal years ended March 31, 2012, 22xi82014, no shares or share options were grantiet the 1996 Stock Option Plan.

(b)  The stock options summary as of March 31, 2014 ikows:

Weighted

average

Number exercise

of options price

Balance, March 31, 201 452 50( $ 2.61
Expired (342,500 $ 1.61
Balance, March 31, 201 110,00 $ 5.71
Expired (40,000 $ 6.12
Balance, March 31, 2014 70,000 $ 5.47
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14 Stock option and bonus plans (continued
(c) The following table summarizes information abolisgdck options of the Company outstanding as atWa1, 2014
Weighted
Number average Exercisable
Weighted
average outstanding a remaining life shares a
exercise prict March 31, 201« (years) March 31, 201«
$4.50 30,00( 1.8 30,00(
$6.20 40,00( 0.5 40,00(
$5.47 70,00( 1.0 70,00(

The intrinsic value of options outstanding and eisable was $nil, $nil and $nil on March 31, 202@13 and 2014, respectively. The intrinsic v
represents the prtex intrinsic value (the difference between thesitig stock price of the Company's common stockerbalance sheet date anc

exercise price for both the outstanding and exabtésoptions) that would have been received byofiten holders if all options had been exerc
on March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

New shares will be issued by the Company upon éugxercise of stock options.
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15 Related party transactions

€) The Group paid emoluments, commissions and/or d@mmsty fees to its directors and officers as foko

Year ended March 31,
Mr. Anthony St

Director, Chief Executiv
Officer and Treasur

Mr. Kim Wat Mr. Andrew
Chun¢Mr. Woc-Ping Fol Sc
Directol Directol Directol

$ in thousanc

2012 $857 (i), (iii)
2013 $857 (i), (iii)
2014 $857 (i), (iii)
2012
2013
2014

The emoluments paid to the Group's directors afideo$ were included in the salaries and relatests;avhile the consultancy fees or professi

$ in thousanc

$ in thousanc $ in thousanc

$161 (i) Nil $8¢
$160 (iii) Nil $12¢
$161 (iii) Nil $12¢
Mr. Albert

Mr. Henry Schluete Sc

Director ant Director

Assistant Secreta Chiel

Financia

Officer anc

Secretar

$in

$ in thousanc  thousand
$68 (ii) $11¢

$74 (i) $124 (iii)
$84 (i) $125 (i)

fees paid to Schlueter & Associates, P.C., weridedl in the administration and general expenses.

0] Apart from the emoluments paid by the Group as shalove, one of the properties of the Group in HKogg is also provided to

Anthony So for his accommodatic

(ii) The amounts for the years ended March 31, 20123 20l 2014 represented professional fees paid itu&er & Associates, P.C.,

Group's SEC counsel, in which Mr. Henry Schluetesrie of the principal:

(iii) The amount for the year ended March 31, 2012, deddwnpaid vacation payments of $57,000 and $10@O0BIr. Anthony So, and M
Kim Wah Chung, respectively. The amount for theryemaded March 31, 2013, included unpaid vacatioymemts of $57,000, $9,0(
$5,000 for Mr. Anthony So, Mr. Kim Wah Chung, and.Mlbert So, respectively. The amount for the yeaded March 31, 2014, incluc
unpaid vacation payments of $10,000, for Mr. KimW@hung. The amount for the year ended March 314 26cluded vacation paym

of $57,000 for Mr. Anthony St
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Related party transactions (continued

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, thenfany made loans aggregating approximately $1,082t6 a director Mr. Anthony S
Management believed at the time that the loans weade that these loans were permissible and didvintste Section 13(k) of the Securil
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Ab&¢ause Mr. So would be able to repay the full arhby foregoing his salary and accr
annual leave payments until the loans had beenipaidl.

The Company advanced the funds to Mr. So on twarsgép occasions, and Mr. So directed that his ysgdayments and accrued annual l¢
payments be used to offset the amounts that weatbsmhim. In addition, Mr. Albert So and Mr. André&So, who are officers and directors of
Company, directed the Company to use their accanedial leave payments to partially satisfy the amsdue to the Company from Mr. Anth¢
So. On March 31, 2014, the amount due to the Coypnfram Mr. So was $166,000. On August 7, 2014, B.paid $166,000 to the Compan
fully repay the amounts loaned to him. The loansewmn-interest bearing.

Notwithstanding Mr. Anthony So's repayment in fofiithe loans made to him, those loans constitwielation of Section 13(k) of the Exchange
and Section 402(a) of Sarbanes-Oxley.

As a result of this inadvertent violation, the Bibadopted a policy regarding loans or advancesydaxecutive Officer or Director of the Compa
The policy provides that The Company shall not directly or indirectly, inding through any subsidiary, extend or maintairditr®, or arrange f
the extension of credit, or renew an extensionretlit, in the form of a personal loan to or for abiyector or Executive Officer (or equivali
thereof) of the Company or any subsidiary of thenpany. "
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Concentrations and credit risk

The Group operates principally in the PRC (inclgditong Kong) and grants credit to its customerthis geographic region. Although the PR
economically stable, it is always possible thatniicgpated events in foreign countries could distiye Group's operations.

Financial instruments that potentially subject@reup to a concentration of credit risk consista$h and trade receivables.

At March 31, 2013 and 2014, the Company had cregkitexposure of uninsured cash and deposits nmatanier three months and less than one
in banks of approximately $2,154,000 and $1,165,06&€pectively.

A substantial portion, 66%, 52% and 45% of reverwas generated from one customer for the yearsdeMiech 31, 2012, 2013 and 20
respectively .

The net sales to customers representing at le&stofMet total sales are as follows:

Year Ended March 3:

2012 2013 2014
$ in thousand % $in thousand % $in thousand %
Customer A 17,49¢ 6€ 15,81¢ 52 14,08( 45
Customer E 10¢€ 1 5,49: 18 10,39¢ 33
Customer C 3,74¢ 14 3,81« 13 2,762 9
21,34¢ 81 25,12¢ 83 27,23¢ 87

The following customers had balances greater t&f df the total trade receivables at the respett@lance sheet dates set forth below:

March 31,
2013 2014
$ in thousanc % $in thousanc %
Customer A 1,152 42 1,52: 61
Customer E 884 32 35t 14
Customer D 347 13 21¢ 9
87 84

At March 31, 2013 and 2014, these customers acedufar 87% and 84%, respectively, of net trade ivetdes. The trade receivables h
repayment terms of not more than twelve monthsad@&receivables for two customers accounted for @bébtal trade receivables as of March
2014 (2013: 74%), and they were covered by creditiiance under a factoring agreement with a bdiiie Group does not require collatere
support financial instruments that are subjectréalit risk.
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Employee retirement benefits and severance paymeatiowance

With effect from January 1, 1988, BEL, a whalwned foreign subsidiary of the Company in Hong ¢gomplemented a defined contribution [
(the "Plan") with a major international insuran@enpany to provide life insurance and retirementefienfor its employees. All permanent full ti
employees who joined BEL before December 2000,ueiel factory workers, are eligible to join the i®RlaEach eligible employee that choose
participate in the Plan is required to contribu% &f their monthly salary, while BEL is required ¢ontribute from 5% to 10% depending on
eligible employee's salary and number of yeargiwise.

The Mandatory Provident Fund (the "MPF") was introed by the Hong Kong Government and commencedeitemMber 2000. BEL joined f
MPF by implementing a plan with a major internaéibimsurance company. All permanent Hong Kong tiolle employees who joined BEL on
after December 2000, excluding factory workers, tjam the MPF, except for those who joined thenPlkefore December 2000. Both
employee's and employer's contributions to the MRF5% of the eligible employee's monthly salarg are subject to a maximum manda
contribution of HK$1,000 (US$128) per month. Bdlie maximum mandatory employee's and employer'sribations per month increased
HK$1,250 (US$160) since June 1, 2012, and then fated K$1,500 (US$192) since June 1, 2014,

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Gimugquired to make contributions for each empdoy rates based upon the employee's stz
salary base as determined by the local Social §gdureau, to a defined contribution retiremenhesme organized by the local Social Seci
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits fer@moup's employees in the PRC.

The contributions to each of the above schemeseamgnized as employee benefit expenses when teejug and are charged to the consolic
statement of operations. The Group's total coutidbs to the above schemes for the years endedhVvit, 2012, 2013 and 2014 amounte
$239,000 ,$225,000 and $758,000, respectively. The Grouprizasther obligation to make payments in respectetifement benefits of tl
employees

According to the New Labor Law in the PRC which vedfective on January 1, 2009, a company is reduineprovide one month's salary for e
year of service as a severance payment. As soelGitoup paid $1,194,000 for severance paymetteirfiscal year ended March 31, 2014 tc
terminated staff when production was moved from3henzhen factory to the Xinxing factory. The Groecognized a provision of $156,000 in
fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 for severance paysifor staff in the PRC (2013: $743,000, 20121$800). The accrued severance pay
allowance is reviewed every ye
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Bonso Electronics International Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Net loss per share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing ngs$ lvailable to common shareholders by the weightedage number of shares of common ¢
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is compintedmanner consistent with that of basic earnjpegysshare while giving effect to all potenti;
dilutive shares of common stock that were outstamduring the period, including stock options.

The diluted net loss per share is the same asatsie het loss per share for the years ended MdrcB(® 2, 2013 and 2014s all potential ordina
shares (452,500 shares on March 31, 2012, 110/@@s on March 31, 2013 and 70,000 shares on Makcl2014) from the exercise of st
options are anti-dilutive and are therefore exatuftem the computation of diluted net loss per shar

Business segment informatiol

The Group is organized based on the productsérgffUnder this organizational structure, the Gi®aperations can be classified into three bus
segments, Scales, Pet Electronics Products andsdthehe fiscal years ended March 31, 2013 aridlZ

Scales operations principally involve productiord anarketing of sensdrased scales products. These include bathroonhekitmffice, jewelry
laboratory, postal and industrial scales that aeglin consumer, commercial and industrial appéioat

Pet Electronics Products principally involve deystent and production of pet-related electronicsipets that are used in consumer applications.

The "Others" segment is a residual, which printypiicludes the activities of (i) tooling and mowtiarges for scales and pet electronics proc
and (ii) sales of scrap materials.

The following table sets forth the percentage dfsades for each of the product lines mentioned/alior the fiscal yearsended March 31, 2012,

2013, and 2014:

Year ended March 31,

Product Line 2012 2013 2014

Scales 95% 9C% 95%
Pet Electronics Produc 3% 8% 4%
Others 2% 2% 1%
Total 10(% 10(% 100%

The accounting policies of the Group's reportablgngents are the same as those described in theptiescof business and significant accoun
policies. As the revenue and profit or loss far Bet Electronics Products and Others segment dmeet the threshold in ASC 280-10-5R-ant
they have similar economic characteristics, we gmesur financial information with the three segitserombined for the fiscal years ended M
31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.
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19 Business segment information (continuec
(@) (Continued)

Summarized financial information by business segrasrof March 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 is as follows

Identifiable Depreciation
Operating assets as of and Capital
Net salet (loss) / profit March 31 amortization expenditure

$inthousand $inthousand $inthousand $inthousand $inthousand

2012

Scales & Pet Electronics Products

Others 26,68 (117) 17,14% 54 3,41°F
Total operating segments 26,68: (117) 17,147 54 3,41°¢
Corporate - - 6,021 17¢€ -
Group 26,68 (117) 23,16¢ 23C 3,41°¢
2013

Scales & Pet Electronics Products

Others 30,38t (403) 20,09° 12C 1,412
Total operating segmer 30,38¢ (403%) 20,091 12C 1,412
Corporate - - 7,02¢ 22€ -
Group 30,38¢ (407) 27,12¢ 34¢€ 1,412
2014

Scales & Pet Electronics Products

Others 31,30¢ 29k 24,42 1,08¢ 2,89¢
Total operating segmer 31,30¢ 29t 24,42 1,08¢ 2,89¢
Corporate - - 7,71€ 28¢ -
Group 31,30¢ 29k 32,14( 1,37¢ 2,89¢

Operating (loss) / profit by segment equals tofagrating revenues less expenses directly attriteitmbthe generation of the segment's oper
revenues. Operating loss of the corporate segewngists principally of salaries and related ca$tadministrative staff, and administration
general expenses of the Group. Identifiable asggetegment are those assets that are used ipénation of that segment. Corporate assets ¢
principally of cash and cash equivalents, investnrefife insurance contracts, income tax recovirabther intangible assets, and other identif
assets not related specifically to individual segtse
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19 Business segment information (continuec

(b) The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong and tRCP The manufacture of components and their adgeimto finished products and resec
and development are carried out in the PRC. Asfierations are integrated, it is not practicableistinguish the net income derived among
activities in Hong Kong, and the PR

Total property, plant and equipment, net by gedujicgb areas are as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2013 2014
$ in thousand $ in thousand
Hong Kong 1,11¢ 1,09(
The PRC 7,18¢ 11,36:
Total property, plant and equipment 8,29¢ 12,45:

(c) The following is a summary of net export sales bpgraphical areas, which are defined by the fihgdreent destination, constituting 10% or nr
of total sales of the Company for the years endacch31, 2012, 2013 and 20:

Year ended March 3,

2012 2013 2014
$ in thousand % $ in thousand % $ in thousand %
United State: 19,94( 75 23,80¢ 78 25,20¢ 81
Germany 4,98t 18 5,121 17 4,68¢ 1t
24,92t 28,92t 29,89:

20 Subsequent event

On August 7, 2014, Mr. Anthony So paid $166,00eheCompany to fully repay the amounts loaned to. hi







Exhibit 12.!

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Anthony So certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2f-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the "Comypg;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report de¢<ontain any untrue statement of a material édaamit to state a material fact necessa
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntadisg with respect to the period covered by
annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeantsd, other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all mate
respects the financial condition, results of operastand cash flows of the Company as of, andffierperiods presented in this annual report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and mf/seé responsible for establishing and maintairdisglosure controls and procedures (as de
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iarednal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 1%f)) for
the Company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunresiansed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetalesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the Company, including its consolidatedsdiaries, is made known to us by others w
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finan@gorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggthe reliability of financial reporting and thpeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's discéocontrols and procedures and presented imgp@t our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procesias of the end of the period covered by thisrtebased on such evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Compgaimgernal control over financial reporting thatored during the period covered
the annual report that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the Camnp's internal control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | dalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal controls over financial reporting, to
Company's auditors and the audit committee of Cayipdoard of Directors (or persons performingeheivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Compaabisity to record, process, summarize and repoaricial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement orother employees who have a signifrcdatin the Company's inten
controls over financial reporting.

Date: August 15, 2014

/s/ Anthony Sc

Anthony Sc

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Treasure!







Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Albert So certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2f-Bonso Electronics International Inc. (the "Comypg;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report de¢<ontain any untrue statement of a material édaamit to state a material fact necessa
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, ntadisg with respect to the period covered by
annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeantsd, other financial information included in thisnaal report, fairly present in all mate
respects the financial condition, results of operastand cash flows of the Company as of, andffierperiods presented in this annual report;

4. The Company's other certifying officer and mf/seé responsible for establishing and maintairdisglosure controls and procedures (as de
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatadnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(8{f)) for
the Company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedunresiansed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetalesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the Company, including its consolidatedsdiaries, is made known to us by others w
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finan@gorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggthe reliability of financial reporting and thpeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's discéocontrols and procedures and presented imgp@t our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procesias of the end of the period covered by thisrtebased on such evaluations; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Compgaimgernal control over financial reporting thatored during the period covered
the annual report that has materially affecteds oeasonably likely to materially affect, the caang's internal control over financial reporting.

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | dalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal controls over financial reporting, to
Company's auditors and the audit committee of thie@ny's Board of Directors (or persons perforntivggequivalent function):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Compaabisity to record, process, summarize and repoaricial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the Company's inter
controls over financial reporting.

Date: August 15, 2014

/sl Albert Sc
Albert So
Albert So, Chief Financial Officer and Secret







EXHIBIT 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarba@atey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of sertl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Goeach of th
undersigned officers of Bonso Electronics Intemral, Inc., a British Virgin Islands internatiortaisiness company (the "Corporation"), does herelyfy,
to such officer's knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year endeddd 31, 2014 (the "Form 283 of the Corporation fully complies with the reggments of section :
(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 198 amended, and information contained in the F20/ fairly presents, in all material respects,
financial condition and results of operations @& @orporation.

Date: August 15, 2014

/s/ Anthony Sc

Anthony Sc

President, Chief Executive Officer a
Treasure|







EXHIBIT 13.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarba@atey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of sertl350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Goeach of th
undersigned officers of Bonso Electronics Intemrai, Inc., a British Virgin Islands internatiortalsiness company (the "Corporation"), does herelbtfy,
to such officer's knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year endeddd 31, 2014 (the "Form 283 of the Corporation fully complies with the reggments of section :
(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 198 amended, and information contained in the F20d fairly presents, in all material respects,
financial condition and results of operations @& @orporation.

Date: August 15, 2014

/sl Albert Sc

Albert So
Chief Financial Officer and Secrete
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HANG SENG BANK Managing wealth for you, with you.

Our Ref: Corporate Banking — A131106
Confidential
14 May 2014

Bonso Electronics Limited
Rocom 1404 14/F

Cheuk Nang Centre

9 Hillwood Road
Tsimshatsui

Kowloon

Attention: Mr. Anthony So

Dear Sirs,
BANKING FACILITIES

With reference to our recent discussions, we, Hang Seng Bank Limited (the “Bank”) have
reviewed your banking facilities and are pleased to offer the following revised banking facility/
facilities (the “Facilities”) to the borrower(s) specified below (the “Borrower”).

This letter shall supersede our previous letter of 1 February 2013 except that the annual review
fee referred to in our previous letter remains payable and will be deducted from your account if not
debited earlier.

The Facilities will be made available on the terms and conditions set out in this letter and the
Standard Terms and Conditions for Banking Facilities attached and upon satisfactory completion
of the security specified below.

The Facilities are subject to review at any time and in any event by 31 January 2015 and also
subject to our overriding right of repayment on demand, including the right to call for cash cover on
demand for prospective and contingent liabilities. The Bank shall have an unrestricted discretion to
cancel or suspend, or determine whether or not to permit drawings in relation to, the Facilities.

1. Borrower

Bonso Electronics Limited
Bonso Advanced Technology Limited

2. Facilities and Limits

(I) Facilities available to Bonso Advanced Technology Limited and Bonso
Electronics Limited ("Borrowing Group I")

Combine Limit HKD48,000,000

Hang Seng Bank Limited
1355 83 Des Voeux Road Central Hong Kong
Website www.hangseng.com

Mevzher HSBC Ciroupy AEETHI0E L]









Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Corporate Banking — A131106

(i

Overdraft (OD)
Combine Limit

- Standby Documentary Credits
(SDC)

- Bank Guarantee (GTE)
Documentary Credits (DC)
- Trust Receipt (TR)

Local Documentary  Credits
(Local DC)

- Trust Receipt under Local
Documentary  Credits (TR
under Local DC)

Import Trade Loans (ITL)

Documents Against Payment
(DP)

Documents Against Acceptance
(DA)

Factoring Facility (FTG)

Negotiation under Documentary
Credits with discrepancies (L/G)

Treasury Product(s) Facility (ERL)

Total

(HKD5,000,000)
(HKD7,800,000)

[(HKD7,800,000)]

[(USD1,000,000)]
(HKDA48,000,000)
[(HKD48,000,000)]

(HKD48,000,000)

[(HKD48,000,000)]

(HKD35,000,000)

(HKD48,000,000)

(HKD48,000,000)

(USD2,400,000)
HKD15,000,000
USD25,737,500
(Notional Limit)

HKD63,000,000

UsD25,737,500

Facilities available to Bonso Advanced Technology Limited ("Borrowing Group

)

Revolving Loan Facility (RLN1)
Revolving Loan Facility (RLN2)
Term Loan Facility (TL)

Total

EEETHERAT Hang Seng Bank Limited

HKD8,000,000
HKD7,000,000
HKD5,444,444 48

HKD20,444,444.48

Member HSBC Group 7RSS Mk 11
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Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Corporate Banking - A131106

Grand Total HKD83,444,444 .48

USD25,737,500
Note:
(a) The aggregate outstanding under OD, SDC, GTE, TR, TR under Local DC, ITL, DA
and FTG facilities shall not at any time exceed HKD48,000,000.
(b) The aggregate outstanding of all sub-limits shall not at any time exceed the Facility
Limit of that Facility and the Total Facility Limit.

3. Facilities and Conditions

Overdraft Facility . Account Nos. :

(For Borrowing Group 1) (1) 259-229698-001 of Bonso Electronics Limited
(2) 259-358729-001 of Bonso Advanced Technology

Limited

Interest: 1% per annum over BLR on daily balances,
payable monthly in arrears.
Interest on Unauthorized Overdraft: 8% per annum over
BLR

Revolving Loan Facility . Facility Amount: HKD8,000,000

(RLNT)

(For Borrowing Group II)
Drawdown: Drawdown can be made in HKD, subject to
availability as determined at the Bank’s discretion. Bonso
Advanced Technology Limited shall give the Bank three
Business Days' prior written notice.

In @ minimum amount of HKD5,000,000 and an integral
multiple of HKD1,000,000.

Availability Period: Subject to the Bank's periodic review.

Interest Rate and Payment: 2.25% per annum over HIBOR
or the Bank's Cost of Funds, whichever is higher, payable
at the end of each interest period or quarterly in arrears if
6/12 months period is selected. Bonso Advanced
Technology Limited may select an interest period which
shall be 1/2 week(s) or 1/2/3/6/12 month(s).

Repayment: Each loan shall be repayable on the maturity

date of such loan drawdown unless the Bank allows for a
rollover.

AR T HEER N E Hang Seng Bank Limited

Member WSBC Growp  dtE W2 57K 11






Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Corporate Banking - A131106

Prepayment: Voluntary prepayment is not permitted during
an interest period.

Revolving Loan Facility : Facility Amount: HKD7,000,000
(RLN2)
(For Borrowing Group Il) Drawdown: Drawdown can be made in HKD, subject to

availability as determined at the Bank’s discretion. Bonso
Advanced Technology Limited shall give the Bank three
Business Days’ prior written notice.

In a minimum amount of HKD5,000,000 and an integral
multiple of HKD1,000,000.

Availability Period: Subject to the Bank’s periodic review.

Interest Rate and Payment: 2.25% per annum over HIBOR
or the Bank’s Cost of Funds, whichever is higher, payable
at the end of each interest period or quarterly in arrears if
6/12 months period is selected. Bonso Advanced
Technology Limited may select an interest period which
shall be 1/2 week(s) or 1/2/3/6/12 month(s).

Repayment: Each loan shall be repayable on the maturity
date of such loan drawdown unless the Bank allows for a
rollover.

Cancellation Fee: 0.1% of the RLN2 facility amount,
payable to the Bank for cancellation of RLN2 facility
requested by the Borrower after acceptance of this facility
letter.

Condition(s):
(i)  The proceeds from the RLN2 facility shall be

restricted for purchasing of investment products
through the Bank;

(i) The purchased investment products shall be
pledged to the Bank as Charged Securities for the
RLN2 facility as mentioned in Security” section.

Documentary Credits . For issuance of documentary credits for the account of the

(For Borrowing Group ) Borrower in favour of third parties and covering import of
goods in the ways acceptable to the Bank and/or
acceptance of bills drawn thereunder.

a4 T HE R LS Hang Seng Bank Limited

Member USBC Growp a0 05 % 6k 1)









Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Corporate Banking — A131106

Trust Receipt
(For Borrowing Group I)

Local Documentary
Credits
(For Borrowing Group I}

Trust Receipt under Local
Documentary Credits
(For Borrowing Group 1)

Import Trade Loans
(For Borrowing Group )

Standby Documentary
Credits
(For Borrowing Group 1)

For trust receipt facility relating to goods imported and
financed under the Bank's documentary credits issued for
the account of the Borrower with tenor up to 120 days less
any usance/credit periods granted by the suppliers of the
Borrower.

The interest shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or the
Bank's Cost of Funds, whichever is higher for HKD loan
and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR or the Bank's Cost of
Funds, whichever is higher for Foreign Currency loan.

For issuance of documentary credits for the account of the
Borrower in favour of third parties / local beneficiaries and
covering import of goods by calling for simple / insecure
shipping evidence satisfactory to the Bank.

For trust receipt facility relating to goods imported and
financed under the Bank's Local DC with tenor up to 120
days.

The interest shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or the
Bank's Cost of Funds, whichever is higher for HKD loan
and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR or the Bank's Cast of
Funds, whichever is higher for Foreign Currency loan.

For extension of trade loans to finance the Borrower's
import of goods as evidenced by its suppliers’ invoices and
any other relevant documents as required. The availability
of any particular trade loan will be subject to such
conditions as the Bank may decide from time to time with
tenor up to 150 days.

The interest shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or the
Bank's Cost of Funds, whichever is higher for HKD loan
and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR or the Bank's Cost of
Funds, whichever is higher for Foreign Currency loan.

For issuance of standby documentary credits for the
account of the Borrower in favour of third parties and
covering services and/or other performances in the ways
acceptable to the Bank and/or acceptance of bills drawn
thereunder.

HAERTERLE Hang Seng Bank Limited

Member HSBC Group  HERS SRR

-7









Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Corporate Banking — A131106

Documents Against
Payment
(For Borrowing Group 1)

Documents Against
Acceptance
(For Borrowing Group 1)

Negotiation under
Documentary Credits with
discrepancies

(For Borrowing Group 1)

Factoring Facility
(For Borrowing Group |)

Bank Guarantee
(For Borrowing Group I)

Treasury Product(s)
Facility
(For Borrowing Group 1)

The Borrower shall reimburse the Bank immediately on
demand all amounts of claims under any standby
documentary credit issued for its account. Any amount not
reimbursed by it to the Bank shall bear default interest at
such rate as the Bank may at its absolute discretion
determine from time to time.

For purchase of documentary export D/P bills drawn on
parties acceptable to the Bank.

For purchase of documentary export D/A bills drawn on
parties acceptable to the Bank with tenor up to 120 days.

The interest shall be 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or the
Bank's Cost of Funds, whichever is higher for HKD loan
and 2.5% per annum over LIBOR or the Bank's Cost of
Funds, whichever is higher for Foreign Currency loan.

For negotiation of discrepant documents, secured or
unsecured by goods, presented under export documentary
credits issued by banks acceptable to the Bank.

Subject to terms and conditions set out in separate letter
(with subject “Offer Letter — Factoring Agreement”).

For issuance of bank guarantee for the account of the
Borrower in favour of third parties in the ways acceptable
to the Bank.

Product: Spot/Forward Exchange/Option
Notional Amount: USD25,737,500
Terms and Conditions:

All transactions are subject to the terms of an ISDA Master
Agreement between the Borrower and the Bank.

The Bank reserves the right at its absolute discretion to
decide whether or not this facility may be utilised in any
particular instance, to specify conditions on which it may
be utilised and the terms of any individual transaction.
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Treasury Product(s) Facility remain subject to the Bank’s
overriding right to call for cash cover on demand if in the
Bank's view a negative foreign exchange position requires
such cover. Further, the Bank may close out any or all of
the Borrower's outstanding forward foreign exchange
contracts and demand settlement of the balance due.

In consideration of the Bank's provision of / transacting the
Product to / with the Borrower, the Borrower hereby
undertakes to the Bank that the Borrower's engagement of
the Product with the Bank are for genuine hedging
purpose and will not constitute over hedging.

This ERL facility is restricted to HKD/USD/RMB
transaction only.

Term Loan Facility (TL) :  Loan Account No.: 337-049100-302
(For Borrowing Group II)

Outstanding Loan Amount: HKD5,444,444 .48 as of 7 May
2014

Qriginal Loan Amount: HKD7,000,000

Final Maturity Date: 5 September 2016

Interest Rate and Payment; 2.25% per annum over 1
month HIBOR or the Bank’'s Cost of Funds, whichever is
higher and interest shall be payable at the end of each
interest period. No Interest Period shall extend beyond the
Final Maturity Date.

Repayment: Principal is repaid by 36 monthly instalments,
commencing 1 month after first drawdown.

All sums which may become due to the Bank from time to
time in respect of this facility (including but not limited to
principal and interest) are to be directly debited from the
account maintained with the Bank.

Prepayment: Prepayment (in whole or in part) is allowed
provided that the Bank receives 2 Days’ prior written notice
and such prepayment is made on an interest payment date
with a minimum amount of HKD1,000,000 and in its
integral multiple. Any amount prepaid shall not be
available for utilization. A prepayment fee of 1% (1st-12th
month after drawdown) on the amounts prepaid will be
charged.
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Revolving Loan Facility
(RLN1) and Term Loan
Facility (TL)

Conditions Precedent:

Conditions precedent to drawdown in form and substance
satisfactory to the Bank shall include without limitation the
following:

(1) No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or
would result from the drawing of the RLN1 and TL
facilities.

(2) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited and the
guarantor(s) shall covenant that there is no material
change in their ownership, business and financial
conditions or any potential event of default or
event of default.

(3) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited and the
guarantor(s) shall promptly inform the Bank if there is
any material adverse change or any potential event of
default or event of default.

Undertaking:
Customary for financing of this nature and appropriate in

judgment of the Bank to be applied to Bonso Advanced
Technology Limited, throughout the life of the these
facilities, including but not limited to:

(1) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited shall undertake
the RLN1 and TL facilities will not be used for
property acquisition in Hong Kong or overseas.

(2) The Bank shall have the discretion to designate and
appoint an independent professional valuer to
conduct the valuation on the Property (mentioned
under “Security” section below) on annual basis or at
any time requested by the Bank. The cost of
valuation is to be borne by Bonso Advanced
Technology Limited.

(3) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited shall provide to
the Bank a certified copy of its annual rental reports of
the Property shown the monthly rental income within
two weeks from the end of each semi-annual period.
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(4) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited shall undertake
to insure the Property with reputable insurer in Hong
Kong acceptable to the Bank throughout the whole
tenor of these facilities at their own costs. Total sum
insured should be at least 100% of the reinstatement
value of the Property.

(5) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited shall maintain
and keep at all times the Property in a good and
substantial state of repair and condition and allow the
Bank to view the state of repair of the Property.

(6) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited shall not sell
any part or the whole of the Property without the
Bank's prior consent. The proceeds from any
permitted sale of the Property shall be applied
towards prepayment of the facilities in inverse order of
maturity.

(7) Bonso Advanced Technology Limited shall provide
additional security or pay down the outstanding
balance of the RLN1 and TL facilities immediately
upon receipt the Bank’s notice to restore the Loan-To-
Valuation Ratio at 50% or below in any event if the
Loan-To-Valuation Ratio exceeds 65%.

“Loan-To-Valuation Ratio” means the ratic of
aggregate outstanding amount of the RLN1 and TL
facilities to the current market value (in the opinion of
the Bank's approved valuer) of the Property.

4. Security

The availability of the Facilities is conditional upon the Bank’s receipt of the
following documents in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank:-

For Bonso Advanced Technology Limited

(1} A Charge over Securities in the Bank’s standard form executed by Bonso
Advanced Technology Limited (the "Charged Securities”). The Tangible Security
Value (as mentioned below) of the deposits and/or securities charged shall at all
times be not less than the outstanding balance of the RLN2 facility or its equivalent
in other currencies.

HERTERAE Hang Seng Bank Limited

Member HSBC Group  HEREHE I £









Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Corporate Banking - A131106

The Borrower and/or Guarantor (if applicable) shall, upon receipt of notification from
the Bank that the outstanding balance of the RLN2 facility exceeds the Tangible
Security Value, provide additional security to the Bank or pay down the outstanding
of the RLN2 facility to reduce the outstanding balance of the RLN2 facility at or
below the Tangible Security Value.

“Tangible Security Value" means the value of the Charged Securities from time to
time (as discounted by lending ratios applicable to different categories of charged
securities where such ratios shall be determined by the Bank from time to time as it
may see fit).

The Bank shall continue to hold:-
For the Borrower

(1N Cross Guarantee dated 27 June 2011 for unlimited amount from the Borrower.

(2)  Guarantee dated 27 June 2011 for unlimited amount from Bonso Electronics

International Inc..
For Bonso Advanced Technology Limited

(1) All Monies First Legal Charge over House No.27 (including the garage, garden
and roof appurtenant thereto) of Savanna Garden, No.4283 Tai Po Road, Tai Po
Kau, Tai Po, New Territories (the “Property”) with Bonso Investment Limited as the
mortgagor. The charged property is required to have insurance covered according
to Clause 12 of Standard Terms and Conditions for Banking Facilities.

(2) Rental Assignment over the Property with Bonso Investment Limited as the
mortgagor.

(3) ISDA Master Agreement, with the ISDA Schedule to the Master Agreement, dated
28 June 2011 made between Bonso Advanced Technology Limited and the Bank.

(4) Assignment of Insurance Policy dated 9 March 2012 executed by Bonso
Advanced Technology Limited as policyholder(s) to assign by way of security to the
Bank all the rights, titles, interests and benefits in and to a policy in the amount of
USD1,000,000 and So Chun Bong Andrew as the insured party issued by an
insurance company acceptable to the Bank (the “Policy”), and the proceeds of such
Policy, free from all encumbrances.

For Bonso Electronics Limited

(1) ISDA Master Agreement, with the ISDA Schedule to the Master Agreement, dated
11 July 2011 made between Bonso Electronics Limited and the Bank.
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The Borrower shall ensure that the legal charge and release/discharge of any property
mortgaged to the Bank as security for the Facilities will contain all the usual provisions
which are currently in use in Hong Kong and will be prepared by solicitors designated by
the Bank.

5. Undertakings

The Borrower and the under-mentioned undertaking parties (if any) shall continue to
undertake to the Bank as follows:-

(N Bonso Electronics International Inc. and its subsidiaries/ associated companies
shall not pledge any assets without the Bank’s prior consent.

(2)  The Borrower undertakes that for any Facilities denominated in Renminbi (if any), it

will not directly or indirectly on-lend the proceeds of such Facilities to (i) any
individuals and (ii) any Designated Business Customers if the proceeds of such
Facilities (or any other Renminbi proceeds derived therefrom) are directly or
indirectly credited to Renminbi accounts for the category of Designated Business
Customers which are maintained for limited purposes of handling Renminbi
cashnotes obtained in their ordinary course of business as Designated Business
Customers and for Renminbi bond investment.
"Designated Business Customers" means establishments that have had a business
relationship with a Hong Kong Renminbi business participating bank for more than
three years which engage in commercial retail, catering, accommodation,
transportation services, communications services, medical services, or educational
services, including such establishments that have had a business relationship with
such participating bank for less than three years, but with concrete evidence to show
that they have the actual relevant business background.

The Borrower shall and agree to indemnify the Bank for all losses and liabilities
incurred or suffered by the Bank arising out of or in connection with any breach of
the above undertaking by the Borrower.

(3) The Borrower shall provide to the Bank a certified copy of its annual audited
accounts/financial statements within 270 days after the end of each financial year
and such other relevant financial information as the Bank may from time to time
reasonably request.

(4)  The corporate guarantor(s) (if any) shall provide to the Bank a certified copy of its
annual audited accounts/financial statements within 180 days after the end of each
financial year and such other relevant financial information as the Bank may from
time to time reasonably request.

HBEETEE AT Hang Seng Bank Limited

Member HSBC Group R MY AE £






Bonso Electronics Limited
Our Ref: Corporate Banking — A131106

(5) Each of the Borrower and the corporate guarantor(s) (if any) and the corporate
security provider(s) (if any) shall immediately inform the Bank once there are
changes of its directors or beneficial shareholders or amendment to its
memorandum of association (if any) and articles of association or equivalent
constitutional documents and shall ensure that such changes/amendment are
updated in the company registry of its place of incorporation promptly.

6. Fees

A facility review fee of HKD30,000 from Bonso Electronics Limited will be debited from the
Borrower's account maintained with the Bank at the expiration of 14 days from the date of
this letter unless the Bank receives the Borrower's written notification that the Facilities are
no longer required within 7 Business Days from the date of this letter.

Upon completing each review of the Facilities, the Bank is authorised to debit the current
account maintained by the Borrower with the Bank for the facility review fee as the Bank
may prescribe from time to time.

If applicable, a valuation fee shall be payable by the Borrower for the purpose of valuation
of the property by surveyor appointed by the Bank in its sole discretion. The Bank is
authorised to debit the current account maintained by the Borrower with the Bank for such
valuation fee as the surveyor may charge, notwithstanding that the Borrower does not
accept this Facility Letter, the Facilities are not made available due to the Borrower failing
to comply with the terms and conditions set out in this Facility Letter, or the Facilities are
cancelled or suspended at any time.

Section 83 of the Banking Ordinance

Section 83 of the Banking Ordinance (Cap. 155, Laws of Hong Kong) has imposed on us as a
bank certain limitations on advances to persons related to our directors or employees. In
accepting the Facilities, the Borrower should advise us whether the Borrower is in any way related
to any of our directors or employees within the meaning of Section 83 and in the absence of such
advice we will assume that the Borrower is not so related. We would also ask that if the Borrower
becomes so related subsequent to accepting the Facilities, the Borrower should immediately
advise us in writing.

Please note that in reviewing the application, we may make reference to the credit report(s) of the
Borrower(s)/guarantor(s)/security provider(s) (as the case may be) from the credit reference
agency(ies). If you wish to access the report(s) yourself, you can contact the credit reference
agency(ies) directly at the following address:

Commercial credit reference agency:

Dun & Bradstreet (HK) Ltd., Unit 1308-1315, 13/F., BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418

Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon.

Tel: 2516 1100 ; Fax: 2960 4721.
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Please arrange for the enclosed copy of this letter to be signed by the Borrower and all guarantors
and security providers of the Facilities and return the same to the Bank with Board Resolution(s)
and Shareholder's Resolution(s) (if applicable) of the Borrower and all guarantors and security
providers before 14 June 2014, failing which our offer shall lapse unless it is extended by us at
our absolute discretion.

By accepting this Facility Letter, you would agree to channel all your remittance transactions and
insurance arrangement to the Bank. Our Payments and Cash Management Department and
General Insurance Sales Department would contact you to offer our services on remittance and
insurance respectively. T

Should you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact the following persons:-

Queries on Name Telephone No.
Banking arrangement Ms. Chan Ying Tung Kelly 21983521
Factoring arrangement Ms. Joan Kwan 21988678
Insurance Mr. Stanley Ng 36625056

Mr. John Li 21982522
Remittance . : Mr. Billy Chow 21984534

Remittance Hotline 21986919
Wealth management Ms. Joey Tsang 21985534

Execution.of documents 7 Documentation Hotline 21982094

Kindly return a signed copy of this letter and other relevant documents to Credit Services =
Manager of Credit Services, Mortgage & Unsecured Lending at L21, Tower 2, Enterprise
Square V, 38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

We trust that you will make active use of the Facilities and are pleased to be of continued

assistance.
(/ /_\; CHUNG Honko, Jones

Authorized Signature(s) Authorized Signature(s

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of
Hang Seng Bank Limited

KT/lky
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I/We hereby accept the Facilities and agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions set out in this
letter and the Standard Terms and Conditions for Banking Facilities, which I/we have read and
understood.

For and on behalf of
For and on of BONSO ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY LTD.

Bonso El omcﬁmlted e —

IA\We agree to act as guarantor/ security provider of the Facilities upon the terms and conditions set
out in this letter and the Standard Terms and Conditions for Banking Facilities.

For and on behalf of F P
or and on bhalf of
BONSO _¥K
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